County of Cattaraugus
Industrial Development Agency

Boa RD OF Dmﬂgrgns MEET]NE -ACEN DA

Tuesday, August 22, 2024
CCIDA Office
9 E. Washington Street
Ellicottville, Ny
9:00 a.m,

To access the Board meaiing via Zoom/Conference Cali, please see the appiicablo
information at the and of the dgenda fo do sa,

-Call the Mgatigg io Urder-Tlm_e:
-Roll Call- Board of I:Hrer.-m of the CCIDA:

dl of July 16 24 CCIDA Boa f Directo Meeting Minutes:

1. lean Manor Ine. Field of a

Olean Manor/Field of Dreams ig g first-class senior assisted living facility,
Comprising of 140 beds with full care and fiyj| amenities located in Allegany, New
York. This phase of the project, calls for the construction of an additional 40
coftages for residents to resige in. These proposed coltages include all of the
care and amenities that the residents enjoy in the main campus. We haye
included severs| articles and pictures within the packet and application that give
a full in depth look at the range of Services and care that a| residents can partake
in. This s a great need in our County that allows seniors to enjoy a beautiful

location and haye the safety and carg that they desira,
Mﬂﬂﬂlﬁummmum

“Application in Proces ect in Process®

Approximately 355000 Square feet with additiona Proposed outparcel(s)
construction,



-Please find the Proposed Licensze Agreement in your board packat for your re-
e Reconstruction Work is slated {g begin ASAP with 2 30ft opening for this
; fiar

v Resolution — Revalution Rail Company
Adirondack, Lo

"CCIDA F Inancia| Report:

“Approval of July 2024 F nancial Reports
*Inco uly 2 ;

-8 1,500.00 - QSKILLEC - Application Fee

-3 1, Eﬂﬂ.ﬂﬂ—ﬂﬂhc‘aﬂ Wine' Energy, LLr . Application Fee
=¥ 1,500.00 - Olean Town Centre . Application Feg

for 20

=



"Execy € Direg Re »

-In alnﬂ.e IScu ﬂnah:

v Maet'rru; with Ojean Business Development Corporation and EDa relating to 5 pog-
sible grant with OBDC.

¥ Contingeg our bi-weekjy meetings the Village of Cattaraugys and Dianga Chiak;
working an 2 grant app]r'catfunsfsuhmiaslnna for this October relating to key rada.
lage.

velopment Projects within the Vil

¥ Attended thg Cattaraugys County Annyay Planning Baarg Meeting, the 04 was a
Proud spansgry

v Meeting with Senator Borrelin 1o discuss sarya) items of intarast and economic
I:I'EUEI!-DDFHEHIPFQ]WIE in the County.

v Meeting with bPotential buyer of a Manufacturing business i the central pan of
EEHEH'EUQUS County.

¥ Mesting with Dave Fenske "®9arding updates on his possible knifa project in
lia,

Frankfinyi

v Meeting with Baob Dingman 1o discuss lagse



¥ Meeting with commercial real estate broker wha is negofiating an existing sale of
a building within the County,

¥ Meeting with Ed Jessup related to potential project in Litthe Valley,

¥ Meeting with Reb Harte at RevRall io discuss polential license agreement and
project dates

¥ Meeting at Great Lakes Chesze relating key updates.

¥ Meeting with Crystal Abers and Kim LaMendola regarding new business in the
County in the Olean ares.

v Attended the Cattaraugus County Republican Parly Event,

¥ Attended a meeting with JCC/IDAVWDE on a new thrust that we are collaborating
on relating to business outreach within the County.

-External {Points of Interest relating to the CCIDA):

v Bimbo Bakery Closure: Sadly, announced their anticipated closing of their
Olean, NY facility. Greal Lakes Cheese will be conducting a targeted job fair on
August 26" at The Hub in Olean from 8:00 am to 4:00 pm to target and hire as
many of the impacted workers at Bimbo, This event js proudly sponsored by the
Cattaraugus County Legislature in partnership with the DA,

v Dlean Times Herald; Aricle’ “Homer Streat solar profect benefiting city of
Qiean sold, benefils to continue™ The 1DA has been in contact with the new
owner and the Board in the near future will consider approving a Resolution to
convey the existing terms of the PILOT to the new owner.

¥ Qlean Times Herald: Arlicie: “‘Come Home/Stay Home: Steel adapts fo
expand footprint”. A recent article highlighting a great project for Pierce Steel,
The IDA was honoraed to help on this project!

v Handout: Major Moves Ahead for Pierce Steel Fabricators. Additional
article,

v Buffalo Niagara Partnership: Article: “Building the Future: How the Federal
Tech Hub Fundimg Will Transform Western and Central Mew York”, The supply -
chain will be a key topic of growth that could certainly impact and be a benefit to
vanous Cattaraugus County Companies.

v CNBC: Article: *Markets are clamoring for the Fed to start cutting scon: What is
i they're looking for?"

¥ Camoin Associates: Aricle: ‘Reading Between the Lines: What State
Business Rankings Really Tell Us”



¥ Handout: RockelCup Coffes Announcement. Continued growth and
great news for RocketCup Coffee!

v Handout: Open Inteniews for Greal Lakes Cheese in Saptember 6%

¥ Handout: Job Fair in Olean sponsored by CCIDA

¥ Handout: Meefing with U.S. Department of Commerce Internalional
Trade Administration and Rural Export Center regarding possible
opportunifies for new markels for our area

v Handout: SBA: Small Business Information Event in Randalph
Executive Session: (For a matter of Attorney/Client Privilege)
Maotion-

'I:ime:

-Motion to reenter the CCIDA Board Meeting-:

Time:
Adjournment:

Motion- -

e o Y O L e e e e o 0508 5 e e e e 0 R 5 5 e e s T L L e B 8 e e e o i

* Next CCIDA Board of Directors Meeting is
September 10, 2024 at the IDA Office.




ZLoom Meeting access Information:

Topic: County of Cattaraugus IDA Board Meeting
Time: Aug 22, 2024 09:00 AM Eastern Time (US and Canada)

Join Zoom Meeting

https://us02web.zoom.us/|/857862 89608 ?pwd =OMA7gMVGZicTHDRCgLS-
bpfXb3aNivYB.1

Meeting 1D: 857 8628 9608
Passcode: 844282

One tap mobile
+16469313860,,857862896084,,,,* 8442824 US
+19292056099,,857862896084,,,, *844282# US (New York)

Dial by your location
* +1 646 931 3860 US
* +1 929 205 6099 US (New York)

Meeting ID: 857 8628 9608
Passcode: 844282



COUNTY OF CATTARAUGUS
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

BOARD MEETING MINUTES

July 16, 2024
CCIDA Offices
9 East Washington Strect
Ellicottville NY 14731
11:15 a.m. In Person or via Teleconference CallZoom

Members
Present:
Mr. Thomas Buffamante-Chairman
Mr. Joseph Higgins
Mr. James (Joe) Snyder
Mr. Brent Driscoll
Ms. Ginger Schroder
Mr. Thomas Cullen

Excused:
Mr. Michael Wimer

DA Staff'Counsel:

Mr. Corey R Wiktor, Executive Director CCIDA
Mr. Robert Murray, Harris Beach PLLC Legal Counsel

Presenters/Guests:

Mr. Rick Miller, iean Star

Mr. Bob Clark, (Nean Times Herald (via zoom)

Peter Sorgi, Legal Counsel for Town of Farmersville

Pam Tilton, Citizen of Town of Farmersville

Sean Perry, Invenergy/Alle-Catt Wind Energy, LLC

Daniel Spitzer, Hodgson Russ Legal Counsel for Invenergy/Alle-Catt Wind Energy, LLC

Mr. Buffamante called the meeting to orderat 11:15 am.

A roll call of the Board of Directors of the CCIDA was taken Mr. Buffamante, Mr. Higgins, Mr. Snyder, Mr.
Drriscoll, Ms. Schroder and Mr. Cullen were present. Mr, Wimer was excused.



A Motion was made by Brent Driscoll seconded by James Snyder to sccept the Beard Meeting Minutes from
June 11, 2024 as presented to the Board. All in favor. Motion Carried. Mr. Wimer was excused.

Mr. Buffamante stated they have a very lengthy Agenda and do need to have an Executive Session at the end.

*New Applications*

1.) - Alle- Wind En

-Mr. Wiktor indicated Alle-Catt Wind submitted an Application to the Agency last week which was reviewed and
also sent to the Cattaraugus County Legislature which is included vour packet together with a list of the land
owners in participation, a copy of CCIDA's wind PILOT from the UTEP as well as a breakdown of how a
PILOT would look, proposed, if granted. Mr. Wiktor indicated Dan Spitzer and Sean Perry from
Invenergy/Alle-Catt are in attendance. Mr. Wiktor asked Mr. Spitzer and Sean to give an overview to the Board,
Sean Perry introduced himself to the Board and indicated he works for Alle-Catt Wind Energy and the project
has been in development for a significant amount of time in Cattaraugus, Allegany and Wyoming counties. The
project has been permitted by the Department of Public Service and the State of New York for up to 83 wind
turbines in the Towns of Freedom, Farmersville. Arcade, Rushford and Centerville with a 10-mile transmission
line with a point of inter-connection in the Town of Yorkshire. They have compleied the permit process with the
State for Article 10 for the construction of the wind farm itself and in December of last vear they completed their
permit process for Article 7 for the transmission facility. Sean indicated they are here today to share updated
numbers for turbines and supply costs and like most projects that are going on, they are seeing cost increases
across the beard in supply chain, labor, fuel, materials so the costs are reflective of the most updated Agures,
Sean indicated they have contracted with The Wesson Group from Johnstown, New York for their generil
contractor for the wind farm and O Connell Electric out of Rochester for construction of the substation, t-line
and connection. Sean indicated in terms of a timeline, they are starting site preparation activities at the O&M
building this month and anticipate the tree clearing window in March of Jater this year and would start other
operations in April 2025 which will be just over a two-year construction time line so currently the are projecting
their COD to be December of 2026 and fully coming online in 2027. Mr. Higgins asked if we had letters of
approval from the community and Mr. Wiktor indicated he belisves he has two emails that he would have to dig
out bui Pam is the Town Supervisor and Dustin Bliss who was on a few of the zooms back in February and
March have expressed their support and he could certainly ask for letters in support. Mr. Sorgi indicated the
Tewns have Resolutions from over & year ago and could provide those. Mr, Buffamante asked if we needed
something in writing from the County er if they verbally gave the go ahead and Mr. Wiktor indicated he included
in the board packet a couple of emails from the County Attorney’s Office. Ms. Schroder indicating the only
questions that have come up since the application was submitted is the fact that she thinks there is a belief both
from leaseholders and from town officials that the project was going to happen without [DA assistance, that was
the understanding all along and she notices in the application it states the project is not financially viable without
IDA inducements. Ms, Schroder asks if that is the truth. Sean stated in terms of whether or not the project is
financially viable, it is with us with; however, the actual layvout of the project would change depending on if
financial assistance was delivered from the Cattaraugus County DA, Sean indicated they have PILOT
agreements in place with Allegany and Wyoming counties at this point, as well as host community agreements
with all five Towns, and should the DA choose not to grant financial assistance to Alle-Catt, then the layout
wonld change. Ms. Schroder asked how it would change and Sean indicated it would be smaller and potential
shift to Allegany and Wyoming county sites, Ms, Schroder asked if they agree that this is & shift from what the
developer has been saying all these years and Mr. Spitzer said no, as these things are not locked in as terms of
costs and the application presented stated that absent those benefits, the project is not going forward, Mr. Spitzer
said the project could go forward without the benefits on a smaller scale and if Cattaraugus County wants to

2



leave itself out of the benefits and the Towns do not want any of the money, then it is a possibility. Mr. Spitzer
said the thing that would change the most is the host community agreements with the Towns. Ms. Schroder
stated the host community agreements are dependent upon a PILOT and Mr. Spitzer agreed yes, the host
community agreements are hand and hand with the PILOT and a host community agresment and CCIDA
requires a host community agreement with a PILOT as most 1DAs do and the company has a requirement to give
a benefit to the communities and the host agreement disappears if there is no [DA agreement, Ms. Schroder
stated that is her point, a5 4 host community agreement is tied to an IDA FILOT for 5,000, but it could be over
3,000 but the beaefits decrease to the town and right now under the current taxing scheme, the towns are really
cheated under the New York State model so the way to get the Towns any money is through this vehicle, Mr
Spitzer stated to look at this year’s model as they update the model every year and this vear the model is more
favorable. Mr. Spitzer indicated they see a lot of smaller solar projects stop going to the [DAs as whal they are
doing is more and more host agreements as opposed to PILOTS. Ms. Schroder stated she also noted in the
application there was not necessarily a commitment to use of local services, what about local construction as we
want local people on the project as the project that was built in Arkwright had a significant amount of out of state
labor brought in to build that project despite promises by the developer that they were going to use local labor so
what is your position on that? Sean replied it certainly is their intent to secure local materials and local labor as
much as possible as they have been in contact with several unions in the area, their general contractor, The
Wesson Group, has already began to secure gravel for the O&M site using local materials from Cataraugus
County and trying to do that as much as possible for cost purposes and as far as terms of local labor
requirements, they have reviewed the local labor requirements and will share with their general contractor and
their instructions are written into their contract to use as much local labor as possible and if they run into &
scenario where they cannot use local labor, they are to provide them with rational of why they could not provide
local labor or precure local labor. Sean further stated after being in contact with local unions there are a lot of
projects going on and they have told us they will have some shartages as they work on the Micron, the Bills
Stadium and other projects in the area but it is written into their contracts that they have to get construction
workers locally as much as possible, Mr, Spiter stated the hardest part is finding warkers and they pay
prevailing wages on everything as required on the State level but their biggest concemn hiring locally is if they
can find the workers locally. Mr. Wikior stated that was a question he had as the IDA ran into this a little bit with
solar companics is meeting with the companies would state they were going to use Iocal workers and then it not
happening as gravel was being bought in Pennsylvania and he would propose in language to the Board, if
supported, is an opportunity for a job opening forum or to meet with the general contractor and the IDA as well.
Mr. Wikior stated if the IDA could help sponsor a job event in Freedom, Farmersville or wherever needed, he
would like to do and Sean stated he agreed as it would make their life easier. Mr. Buffamante asked how many
construction jobs they anticipate over the 2 or 3 year period and Sean respended around 400 construction Jobs.
Mr. Wiktor asked that would be 2 seasons or a full year and Sean indicated they have a small shut down during
December, January and February, however, in the first winter season they will have a Iot of jobs for the tree
clearing, but then from April to November of 2025 as well of April to November of 2026 that will be the big
consiruction season. Mr. Snyder asked what the height of the turbines are at this point and Sean responded 591
fieet to tip height. Sean indicated the general iend in the industry has heen going bigger as now the units are
going to be 4.5 mega-wall capacity per tower. Mr. Driscoll asked how many towers and Sean replied 83
permanent sites for the whole project with 50% of the generation would be in Cattaraugus County. Mr. Murray
asked if the costs in the application represent the costs for only for Cattaraugus County and Scan replied yes, tha:
1s correct. Mr. Snyder asked if there would be any training for local first responders as he thinks it needs to be
part of the coatract as sometimes the turbines catch on fire, break and fall down. Mr. Spitzer stated he thinks
there is plans within the permits that actual require that, but they are all in an that as there are no developers he
knows that do not want first responders to be trained. Sean stated one of their compliance filings is developing
an emergency response plan and it is built into their permit. Mr. Driscoll asked if there is insurance and liability
requirements and Mr. Spitzer said yes, it is taken care by the lenders and anyone else an the hook and the IDA is
to be named as additional insured and Mr. Wiktor stated it is the first thing we do is verify insurance and are
indemnified as well with language that is built in, Mr. Murray asked if any of the turbines are located on
agricultural district lands and Sean responded yes, there are several turbines that are on agricultural district lands

3



as part of the Article 10 process and the Ag and Markets has 1o sign off basically saying they mitigated their
impact on the land as much as possible and remediation efforts that ne=d to be maintained when they finish
consiruction in order to restore the site. Mr. Driscoll asked if there was a hond set up for decommissioning and
Sean stated yes, there is and the amount is set by the State and he believes they update that every year or Every
two years. Mr. Driscoll further asked if we get updated as to whether the bond is still existing and Mr. Wiktor
said yes, once a year, Mr. Spitzer indicated he believed the individual host agreements also have
decommissioning language. Mr. Buffamante stated the application has costs listed at Just over $6 18 million and
but the detail only adds up to about $442 million, has that been corrected and Sean stated he had not had a
chanee o respond to Mr. Wiktor's email but it is missing 5180 million for utilities, roads and other
infrastructures and Mr. Wiktor asked Sean to address, re-submir, sign and recast to the Board, Mr. Buffamante
asked the Board if they would allow to move forward with a public hearing and looking for a general conscious
to move on to the next step which would be the public hearing. Mr. Spitzer indicated there would actually be 3
public hearings as it is structured in 3 Towns so technically in Fannersville, Yorkshire and Freedom. Mr. Murray
indicated to Mr. Spitzer to make it clear which Towns would require the public hearings. Ms. Schroder asked if
the leasehold in the Town of Machias was eliminated and Sean indicated ves, that is correct as they had a
proposed access toad in the Town of Machias but with their amendments last vear with the State, they eliminated
that access road. Mr. Spiteer indicated his understanding is the sales tax benefit is for all 3 towns, but the real
estate fax benefil is in the Towns of Freedom and Farmersville. Mr. Murray asked if there would be mortgages
and Mr. Spitzer said yes, they are still bidding out who is going to be the lender and sees a series of closings, a
sales tax closing as they don't need the real property exemption the first year and a martgage closing, Mr,
Wiktor indicated he would work with the County leadership to update them. Mr. Murray indicated he would
prefer to have the assessor create separate tax lots and Mr. Spitzer responded that is what he wants to see as wel|
as it makes it so much easier. Mr. Wiktor thanked everyone for coming today and the update. Mr. Buffamante
also thanked them for the application and for coming today as they were very helpful Mr. Spitzer asked Mr.
Wiktor if he thought they should give presentations at the public hearings and Mr. Wiktar indicated yes, a3 it isa
unique progect to the IDA. Mr. Driscoll recommended the company put up & site map to show where the sites,
roads and power station will be for the public to review as well as picture of what the towers will look like. Sean
agreed to provide those items. Mr. Spitzer and Sean then left the meeting, Mr. Wikior indicated he will advise
the County of the updates and await the next steps. Ms. Schroder indicated she thinks they will be shocked o
learn the project will not move forward without the IDA inducements which now means the 1DA is now bringing
the project to the County and she is furious. Ms, Schroder said now the IDA is going to have to hold the ball for
the project and be responsible for the fact the project is here and since 2017 the company has told the Towns and
the Icascholders the project is happening with or without the [DA’s assistance as they knew about the [DA's
pronouncement from the Legislature from 2018 so they said the project would happen either way and there are
leaseholders who only signed because they were told the project was going to happen and they might as well get
some money for it. Ms. Schroder further indicaed she publicly committed to supporting to the submission of the
application on the grounds that the project was happening anyway and rather than the Towns getting hurt
financially by the taxing scheme that the State budget passed, we were going to help the Towns through
problems they created themselves by entering into host community agreements that were secured by the PILOT.
Farmersville and Freedom’s host community agreements are 100% dependent upon a PILOT being issued by the
IDA and if a PILOT was not issued, no payments would be made to the Towns and the developer would have no
incentive to come to the IDA because they already got a better taxing scheme from the State and now we are
being told something completely different and Ms. Schroder asked if everyone at the table was not really angry
about this as we are now going to be the owners of the project. Mr. Wiktor stated that was a great point. Mr.
Driscoll stated what he heard was a little different and what he understood was the project would go forward, but
on a smaller scale and Ms. Schroder and Mr. Wiktor replied it would not go forward in our County and Ms.
Schroder said we are now responsible 1o bringing this project to our County and it's o rope-a-dope. Mr. Wiktor
indicated what we will require are letters from the Towns 25 much as we can. Mr. Sayder stated all the Towns
around this praject have to live with the project and a big chunk of the project needs to be with those elected
officials so letters from the Towns and Legislatures would be needed stating whether they are for or against the
praject. Mr. Wiktor agreed and said some form of Resolution stating whether they want to proceed or not. M.

d



Schroder said she wondered what the project would look like without the IDA inducements as we should have a
right to know that and what this developer has done all along has been very cagey about what this project is
going to lock like, not telling us what the models are for the turhines, where they are going to be located, first it
was 116 turbines and now it's down to 83 turbines, they have gone up in size, and it is frustrating that a
community cannot know what a project is going to be and the State will give a certificate of operation to a
project without ever having to layout what the shadow flicker is going to be, how long the wind turbine blades
are going to be 3s it"s approved on one basis and then the developer is allowed to change it so now all the
information they submitted is going to change as it is a new model of wrbine they are talking about as it's a
larger model with longer blades. The question was asked if SEQR was entered into at this point Mr. Murray
indicated there is a negative declaration and the next step would be to make a consistency designation as we
wiouild have 1o make our own negative declaration. Mr, Murray stated if the project described in the application
15 not different than what is in the SEQR documents and forms then we could take comfort that it is congistent.
Mr. Wiktor indicated it the findings are grossly different, then the SEQR process would need to be started over.
Mr. Buffamante asked Ms. Schroder if the project is different in the application than the SEQR they can still put
a larger turbine in? Ms. Schroder responded she has cancemns ahout it as when they received their certificate of
operaling need it was based upon for instance the State says they cannot exceed 30 hours of shadow flicker with
the 3.2 and now there are longer blades with more shadow flicker and there is no study on that and we were
upset on the study that was done on the 3,2 and now no study has been done on the 4.8, 5.2 or whatever the
turbines are going to be and the same goes for the noise. Ms. Schroder further indicated even the Attomey
General said this project was fined for violating the code of conduct for developers in the State of New York
because they had direct financial relationships with the Towns that passed the wind laws that now allow this
project happen as those people had leases and they sat on the Town Boards and it is outrageous and now think
about what we are going to look like as we are the people bringing this project to the floor. Ms. Schroder stated
the application should have said the company is seeking benefits beeause without the benefits, the Towns won't
get any maney because of the way the Towns negotiated their host community agreements, instead the company
15 saying we are not going to do this project unless you give us this money so where does that leave us because
that is not how it has been represenied. Mr. Higgins asked if one of the Towns was the lead agency and M,
Wiktor indicated it is the Town of Farmersville for all the Towns as there can only be one lead agency. A
question was asked if’ the County agreed to move forward as there was reference to emails or letters from the
County Atterney and is that how the DA got invalved. Ms. Schroder indicated it is her understanding the
Legislature has asked the IDA to move forward because they were of the apinicn, or belief that this project
wiould still happen and we were saving the Towns and now the way she reads it is we are going to be responsible
for this project. Ms. Schroder stated she thinks this project is the worst thing that could happen to this County
and she has said it all along but if it was going to happen, she wants to make sure the Towns get every penny that
is coming to them despite them negotiating a host community sagreement dependent upon a third-party agency of
which they had no control. Mr. Buffamante stated we asked for a bunch of things such as helping find local
labar and local contractors and he thinks we need to get that all in writing and Mr. Wiktor agreed and said we
will want to have some sort of claw-back agreement to see who was interviewed, who submitted bids and have
that put in our documents. Ms, Schroder asked for the company to tell us what the project will look like without
the inducements and Mr. Wiktor agreed. Mr. Buffamante stated our next step would 1o be et something from
the Legislature and Mr. Wiktor agreed that we will need to secure that written document of suppart o
acknowledgement to proceed and we do have them from the Towns of Farmersville and Freedom from 2022 so
we will need to get those updated. The question was asked if there was any deviation and Mr, Wiktor stated no
as technically it is a 15-vear PILOT with a £5 000 installed compacity. Mr. Wiktor thanked the Board and
idicated he would keep them apprised as we hear from the County



-Alle-Catt Wind Energy LLC has submitted an Application to the Agency seeking NYS sales tax, mortgage tax
and real property tax abatement relating to a wind power project consisting of up to 83 wind turbines with a
maximum generating capability of approximately 340 MW, Thirty-eight of the turbines will be located in
Cattaraugus County in the Towns of Farmersville and Freedom. The project also includes buried electrical
cables, pad-mount transformers, access roads, electrical substation, permanent meteorological towers,
microwave tower, identiflight towers, aircraft detection lighting systems, &M building and associated
improvements. Please note: The Agency is working with Counsel with respect tp the SEQR, as the IDA is an
involved Agency. No Official action will be taken on this prapased project, We will discuss possible next steps
{fe. SEQR, Public Hearing, ¢tc,).

~The | Project [nv : S618.874

2.)— own Cent

-Mr. Wikior indicated Olean Town Centre capsulated a new, revised application and revised letter which is more
concise and clearer, Angelo switched attorneys and is using Branden Cottrell from Hodgson Russ. Mr. Wiktor
asked what the Board's support would be to bring what we have counter offered, to be the 14 vear PILOT which
woutld be a deviation of our adaptive reuse that would mirror our brownfield PILOT, so vears 1-10 is 100%
abatement then it scales 20, 40, 60, 80 for next for vears on only value added so we are not removing anything
from the tax base or affecting it in that way, it's only on if he is to build on new value to the site that the PILOT
would be applicable. Mr. Wiktor stated all he is asking of the Board is to allow him to take it to a public hearing
in the City of Olean and then bring it back to the Board for discussion, review and questions. Mr, Wiktor stated
there was no support for the projects initial PILOT request and terms so we looked at our brownfield and we
would deviate from our adaptive reuse policy and use those schedule of benefits as well as sales tax and
morlgage tax incentives. Mr. Snyder indicated he is a hard no. Ms. Schroder indicated she is a hard no. Mr.
Snyder stated the assessment is still unfair and the PILOT ends up being a 19 yearand not a 14 yeeras it has a 5- '
year timeframe start date. Mr. Murray stated as an example if the company did well in year 2, the company
could ask for the PILOT in year 2 and then it would only be 15 years. Mr. Snyder stated he is less concerned
about the PILOT and value added than his is about the assessment as it is simply unfair as the mall was assessed
at $4 million and this guy paid $6 million on the county records and talked the City assessor into brining the
assessment down to $450,000, a $0% reduction that pushes around about $190,000 a yvear of property fax onto
everyone else and the Pizza Hut down the sireet is assessed at the same $450,000 as the mall properdy 1s and it is
very unfair and the company has asked us to bake that into the terms of the PILOT, Mr. Buffamante stated the
City indicated they are not going to change the assessment and Mr. Snyder said he is a no and Ms. Schroder said
then the City should not expect to get our inducements. Mr, Snyder further stated he doesn’t even think it is
legal as if you look at the State law on real property taxes, they are supposed to be spent fairly and it clearly is
not fair. Mr. Higgins stated perhaps the mall is such a mess that it is really only worth that much and M,
Schroder stated then why did he pay $6 million for it. Mr. Snyder stated if you explain this assessment to
anyone in Olean, they will get mad about it so until they fix the assessment, he is a hard no. Ms. Schroder stated
if the City wanis the project 50 bad then they need to do right by the tax payers. Mr. Buffamante stated all he is
asking to move it to a public hearing stage, not to approve the project. Mr. Snyder and Ms. Schroder both sajd
they are & no. Mr. Buffamante asked to go around the table and get a roll call vote to move it to a public hearing.
Mr. Wiktor asked the Board what they would like him to do as he has exhausted every opportunity. Ms.
Schroder indicated it's not that they are not in support of the project as that area needs to be developed, but it
needs to be done fairly and not have some tax payers bear more of the burden than others so why doesn't the eity
waork with the assessor to get the value up so people are not being detrimental. Members of the Board asked to
ohtain the documentation from the assessor to understand how the assessed value was determined and they will
revisil at the next Board Meeting.



-Ollean Town Centre LLC has submitted a revised letter and Application to the Agency seeking NYS sales tax,
martgage tax and real property tax abatement relating to the redevelopment of the Olean Center Mall which
currently is approximately 355,000 square feet. The project will include building of & new structure to adjoin the
existing mall structure comprising of a new mall entrance and inline tenant space, improvements and updates to
the existing mall structure, building exterior and fagade, replacement of the roof system, renovation of the
interior building infrastructure. The project will provide new retail and other commercial opportunities. A
REVISED Application and overview letter is included in your Board packet. Please note: The Agency is
working with Counsel with respect to the SEQR, as the IDA Lead Agency. No Official action will be taken on
this proposed projeci, I woald ask the Board to discuss possible next stepy fie. Public Hearing, efc., should the
Board see fi fo set a date).

=The Total Project Investment; 340,229,315
“Resolutions from Prior Applications/Projects in Process*
L.) — North Park LLC/North Park Innovation Group, Inc.

-North Park LLC/North Park Innovation Group, Ine. has submitted an Application to the Agency lor seeking
NYS sales tax, mortgage tax and real property tax abatement relating to the construction of an approximately
3,000 - 10,000 square foot addition to the current 12,500 square foot facility that was constructed in 1991 located
at 6442 NYS Route 242 E,, Ellicottville, NY, The new addition will allow for the needed expansion and growth
of the company, which includes retained employment and net new hires as well, A copy of the cost benefit
analysis i included in cach Board Member § pocket.

~The Investment: 5770,0040.

Resolution:

A Motion was made by James Synder seconded by Joseph Higgins. RESOLUTION OF THE
COUNTY OF CATTARAUGUS INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY: (i) ACCEPTING THE
APPLICATION OF NORTHPARK ELLICOTTVILLE LLC, NORTH PARK INNOVATION GROUP,
INC., ANIVOR INDIVIDUAL(S) OR AFFILIATE(S), SUBSIDIARY{IES), OR ENTITY(IES)
FORMED OR TO BE FORMED ON ITS BEHALF (INDIVIDUALLY, ANDVOR COLLECTIVELY,
THE "COMPANY™) IN CONNECTION WITH A CERTAIN PROJECT DESCRIBED BELOW: {il)
RATIFYING THE SCHEDULING, NOTICING, AND CONDUCTING OF A PUBLIC HEARING [N
CONNECTION WITH THE PROJECT:, {iii) MAKING A DETERMINATION PURSUANT TO THE
STATE ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY REVIEW ACT: {iv) APPOINTING THE COMPANY, OR ITS
DESIGNEE, AS ITS AGENT TO UNDERTAKE THE PROJECT: (v) AUTHORIZING THE
UNDERTAKING OF THE PROJECT TO PROVIDE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO THE COMPANY
IN THE FORM OF (A} A SALES TAX EXEMPTION BENEFIT FOR PURCHASES AND RENTALS
RELATED T THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION AND EQUIPPING OF THE PROJECT, (B) A
MORTGAGE RECORDING TAX EXEMPTION BENEFIT FOR FINANCING RELATED TO THE
PROJECT, AND (C) A PARTIAL ABATEMENT FROM REAL PROPERTY TAXES BENEFIT
THROUGH THE PILOT AGREEMENT; AND (vi) AUTHORIZING THE NEGOTIATION AND
EXECUTION OF A LEASE AGREEMENT, LEASEBACKE AGREEMENT, A PAYMENT-IN-LIEL-
OF-TAX AGREEMENT, AN AGENT AND EINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROJECT AGREEMENT.
AND RELATED DOCUMENTS. A roll call of the Board of Directors of the CCIDA was taken, Mr.
Buffamante, Mr. Higgins, Mr. Sayder, Mr. Driscoll, Ms. Schroder and Mr. Cullen were present. Mr,
Wimer was excused, Motion Carred.



2) - SKI LLC

=Q5KI LLC has submitted an Application to the Agency for seeking NY'S sales tax, morigage tax and real
property tax abatement relating to the construction of an approximately 9,000 square foot mixed use building
located at 41 Washington Street in the Village of Ellicottville. The project will have ground floor retail, up o 2
suites, and 5 upper floor units of housing,

=Ihe Total Projeet Investment: $2.000,000,
lution:

A Motion was made by Brent Driscoll seconded by Ginger Schroder. RESOLUTION OF THE
COUNTY OF CATTARAUGUS INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY: (1 ACCEPTING THE
APFLICATION OF QSKI, LLC ANDVOR INDIVIDUAL(S) OR AFFILIATE(S), SLUBSIDIARY(IES),
OR ENTITY(IES) FORMED OR TO BE FORMED ON 1TS BEHALF (INDIVI DUALLY, ANDVOR
COLLECTIVELY, THE “COMPANY™) IN CONNECTION WITH A CERTAIN PROJECT
DESCRIBED BELOW; (ii) RATIFYING THE SCHEDULING, MNOTICING, AND CONDUCTING OF
A PUBLIC HEARING IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROJECT; (iii) MAKING A
DETERMINATION PURSUANT TO THE STATE ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY REVIEW ACT;
(iv) APPOINTING THE COMPANY, OR ITS DESIGNEE, AS ITS AGENT TO UNDERTAKE THE
PROJECT, {v) AUTHORIZING THE UNDERTAKING OF THE PROJECT TO PROVIDE
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO THE COMPANY IN THE FORM OF (A) A SALES TAX
EXEMPTION BENEFIT FOR PURCHASES AND RENTALS RELATED TO THE ACQUISITION,
CONSTRUCTION AND EQUIPPING OF THE PROJECT, AND (B) A MORTGAGE RECORDING
TAX EXEMPTION BENEFIT FOR FINANCING RELATED TO THE PROJECT; AND (vi)
AUTHORIZING THE NEGOTIATION AND EXECUTION OF A LEASE AGREEMENT,
LEASEBACK AGREEMENT, AN AGENT AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROJECT
AGREEMENT, AND RELATED DOCUMENTS. A roll call of the Board of Directors of the CCIDA
was taken, Mr. Buffamante, Mr. Higgins, Mr. Snyder, Mr. Driscoll, Ms. Schroder and Mr. Cullen were
present. Mr. Wimer was excused. Motion Carred.

-Mr. Buffamante indicated he wants to have a discussion as he thinks we have been inconsistent with our policies
about not extending a PILOT to QSKI LLC and we need to look at our policies so we do not pick and choose
what projecis get PILOTs and what projects do not, Mr. Buffamante indicated he wanted to mention that and he
will bring it back up a future meeting, Mr. Wikior stated that was a good point and what he would like to do is
with our adaptive reuse and commercial PILOT, in the aspect of housing, revise and update it to make sure hous-
ing is addressed. Mr. Wiktor stated he would like to analyze the UTEP more in regards to housing as it is some-
what new to the [DA and wants to make sure our policy is not too rich or not encompassing of housing.

*Project Update*

*RevRiail and Rai witar Ipidaie:

-Mr. Wiktor gave a brief update on the proposed RevRail Rail Bike project in the Village of Canaraugus, Things
are moving good and rehab work on the should commence by August 19 RevRail is looking to rail bike events
in mid-September. Mr. Cullen also gave an update on the projects within the Village of Cattaraugus that coin-
cide with the RevRail project.



*CCIDA Financial Report:

A Motion was made by Brent Driscoll seconded by Thomas Cullen 1o accept the June 2024 CCIDA
Operating Statement as presented to the Board. All in Favor - Motion Carried. Mr. Wimer was excused,

Income 2024 ¥

-3 1,500.00 - GSPP 4578 Felton Hill Road East - Application Fee
-5 1500.00 - GEPP 4578 Felton HIll Road West = Application Fee
=% 1,500.00 - North Park Eflicotrville - Application Fee

-54,200,00 = Refund from ERC Specialists
-§ 2146 — American Power and Gaxs rebate

*lncome for July 2024 (53,000,005

-8 1,500.08 - OSKI, LLC - Application Fee
-8 1,500.00 — Alle-Catt Wind Energy LLC — Application Fee

-Update: Relating to CCIDA Asset Account balances, terms and rates. { Updare sheet is within board Packet),
-Uieneral update on profects in process; including the Agency has § profecis in the closing stage which should
close in the Ird quarter of this vear

* ve Direc Reporis:

-Internal (IDA Meetings/Discussions):
¥ Meeting with Kinley Construction on updates to project.
Meeting with Andy and Scott regarding RevRail updates,
Meeting with Mayor Burrell and Brad Lockwood regarding cutlery development project.

L

Presentation for Leadership Cattaraugus in Ellicottville.

=,

Meeting with Sean Doyle of Hamburg 1DA.

¥ Meeting regarding EPL Funding for Brownfields.

¥ Meeting with Rich Schecter.

¥ Mesting with Mike John relating to his project.

¥ Meeting with Congressman Langworthy, event.

v Meeting with developer on possible project in Mansfield.

¥ Attend Catturaugus-Allegany Workforce Development Board Meeting.

9



¥ Meeting with Pete Sorgi and Jason Schwab on passible project.
v Meeting with Mike Higgins and John Stahley on possible project in Olean.

¥ Attend Cattaraugus County Economic Development Meeting in Little Valley,

-External {Points of Interest relating to the CCIDA):

¢ Olean Times Herald: Article: “Workforce a key factor in Great Lakes Cheese s commitment to area”
v CCIDA Letter of Support for Village of Frankiinvilte T-Mobile Hometown Grant,

¥ Update and overview of our Cattaraugus County Economic Developmeni Team working on o funding
support from the Ralph Wilson Fowndation. Please see the packet includsd in your Board packe for
review and full details. This wauld be a grear win for the County!

v Olean Times Herald: “Right Thinkers pane! sees successfil farming as security isswe . Excellent recap
of the meeting and roundiable!

v The Villager: "Pour Taproom Ellicosville Business Expeands to Former Cadillae Jacks Location ", 4
recent f0A profect that will mow be complere with a new unigue dining experience.

¥ Buffalo Niagara Partnership Government Affairs Advogacy Alert: “Region Wins Tech Hub

Fundling "
¥ Harris Beach Memorandum_ “Proposed Amendments o Brownfield Cleanup Program — Prevailing
Hage ™.
Executive Session:

A Motion was made by Brent Driscoll seconded by Joseph Higgins to go into Executive Session for Matter of
Personnel at 1:10 p.m. All in Favor — Motlon Carried. Mr. Wimer was excused.

A Motion was made by Joseph Higgins seconded by Thomas Cullen to exit Executive Session and retum ta
the regular meeting at 1:59 p.m. All in Favor — Motion Carried. Mr. Wimer was excused.

A Motion was made by Brent Driscoll seconded by Thomas Buffamante, Joseph Higgins, James Snyder,
Ginger Schroder and Thomas Cullen to increase Corey Wiktor's salary to $135,000, effective I mnuary 1, 2024
and approve a bonus amount of $15,000 to Corey Wikior and $6,637 to Crystal Almeter. All in Favor - Motion
Carried. Mr. Wimer was excused.

A Motion was made by James Snyder seconded by Ginger Schroder to adjourn the meeting at 1:59 pm. All
in Faver — Motion Carried, Mr. Wimer was excused,

* Next CCIDA Board of Directors Meeting: August 22, 2024 at 9:00 a.m.
at the IDA Offices, 9 E. Washington Street, Ellicottville, N d also via Zoom.

10




APPLICATION FOR
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Name of Applicant: i'k-_LE.;ﬁ Hlarey ne

Date Submitted: E:T | i E, an {

County of Cattaraugus Industrial Development Agency
P.O). Box 1749

9 East Washington Street

Ellicotiville, Wew York 1473]

Phone (716) 699-2005

Tax (716) 699-2042

e-mail infof@catteoida. com

web  www, cattcoida.com



L. Ehmbility Ouestionnaire = Apphicant Backeround Information

Answer all questions. Use “None” or “Not Applicable™ where necessary.
A) Applicant Information-company receivi enefit:

Applicant Mame: MO0~ Moo~ LnG

Applicanmt Address: S00 L0, e KL B

City'Town: _PWVeGn State:_§ 1 _ Zip AN D1,

Phone: Jilp - %3 ~—DR e

E-muail: KW 7.2 ot w5k et obcly @ cogvos O g-_,-_-j__ ks LY Ty
! ] ]

B)
Corporation % Partnership ]
Public Carporation Joint Venture =
Sole Proprietorship ] Limited Liability Company [1
Other (specify) ______ , E——
Year Established: /| o "| bve State in which Organization is established: |/ -

i Individual Completing Application;

Marme: Ikii'“l"ﬁxn L Y A7 n e VRl
Title: 'I'-"F-_'ﬁ"f T owdeon el
Address: Sl o] % T S

CityTown: EM\e cur o State: h Zip_ \HWPh o
Phone: e SR Ganh E-Mail: [({ 022 o s Ceid ol diey mae il g L
m) Co ny Contact (if different from individual com lication);

Name:; =

Title: o

Address: =

City/Town: State: _ Zip

Phone: E-Mail:

El Company Cownzel:

Name of Attomey: r‘.ﬂe‘.ﬂ‘rﬁ U P Furrvy Lo |;-'
Firm Name: ¢\ VST —
Title: o
Address: _{ Q5F Uk~ Sddee
CityTown: WL ryyE s o™ _ State: ko Zip: 100
Phone: Jlp  L{KYH-"1/% | E-Mail
F) equested |
|. Exemption from Sales Tax B Yes or [ Mo
2. Exemption from Maortgage Tax [ Yes or [4 No
31, Exemption from Real Property Tax Bl Yes or [ Mo
4, Tax Exempt Financing * [ Yes or o Ne

* (typically for nof-for-profits & small qualified manufaciurers)

1 Reav: November 2023



) Applicani Business Description:
Describe in detail company background, history, products and custemers.. Description is critical in determining
EEIELU]III_'_-.’ MO oed PE .1 ‘1.3'r'rw-'l. ALt Lr'- L-;.Ln'. { Aocle Ul de T4

'-I.-"ﬂ _..';. e |l\. o L4 Tooy | Ty 'l-\.'q. BATH 1 A
- Trys groneck rﬂwu_, i Er'ﬂu rmLMJ r’.h_m*lu_- L,F{M
Ll::r_r:c.i'b'-gu.

Estimated % of sales within Cattaraugus County: | L2000
Estimated %6 of sales outside Cattarauges County but within New York State: ,.‘_ﬁ}_
Estimated % of sales outside New York State but within the US.: _ |

Ertimated % of zales outside the T1.5.: -'J:l

(*Percentape to equal 100%:)

For your operations, company, and proposed project, what percentage of your total annual supplies, raw materials
and vendor services are purchased from firms in Cattaraugus County j“_lﬂ] T

Id:mlf;,- vendors within Cattaraugus County for major pu:n:has-::a

'il_ll,‘:l L:L_.._'|'I|"*:._ CAFes Laurthodr '1 by e Elel fnr Ii".‘ - TN
A T s e N 8T R ¢ TR {—"‘Lﬂﬂu P \_-r.l_.'?l g Swin S '|I""u. v S Biu et
e Bie, onn ,,'Jh,.ru'i"-._ 4 _rl"

!|

. Eligibility Questionnaire - Project Description & Details

A)  Project Location

Address of Praposed Project Facility, 1o L), TV 54 OG0 o b WML,
City/Town: 4 MO0 School District: v LS .-';._ "a—"-x Ok b, §
SBL Number(s)for proposed-Project J

Current Address (if difficrent):
Citw Town;

9 - —_
What are the current real estate taxes on the proposed Project site? 'L il ; W LG s {x,h__ ;
If amount of current taxes is nol available, provide assessed value for each
Land: § Buildings(s); If available include o copy of current fax receipt.

Are Real Property Taxes current at project location? E;:I"':"c:s or ] No. If po, explain:

Does the Applicant or any related entity currently hold fee title have an option/contract to purchase the Project
site? [ ] Yes or El Ma If Mo, indicate name of present owner of the Praject site:

-Bescribe the present use of the proposed Project site (vacant land, existing building, el ):
e AT o Pl L e 3 T =1

2 Rew: Movember 2023



B} Project Description

Provide a narrative of the purpose of the proposed Project (new butld, renovations, expansion), square footage of
mn:a-rma buildings (if an:.".l and new constrection contemplated andior equipment pun:lmm Identify specific uses
occuming within the project.  Describe any and all tenants and any/all end users: (This information is critical in
_datermmmg project ei1g1htlny Add an attachment if necessary. ):

e G S oyity Comipri i \ S GRS Cped Sy pR b L, ! % !L-"l'\k,_

o P i L\nhr'-.ﬂ

Will the completion of the Project result in the removal of an industrial or menufacturing plant of the project
occupant from one area of the state to another area of the state OR in the abandonment of one or more plants or
facilities of the project occopant located within the state? [ Yes or No []

If the Proposed Project is located in a different municipality within New York State in which current operations are
being undertaken, is it expected that any of the facilities in any other municipality will be closed or be subject fo
reduced activity? [] Yes or No [ If Yes, you will need to complete Section V, The Inter-municipal Move
Lefernunation

s the project reasonably necessary to prevent the project occupant from moving out of New York State?
[] Yes or[£] Mo, If yes, explain and identify out-of-state locations nvestigated, type of assistance offered and
what competitive factors led you to inquire about sites outside of New York State? Provide supporting
documentation if available:

Have you contacied or been contacted by other Local, State and'or Federal Economic Development Agencies?
] ¥es or[{] MNe. If yes, indicate the Agency and nature of the inguiry below:

Describe the reasons why the Apency's financial assistance is necessary, and the effect the Project will have on the

Applicant’s business or operations. Focus on competitiveness issues, project shortfalls, etc.. . Y |;|:h|||1y
determination will be based in part on your angwer (attach agditional Eng:s!; % !EE ﬂ Erq
h il el T “L”I‘lﬂl ﬂ“% uug

) i {fews ' 18 ' b T TR 'L..H.. ll.'i.l.‘l.-..

M ™ ;.mt :,I' A I;’ﬂm 1 i;__',.l

Confirm by checking the box, below, if there 15 likelihood that the Project would not be undertaken but for the
financial assistance provided by the Agency? In ather words, by way of example only, you would check the "yes™
box if you believe, in the event the Agency was unable to provide financial assistance, that it is likely that you
would not undertake the Project. ] Yes or[] No

If the Project could be undertaken without financial assistance provided by the Agency, then provide a statement in
the space provided below indicating why the Project should be undertaken by the Agency:

TOX e3¢ ,__'ﬁu;,ul"?x-“'ﬁ"\ 1S O AT s OF boade cosd

If the Applicant is unable to obtain financial assistance for the Project, what will be The :mpaﬂ:t on the ﬁl.pplimm and
Cattaraugus County? Oy \ et 0 I‘fi COrYYY ™ Y gn Jﬁ_i 1i"lr“'-. e T -J-.

‘n-_:uu:pe_:

1 Rew: Movember 2023



€} Bite Characteristics
Will the Project meet zoning/land use requirements at the proposed location? [ Yes or [] No
r

Describi the pressut zoving/lacd uscc.* .\
If a change in zoning/land use is required, provide defails/status of any request for change of zoning/land use

requirements: __ L Ly

Has a project related site plan approval application been submitted to the appropnate planning depariment?
] Yes or ] No

If Yes, include the applicable municipality's and/or planning departments approval resolution, the related State
Environmental Quality Review Act (“SEQR™) “negetive declaration™ resolution, if applicable, and the related
Environmental Assessment Form (EAF), if applicable.

If Mo, list the CCTDA as, or ensure that the CCIDA is listed as, an “Involved Agency™ on the related EAF that will
be submitted to the appropriate municipality and/or planning depariment far site plan approval and provide to the
EAF o the lead agency end to the CCIDA,

If Mo, because site plan approval is not otherwise required, complete and submit the EAF along with this Application
o the CCIDA

Is the proposed project located on a site whese the known or potential presence of contaminants is complicating
the development/use of the property? [[] Yes or B No If ves, explain:

Has a Phase [ Environmental Assessment been prepared or will one be prepared with respect to the proposed project
site? 4 Yes or[] Mo If ves, provide a copy.

m Project Tvpe
Select Project Type/Use for all end users at project site (you may check more than one)

Acquisition of Existing Facility [] Life Care Facility (CCRC) ﬂ
Affordable/Workforee Housing []  Market Rate Housing ]
Assisted Living %] Mixed Use ]
Back Office ] Multi-Tenant ]
Civic Facility (not for profit) | ] Renewahle Energy ]
Commercial [l  Research/Design |
Senior Housing % Retail .
Facility for Aging Warehousing 1
Tndustrial/Manufacturing [] Other ]
Tourism Facility/Project W

Will customers personally visit the Project site for either of the following economic activities indicated below? If
yes with respect to either cconomic activity indicated below, complete Section [V, Retail Questionnaire,

Retail Sales: [F] Yesor[] Neo Services: ] Yesor[] No
*For purposes of this question, the term *'retail sales™ means (i) sales by a registered vendor under Article 28 of the

MNew York Tax Law (the “Tax Law") primarly engaged in the retail sale of tangible personal property (as defined
in Section 1101(bY4)i) of the Tax Law), or {ii) sales of a service W customers who personally visit the Project.

4 Hew: Movember 2023



For the proposed Project Facility, indicate the square footage for each of the uses cutlned below:

**If applicant is paying for FFE for tenants, inclede in cost breakdown

Square Footage

st
Project

% of Total Cost of

Manufacturmg/Processing

Warehonse

Eesearch & Development

Commercial

Retail (see retail questionnaine)

Dffice

Renewable Energy

Bpecily Other

loo o

J4s0 4l -ffﬁfﬁ"ﬁﬁ“@

What iz the estimasted project timetable {provide dates):
1. Start date: sequisition of equipment or construction of facilities: = Tlp
2. Estimated completion date of projeet: Y 53
3. Project occupancy — estimaned starting date ﬁfuc:umncy e

E} Owverall Project Costs

Estimated costs in conngciion with Progect:
1. Land %ﬂ:"ﬂf Building Acquisition $M| T
Beres square feet

2. Mew Bmldmg Construciion EEE;}; square feet T
3 New Building Addition{s) square feet % h
4, Infrastrecture Work N e, 0 19 1 T W
5. Reconstruction/Renovation aquare feet O
6. Manufacturing Equipment $ <
7. Non=-Manufacturing Equipment (fumiture, [ixtures, ec.) 3 th
8. Soft Costs: (Legal, architect, engineering, etc.) § Lot oow
9, Other, Specify: 5

G g

TOTAL Costs: § ;I h“ ! '_l,“k_‘,
Construction Cost Breakdown:

Tatal Cost of Construction
Cost of materials:

%b sourced in Cattaraupus County

Have any of the above costs been paid or incurred as of the date of this ﬂppll-l:a.ﬂnn?

s‘fig =5 COT (sum of 2,34 and 5 above)

S Lo ol . s

S

kS

If ves, describe: —Mﬂi“—' TR e

ek o

T No

Rew: November 3023



Sources of Funds for Project:

Bank Financing 5_@

Equity {excluding equity that is attributed to grants/tax credits) : ¥

Public Sources (Include sum todal of all state and federal

grants and tax credits) g (:T

Identify each state and federal grant/eredit: {ie. Historic Tax Credit, New Market Tax Credit, Brownfield
Cleanup Program, ESD, other public sources)

Total Sources of Funds for Project Coste:

o BN b b

5 - B

Have you secured financing for the project? [] Yes [] Mo, 1If yes, provide a copy of the loan commitment to
the Agency

Project refinancing estimated amount, if applicable (for refinancing of existing debt only): §

Sales and Use Tax Benefit: Gross amount of cosis for goods and services that are subject to State and Local Sales
and Use Tax - said amiount to benefit from the Agency’s sales and use tax exemption benefit: § i U oy

Estimated State and Local Sales and Use Tax Benefit {multiply B.0% by the figure, above): § 10N O

** Naote that the estimare provided above will be provided 1o the New York State Department of Taxation and
Finance. The Applicant acknowledges that the wansaction documents include o covenant by the Applicant o
undertake the total amount of investment as proposed within this Application, and that the estimate above represents
the maximum amount of sales and use tax benefit that the Agency may autharize with respect to this Appiication,
unless otherwise amended and approved by the Aeency. The Agency may wiilize the estimare above ax well ax the
propoved total Profect Costy ar contained within this Application, o determine the Finangial Assistance thai will

be offered.

Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Benefit: Amount of mongage, if any that would be subject 1o mongage

recording tax:
Mortgage Amount (include sum total of construction/permanent/bridge financing): §_ ([

Estimated Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Benefit (multiply the mortgage
amount as indicated above by 1.25 %) ¥ 0

Real Property Tax Benefit:

Hdentify and describe if the Project will utilize a real property tax exemption benefit OTHER THAN the Agency's
PILOT benefit (487, 485-b, other):

IDA PILOT Benefit: See Section V1 of this Application. Agency staff will indicate the amount of PILOT
Benefit based on estimated Project Costs as contained herein and anticipated tax rates and assessed valuation,
including the annual PILOT Benefit abatement amount for sach year of the PILOT benefit year and the sum total
of PILOT Benefit abatement amount for the term of the PILOT.

& Rewv: Movember 2033



F)  Job Retention and Job Creation

Is the project necessary to expand project employment? [H] Yes or [] No

Is project necessary to retain existing employment? ] Yesor[] Ne

Employment Plan (S pecific to the proposed project location):

urrent # of jobs at  |If financial assistance JIf financial aszistance [Estimate number of
n:rpn{md project is granted — project thefis pranted — project idents of the Labor
ocation or to be ber of FT and FT [the number of FT and|Market Area in which
elocated at project  fjobs to be retained I jobs to be created [the project is located
DCation pon 24 months (2 fthat will fill the FT and
rears) after Project  |PT jobs to be created
completion fupon 24 months (2
years) after project
completion %
ull time ) ; -
Em Lol e LY A
art Time : . "
(PT) 23 =pe. Aok |
T _ o - '
fol ¥ [ 5 2 $3 q L B

** The Labor Market Area includes the Counties of Cattaraugus, Erie, Allegany, Chautauqua and Wyoming. For
purposes of this question, estimate the number of FT and PT jobs that will be filled, as indicated in the third colurmn,
by residents of the Labor Matket Area, in the fourth colummn.

¥ By statute, Apency stalf must project the number of FT jobs that would be retained and created if the request
for Financial Assistance is pranted, Agency stafl will project such jobs over the two-year time period following
Project completion.  Agency staff converts PT jobs into FT jobs by dividing the mumber of PT jobs by two {2).

Salary and Frinoe Benefits for Jo

to be Retained and Created:

Category of jobs o be W of emplovees Averape salary [Average fringe [Average salary [Average fringe
retained andfor created retained andfor for Full Time |bencfits for full |for part time, if benefits for part|
created Lime applicable time, if
applicable
'\-Tanag:mmi I\ ECes-sepy Won-was Bog | T oo - M~
rofessional
Administrative 1|I T~ 10
|Pmdw:l.inn
Independent Contractor
Other S . =1 WOOD Wl gel o - S [HF o0 oo 1o -2 da

#* Note thal the Agency may utilize the [oregoing employment projections, among other items, to determing the
hAnancial assistance that will be offered by the Agency to the Applicant. The Applicant acknowledges that the
transaction documents may include a covenant by the Applicant to retain the number of jobs and create the number
of jobs with respect to the Project as set forth in this Application.

Rev: Movember 2023



Payroll Information:
Annual Payrol] at proposed project site upon project completion

Estimated average annual salary of jobs to be retained (full time)

Estimated average annual salary of jobs to be retained (part time)

Egtimated average annual salary of jobs to be created (full tume)

5 T N B b

Estimated average annual salary of jobs to be created (part time)

Estimated salary range of jobs to be created
From {full time) T o To (full ime} §_ AT (v

From (part time) R, el &' G N To (part time) $_L4E (3 2

g Fev: Novemher 2023



L. Part A: Facility Type - Multi-Tenant Determination

If this is a Singia-l}J? facility Gl in section A. If this is 2 Multi-Tenant fill in section B.

A) For Single Use Facility (to be filled out by developer):

Clccupant Mame;
Address: ‘al
City/Town: b State: Zip:
Contact Person; ) )
Phome: Ay Fax:
E-Mail: b

Federal T #: ! NAICS Code:

B) Mulii-Tenant Facility (bo be flled out by developer):
Have any tenant leases been entered into for mis project [ ] Yes or[ | No.
Lt
"'.
If ves, list below and provide square footage T&ﬁ leased 1o tenant and NAICS Code for tenant and nature of

business.
LY

Tetant Mame Current Address LY 'F of 5. ft.and  [Briefly describe type of business,
[city, state, zip) Y % of total to be  jproducts services
¥ \ .
'y (pecuepied at new
"'-.‘]'lm_irm 5ite
'._"'.
L
Y
\
\
,
Y
y

g Foev: Movvember 2023



Part B: Tenant Form

#* This section must be completed for each proposed tenant **

A Retall Questionnaire will need to be prepared for each proposed tenant if customers will personally visit
the tenant to either participate in a retail sale transaction or pay for a service.

An Inter-Municipal Move Determination will need to be completed for ench proposed tenant that is
relocating from another municipality or abandoning an existing facility.

Property Address:
City/ Town:

Tenant Name:;

Armount of space to be leased: _8F. What percentage of the building does this represent? b
Are terms of the lease: GROSS [ ] or NET []

If GROSE lease, explain how Agency benefits are passed to the tenant;

Estimated date of occupancy: el 1]

Company Marme: —
Current Address:

City'Town: Stale: Zip:

Local Comtact Person: _ e Title:

Phomne: E-mail: Y

Company President’General Manager:
Number of employess to be relocated to new project location:

Full-Time: Part-Titme: Total:
Lisi the square footage which the proposed tenant will lease at the }'Q:_rjml location: sF
List the square footage which the proposed tenant leases at its Drt%':'P%":ifﬂ‘iﬂ“[S]' -SF
Will the project result in relocation from one municipality to another .nnli"-:lr abandonment from other terantusen(s)
facilities in New York State? 1,"

[ 1¥es ar || No. \

If Yes, fill out Inter-Municipal-Move Determination form

What will happen to the existing facility onee vacated?

If leased, when does lease expire? 20 _ .

Are any of the proposed tenant’s currenl operations located in facilities which have received an Industrial
Development Agency benefft? [ Yes or[_] No. If ves, provide details as to location, and amount of leased space,
how long leased? — —

10 Rev: Movember 2023



IV. Retall Questicnnaire

To ensure compliance with Section 862 of the New York General Municipal Law, the Agency requires
additional information if the proposed Project is one where customers personally visit the Project site to
undertnke cither a retail sale transaction or fo purchase services.

Answer the following:

A, Will any portion of the project (including that portion of the cost to be financed from equity or other sources)
consist of facilities or property that are or will be primarily used in making sales of poods or services 1o
customers who personally visit the project site?

[] Yes or [¥] MNo. Ifthe answer is yes, continue below. [f no, procesd to next section

For purposes of Question A, the lerm “relail zales™ means (1) sales by a registered vendor under Article 28
of the Tax Law of the State of New York (the “Tax Law™) primarily engaged in the retail sale of tangible
personal property (as defined in Section 1 101(b)(4)i) of the Tax Law), ot {ii) sales of a service to customers
who personally visit the Project.

B. What percentage of the cost of the Project will be expended on such facilities or property primarnily used in
making sales of goods or services (o customers who personally visit the project” | ¥ali “a.  IF
the answer is less than 33% do not complete the remainder of the retail determination and proceed to
Inter-Municipal Move Determination.

IT the answer to A Is Yes AND the answer to Question B is greater than 33.33%, indicate which of the
following questions below apply to the project:

1. 'Will the project be operated by a not-for-profit corporation | | Yes m\ﬁ Ma.

2. Is the Project location or facility likely to amract a significant number of visitors from outside the
economic development region jCattaraugus, Erie, Allegany, Cheutauqua and Wyoming counties) in which
the project will be located? i‘t’:s or[ ] Mo

3. Iz the predominant purpose of the project to make available goods or services which would not, but for
the project, be reasonably accessible to the residents of the municipality within which the proposed project
would be located because of a lack of reasonably accessible refail trade facilitics offering such goods or
services? L@Tﬁs ar[_] Mo

4. Will the project preserve permanent, privaig ar jobs or increase the overall number of permanent,
private sector jobs in the State of New York? Yesor[ | Mo

Jf}f.‘:i:xpluin = h"&;ﬂgl‘ Wﬂﬂl"{fa Q 3 ,Ib l'lﬂrl'?; f’milri.ﬁ':‘:&m_ fgm:""i?:mﬂl_éf

5. Is the project located in a Highly Distressed Area? [] Yes urﬁ Mo

i1 Rev: Movember 2023



Inter-Municipal Move Determination

If completion of a Project benefiting from Agency Financial Assistance results in the removal of an industrial or
manefacturing plant of the project occupant from one ares of the state to another ares of the state or n the
abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the project occupant located within the state, then it must be
shawn that Agency Financial Assistance is required 1o prevent the project oceupant from relocating out of the state,
or i5 reasonably necessary to preserve the Prodect oecupant’s competitive position in its respective industry,

Current Address: i \
City/Town; _',  State: Zip: L

Will the Project result in the removal of an mduﬁma! or manufacturing plant of the Project occupant from one area
of the state to another area of the stat=? [] Yes! ur [ Ne

Will the Project result in the abandonment I}Fmil: ar more plants or facilities of the Project occupant located within
the state? [] Yesor[ | Mo '.II

If Yes to either question, explain how, notwithstanding the aforementioned closing or activity reduction, the
Agency's Financial Assistance is required to prevent the Project from relocating out of the State, or s reasonably
necessary [0 preserve the Project oocupant™s competitive position in its respective industoy:

\

Does the Project involve relocation or consolidation of a project occupant from another municipality?

Within New York State [J¥esor[ ] No \
Within Cattaraugus County [ Yesor[] No \
If ¥es 1o either question, explain: 1"'5\
L

What are some of the key requirements the project occupant is looking for in a new site (for example minimum of
number of sq. fi, 12 foot ceilings, truck loading docks, thruway accessibility. etc.)

y
\ ==

moving o a different municipality

If the project occupant is currently located in Cattaraugus County and will
Iz location within the mumcipality

within Cataraugus County, has the project occupant attempied to find a suita
in which it is currently located? [ | Yesor[[] Mo

What factors have led the project occupant 1o consider remaining or locating in

reupgus County?

If the current facility 1s to be abandoned, what 15 going to happen to the current facility that the project occupant is

bocated in?
= J i fl —
12 ,\J l /\\V Rev: Movember 2023




Provide a list of properties considered, and reason they were not adequate, (Some examples include: site not large
enough, layout was not appropriste, did not have adequate uiility service, eic.)

Property { Address) Feason

13 Roear: Movembser 2023



VI Estimate of Real Property Tax Abatement Bénefits®** and Percentagze of Project Costs

financed from Public Sector sources

** This Scction of the Application will be: (i) completed by CCIDA Staff based upon information contained
within the Application, and {ii) provided to the Applicant for ultimate inclusion as part of this completed

Application,

FILOT Estimate Table Worksheel

CCIDA Staff will insert and‘or prepare appropriate PILOT Benefit information.

~TOA Wil Bun e CBA b Gl Yhi PTLeT Sowrs.

Percentage of Project Costs financed from Public Sector Table Worksheet:

Total Project Estimated Estimated Estimated Value of | Total of Other Public Incentives
Cost Value of Value of Sales | Momgage Tax (Tax Credits, Grants, ESD
PILOT Tax Incentive | Incentive Incentives, elé.)
¥ [ o - - . - 5 I
. %ic L_M_-\_J '-:f-rt’l,.ﬂf-b '['u‘LPr T\M’i
Calculate % (Est. PILOT + Est. Sales Tax+ Est. Mortgage Tax+ Other)Total Praject Costs: Yo

Rey: MNovember 2023



Artachment A: Representations, Certifications and Indemnification

s '
{nsthoe raze s

A | (name of CEO or other authorized representative of Applicent) confirms

Ty
and says that hefshe is'the Pllpyas o5 Yrudey—  (itte) of ()l aq Menas ne (name of
corporation or other entity) named in the attached Application (the “Applicant™), that hefshe has read the foregoing
Application and knows the contents thereof, and herchy represents, understands, and otherwise agrees with the
Apgency and as follows:

A,

Job Listings: In accordance with Section 858-b{2) of the New York General Municipal Law, the
Applicant understands and agrees that, i the Project recelves any Financial Assistance from the
Agency, excepd as otherwise provided by collective bargaining agrecements, new employment
opportunities created as a result of the Project will be listed with the New York State Department of
Labor Community Services Division (the “DOL") and with the administrative entity (collectively with
the DHOL, the “JTPA Entities™) of the service delivery area created by the federal job training parnership
act (Public Law 97-300) (“JTPA™) in which the Project is located.

First Consideration for Employment: In accordance with Section £58-b(2) of the New York General
Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any Fiancial
Assistance from the Agency, except as otherwise provided by collective bargaining agreements, where
practicable, the Applicant will first consider persons eligible to participate in JTPA programs who shall
be referred by the TTPA Entities for new employment opportunitics created as a result of the Project.

Annual Sales Tax Filings: In accordance with Section 874(8) of the New York General Municipal Law,
the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any sales tax sxemptions as part of
the Financial Assistance from the Ageney, in accordance with Section 874(8) of the General Municipal
Law, the Applicant agrees to file, or cause (o be filed, with the New York State Department of Taxation
and Finance, the annual form prescribed by the Department of Taxation and Finance, descnbing the
value of afl sales tax exemptions claimed by the Applicant and all consultants or subcontractors retained

by the Applicant. Copics of all filings shall be provided to the Agency.

Employment Reports: The Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any Financial
Assistance from the Apency, the Applicant agrees to file, or cause to be filed, with the Agency, at least
annually or as otherwise required by the Agency, reports regarding the number of people emploved af
the project site, salary levels, contractor utilizetion and such other information (cellectively,
“Employment Reports’™) that may be required from time to time on such appropriate forms as
designated by the Agency. Failure to provide Employment Reports within 30 days of an Agency
request shall be an Event of Default under the PILOT Agreement between the Agency and Applicant
and, if applicable, an Event of Default under the Agenl Apreement between the Agency and
Applicant. In addition, a Notice of Failure to provide the Agency with an Employment Report may be
reported to Agency board members, said report being an agenda item subject 1o the Open Meetings
Law.

The Applicant acknowled ges that certain environmental representations will be required at closing. The
Applicant shall provide with this Representation, Certification and Indemnification Form copies of amy
known environmental reports, including any existing Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Report(s)
and/or Phase II Environmemtal Investigations, The Agency may require the Company and/or owner of
the premises to prepare and submit an environmental assessment and audit report, including but not
necessarily limited to, a Phase | Environmental Site Assessment Report and a Phase 1l Environmental
Investigation, with respect to the Premises at the sole cost and expense of the owner andlor the
Applicant. All environmental assessment and awdit reports shall be completed in accordance with
ASTM Standard Practice E1527-05 and shall be conformed over to the Agency so that the Agency is
authorized to use and rely on the reports. The Agency, however, does not adopt, ratify, confirm or
assume any representation made within reports required herein.

15 Rev: November 2023



The Applicant and’or the owner, and their succeszors and assigns, hereby releasze, defend and indemmnify
the Agency from amy and all suits, causes of action, litigations, damages, losses, liabilities, obligations,
penalties, claims, demands, judgments, costs, disbursements, fees or expenses of any kind or nature
whatsoever (including, without limitation, attorneys’, consultants’ and experts’ fees) which may at any
time be imposed upon, incurred by or asserted or awarded against the Agency, resulting from or arizing
out of any inquiries and/or environmental assessments, investigations and audits performed on behalf
af the Applicant and/or the owner pursuant hereto, including the scope, level of detail, contents or
accuracy of any environmental assessment, audit, inspection or investipation report completed
hereunder and/or the selection of the environmental consultant, engimeer or other qualified person to
perform such assessments, investigations, and audits.

Hold Harmless Provision: The Applicant acknowledges and agrees that the Applicant shall be and is
responsible for sll costs of the Agency incurred in connection with any actions required to be taken by
the Agency in furtherance of the Application including the Agency’s costs of general counsel and/or
the Agency’s bond'ransaction counsel whether or not the Application, the proposed Project it
describes, the attendsnt negohations, or the isswe of bonds or other ransaclion or agreement are
ultimately ever carred to suecessful conclusion and agrees that the Agency shall not be liable for and
agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold the Agency harmless from and against any and all liahility arising
from or expense incurmed by: (i) the Agency's examination and processing of, and action pursuant {o or
upon, the Application, regardless of whether ar not the Application or the proposed Project described
herein or the tax exemptions and other assistance requested herein are favorably acted upon by the
Agency; (ii) the Agency's acguisition, construction andfor installation of the proposed Project described
herein; and (1) any further action taken by the Apency with respect (o the proposed Project including,
without limiling the generality of the foregoing, all causes of sction and attomey's fees and any other
expenses incurred in defending any suits or actions which may arise as & result of any of the forepoing.
Applicant herehy understands and agrees, in accordance with Section 875(3) of the New York General
Municipal Law and the policies of the Apgency that any New York State and local sales and use tax
exemption claimed by the Applicant and approved by the Agency, any morigage recording tax
exemption claimed by the Applicant and approved by the Agency, andfor any real propery tax
abatement claimed by the Applicant and approved by the Agency, in connection with the Praject, may
be subject to recapture and/or termination by the Agency under such terms and conditions as will be
established by the Apgency and set forth in transaction documnents 1o be entered inlo by and between the
Agency and the Applicant. The Applicant further represents and warrants that the information contained
in this Application, incleding without limitation information regarding the amount of the New York
State and local sales and use tax exemption benefit, the amount of the morgage recording tax exemplion
benefit, and the amount of the real property tax abatement, if and as applicable, to the best of the
Applican”s knowledge, is trae, accurate and complete.

This obligation includes an obligation (o submit an Agency Fee Pavment to the Agency in accordance
with the Agency Fee policy effective as of the date of thiz Application

By exccuting and submitting this Application, the Applicant eovenants and agrees to pay the following
fees to the Apency:

(i} a non-refundable $1,500.00 application processing and publication fee (the “Application
Fee™) at time of application submission payable CCIDA;

{ii) UInless otherwise agreed 1o by the Agency, an amount equal to cne and one quarter pereent
(1.0625%) of the total project costs, at the time of issuance of Financial Assistance/closing;

{ii ) All fees, costs and expenses meurred by the Agency for (1) lepal services, including but
not limited to these provided by the Agency’s general counsel andior the Agency's
bondftransaction counsel, thus note that the Applicant is enfitled te receive a written
estimate of fees and cosis of the Agency’s general counsel amd the Agency’s

16 Bew: Movember 2023



bond/transaction counsel; and (2) other consultants retained by the Agency in connection
with the proposed project, with all such charges to be paid by the Applicant at the closing.

If the Applicant fails to conclude or consummate the necessary pegotiations, or fails, within a
regsonable or specified period of time, to take reasomable proper or requested action, or withdraws,
abandons, cancels, or neglects the Application, or if the Applicant is unable to find buvers willing to
purchase the bond issue requested, or if the Applicant is unable 1o facilitate the salefeaschack or
lease/leaseback transaction, then, upon the presentation of an invoice, Applicant shall pay to the
Apency, its agents, or assigns all actual costs incurred by the Agency in furtherance of the Application,
up to that date and time, incloding but not necessarily limited to, fees of the Agency’s general counsel
andfor the Agency's bond'transaction counsel.

The Applicant scknowledges and agrees that all payment liabilities to the Agency and the Agency's
general counsel andfor the Agency’s bond and/or transaction counsel a3 expressed in Seclions H and |
are obligations that are not dependent on final documentation of the transaction contemplated by this
Application.

The cost incurred by the Agency and peid by the Applicant, the Agency’s general counsel and/or
bond/transaction counsel fees and the processing fees, may be considered as a cost of the Project and
included in the financing of costs of the proposed Project, except as limited by the applicable provigions
af the Internal Revenue Code with respect to tax-exempt bond financing,

The Applicant acknowledges that the Agency is subject to New York State’s Freedom of Information
Law (FOIL). Applicant understancs that all Project information and records related to this

application_are potentially subject to disclosure under FOIL subject to limited statutory
exclusions.

The Applicant has read and understands the Agency’s Policy Respecting Recapture of Agency Benefits
(the “Recapture Policy”). The Applicani covenants and agrees that if fully understands that the
Recapture Polioy is applicable to the Project that is the subject of this Application, and that the Agency
will implement the Recapture Policy if and when it is so required to do so. The Applicant further
covenanis and agrees that its Project is potentially subject to termination of Agency financial assistance
and/or recapture or modification of Agency financial assistance so provided and/or previously granted.

The Applicant understands and agress that the provisions of Section 862(1) of the New York General
Municipal Law, as provided below, will not be violated if Financial Assistance is provided for the

proposed Project:

§ 862. Restrictions on funds of the agency. (1) No funds of the agency shall be used in respect of any
project if the completion thereof would result in the removal of an industrial or manufacturing plant of
the project occupant from one aree of the state to another area of the state or in the abandonment of one
or more plants or facilities of the project oocupant located within the state, provided, however, that
neither restriction shall apply if the agency shall determine on the basis of the application before it
that the project is reasonably necessary to discourage the project occupant from removing such other
plant or facility 1o a location outside the state or is reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive
position of the project occupant in its respective indusiry.

The Applicant confirms and acknowledges that the owner, occupant, or operator receiving Financial
Assistance for the proposed Project is in substantial compliance with applicable local, state and federal
tax, worker protection and environmental laws, rules and regulations.

The Applicant confirms and acknowledges that the submission of any knowingly false or knowingly
misleading information may lead to the immediate termination of any Financial Assistance and the
reimbursement of an amsount equal to all or part of any tax exemption claimed by reason of the Agency's
invalvement the Project.

17 Rev: Movember 2023



The Applicant confirms and hereby acknowledges that as of the date of this Application, the Applicant
is in substantial compliznce with all provisions of Arlicle 18-A of the New York General Municipal
Law, including, but not limited to, the provision of Section 859-a and Section 862(1) of the New York
General Municipal Law.

The Applicant and the individual executing this Application on behalf of Applicant acknowledge that
the Agency and its counsel will rely on the representations and covenants made in this Application
when acting hereon and hereby represents thal the statéments made herein do not contain eny untrue
statement of a material fact and do not omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
contained herein not misleading.

STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF CATTARAUGUS } 55

i‘/r';'jf{,'ﬁ LA rzy fﬂﬂ[_htﬁ'ﬁh&ng first duly sworn, depases and says:
e Y ]

1y

That I am the ybrwing s 4" (Corporate Office) of _ (" L & blee v Lime  (Applicant)
and that 1 am duly authorized on behalf of the Applicant to bind the Applicant.

That [ have read the attached Application, I know the contents thereof, and that o the best of my
knowledge and belief, this Application and the contents of this Application are truee, accurate and
complele.

£ m\&lﬁ\

{Signature of Offices)-

I8 Rev: November 2023



Attachment B; CCIDA Insurance Requirements

COUNTY OF CATTARAUGUS INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(Insurance Specifications as of Movember 1, 2022)

A summary of CCIDA insurance requirements follows. Please note that insurance is to be provided by the
Company and/or Project owner after Board approval and prior to utilization of CCIDA financial assistance,
and shall be maintained during the term of any applicable Agent Agreement and/or Leaze Agreement by amd
between the CCIDA and the Company.

During the term of an Agent Agreement andfor a Lease Apreement entered into with the County of Cattaranpus
Industrial Development Agency an ACORD 25-Certificate of Liability Insurance and ACORD 855 NY-New

York Construction Certificate of Liability Addendum shall be provided evidencing the following msurance is
currently maintained and in force with an insurance carmer approved to do business in the State of New York and
maintaining an A.M, Best Rating of A- or better showing County of Cattaraugus Industrial Development Agency
as Certificate Holder. It is our suggestion that you share these requircments with your current insurance agent,
broker or iInsurance company.

Acceptable Certificates of Insurance shall indicate the following minimal coverage, limits of insurance, policy
numbers and policy effective and expiration dates.

Commercial General Liability: Agent and subcontractors shall provide such coverage on an occcurrence hasis for
the named insured's premises & operations and products-complefed operations. Blanket Contractual Liahility
provided within the "insured contract” definition may not be excluded or restricted in any way. Property damage to
work performed by subcontractors may not be excloded or restricted nor shall the Additional Insured's coverage for
claims involving injury to employees of the Mamed Insured or their subcontractors be excluded or restricted. The
"insured contract” exception to the Employers Liability exclusion also may not be removed or restricted in any way.

These coverages are 10 be properly evidenced by checking the approprigte box(es} on the ACORD B535-NY
Construction Certificate of Liability Addendum's Information Section, Items G, H, [ and L. Policy shall have
attached Designated Location(s) General Aggregate Limit CG 25 04 endorsement.

Limits expressed shall be po less than:

General Aggrepate 32,000,000
Products-Completed Operations Aggregate £2,000,000
Per Ocourmrence 31 000, D00
Personal & Adverlising Injury $1,000,000
Fire Damage Liabality § 100,000
Medical Payments {per person) 3 5,000

County of Cattaraugus Industdal Development Agency shall be mamed as Additional Insured per 150 Form CG
20 26-Additional Insured Designated Person or Organization o provide coverage for the Additional Insured.
Coverage shall apply on a Primary & Non-Contributory basis. All insurance required of the Compary shall waive
any right of subrogation of the insurer against any person insured under such policy, and waive any right of the
insurer to any off-set or counterclaim or any other deduction, whether by attachment or otherwise, in respect of any
hability of any person insured under such policy

ACORD 355 NY-New York Construction Certificate of Liability Insurance: [f is nof uncommeon for insurers
to modify the standard 50 policy lenguage with endorsements that result in modifications to language preferred
by the nsurer. This addendum is required to supplement the ACORD 25-Certificate of Liability Insurance with
additional information that provides a more detailed expression of the types of coverage required. Specifically
required coverages may be excluded or limited by the attachment of exclusionary or limitation endorsements. This

19 Reov: Movembser 2023



addendum provides the insurer the ability to cenlify coverage provided by the ahsence of such exclusionary or
limiting modifications,

Blanket Additional Insured endorsement to include — Owner, Lessees or Contractors = Automatic Staus For Other
Parties When Required in Wrillen Construction Agréement — Wording should include any other person or
organization you arc required to add as an additional insured under the contract or agreement {Paragraph 2 of CG
20 38 04 13 or equivalent).

Any scheduled person or organization section of the additional insured endorsement containing wording other than
designated names shall not be accepted,

Automobile Liability: Business Auto Liability with limits of at least §1,000,000 each accident. Business Auto
coverage must include coverage for linbility ansing out of all owned, leased, hired and non-owned automobiles.

County of Cattaraugus Industrial Development Agency shall be included as Additional Insured on a Primary &
MNon-Contributory basis on the auto policy. All insurance required of the Company shall waive any nght of
subrogation of the insurer against any person insured under such policy and waive any right of the insurer to any
off-set or counterclaim or any other deduction, whether by attachment or otherwise, in respect of any liability of
any person insured under such policy,

Umbrella/Excess Liability: Commercial Umbrells or excess liability for & limit of at least 35000000 per
occurrence with a 535,000,000 Apgrepate, Coverage should respond on a follow-form basis and excess over the
aforementioned underlying policy limits. County of Cattaraugus Industrial Development Agency shall be nemed
as Additional Insured. Coverage shall apply on a Primary & Non-Contnibutory basis.

Workers Compensation/Disability Insurance:

i) The Company and'or Project Owner shall provide cvidence of insurance and maintain Workcrs
Compensation/Tisability insurance as reguired by statute. County of Cattaraugus Industrial Development
Agency shall be named as the Certificate Holder,

i} Accepted Forms:

Workers Compensation Forms DBL (Disability Benefits Law) Forms
ﬁ'E-—EIIEﬂ]I___ i ECI'."E"E:I. tion CE-200 Exemplion
| C-105.2 | Commercial Insurer DB-120.1 | Inswrers
51-12 Self-Insurer DRB-155 Self-Insured
GE1=-105.2 | Group Self-Tnsured
L-26.3 Mew York State
Insurance Fund

If the Company and/or Project owner have no employees, the Company and/or Project owner shall
provide a completed and signed Form CE-200 or later revision, which is found on the New York State

Workers Compensation Board website: www.web.nv.govl. This form is to be completed on-line, printed,
and signed,
CCIDA Address: All evidence of insurance shall be sent to:
County of Cattarangus [Industrial Development Agency

9 East Washington Street
Ellicottville, NY 14731

20 Rev: November 20231



Attachment C: CCIDA Artorney Fee Schedule

CCTDA Attorney Feos:

! Project Amount | Standand Agency Counsel Fee
==3499 000 55,000
<=3 500,000 - < $309 909 £7.500
=81M - <31 9099 900 59,000
=520 - <$3,999 999 515,000
=AM - < 53,799,000 20,000 _—

=55, 800,00 173 of Agency Administrative Fee

{ourrently [0625% of the Project
Amoumn

If a project application is withdrawn or does not close, the applicant i responsible for any costs incwmed by the
agency on behalf of the project.

g | Fev: Movermber 2023



Image Mate Online

Mavigation Tools GIS Map Tax Maps | ORPS Links Assessment Info

Halp ConfactlUs Login

Commercial
P Municipality of V. Allegan
Property Info J pal ty sany
J i s — —
ventory | swis: | o4z001 Tax ID: 84.037-1-24.2/100
Improvamanis !
| Taxinfo | Tax Map ID / Property Data
| Tax Calculator |
tatus: Active [Rall Section: | Whally Exem
[___Report laddress: 3260 N Seventh St
| Comparables roperty 633 - Aged -  [Site Property |633 - Aged -
lass: home Class: home
Igwnamhlp
ode:
Sile; Com 1 In Ag. District: Mo
Parcel Hisl Zoning Code: (- Bldg, Style: Mot Applicable
Nelghborhood: | 20314 - School District: ﬂlﬂ“ﬂ:"ﬂﬁ
IL:HHI 0.04 Equalization .
reage/size; | Rate:
Land Taial 2024 -
ent: 292430 lnccessment |$3,000,000
Full Market  |2024 -
fue; 4,918,033
|Deed Book: | 28301 d Page: |9002
Girid East; TIT6eG2E If.’-ri-d Marih; ThZ2447
Special Districts for 2024
Descripfion Unite | Percent | Type | Value
FD201-Fire district 1 0 0% 0
Land Types
Type Size
Leased Land 0.01 acres

Phatographs

No Photo Availabie

Documents

Mo documents found
for this parcel

Maps

CLICK HERE for
infcrmation
on purchasing by maps.

View Tax Map

Pin Proparty on
G5 Map




4 .

View fewer services J

Photos of Field of Dreams Senior Living

Tour Field of Dreams Senior Living |

The best way to get to know a community is by scheduling a tour. See the facilities,
meet the staff and residents, and get a feel firsthand what it's like to live at Field of
Dreams Senior Living.

Who are vou looking for?

Full Name



Fie

;
o
. o (httpsiheldofdreamsallegany com)
e AN

=

Field of Dreams owner, Nick Ferreri, gives an update on land development on
WIVE Channel 4 Buffalo!

B February 7, 202 4{httpe i fiekdefdreamsallegsmycom/ 202402070

Watch the segment at the link below!

hitpe:fwaivb.comfdaytime- buffaliodaytime-buffaio- an- 31- 20241 hetpsshesmawivb. coidaytime-tuft s loddsytime -buftala-

[ar=31-200024



"‘-LF 5 M q ihttps:dheldoidreamealleganycom)

Cottages

Cuar cottages are a one-ol-a-kind cpooriunity.

These haemes are perfectly dessgned far you to devensine whille siill having plenty of space to e
independently and stay active In your daihy e

Wiith meet o stip or stair n the cotfages you can feel confident ta grow alder with nosafety concerra or
modifications needad,

Freld af Draare Senlar Living Indepandent Living Cottages

Living in Style
Qe 1450 sqirare-foot cottages have all vou n=ed undesr one roaf;

= Twobedrooms

= Thwa full bathrooms, one with i Faot walk-in shower
= Highty efficient in-flosar heating

= Central air cornditioning

= Hitchen with all apoliances included



Ald-compiiant doonsays

Living room with a cozy fireplace
Bll-seamen sunroom

Cinvered frart parch and resr patis
First floor laundry and starage
Owersized 24" % 25 v car garage

& & ® ¥ & &

Live More, Worry Lass!

= MNever pull & weed er shevel smow again - included in the Land leass, we handia 301 land
mairtenanco.

* Asecure irvestment of your resources - when it's time to mave an, we buy the house beck far
it= original price. Fumnds ga back to youw or your estate.

" Chrml:tﬂllﬂr.ﬂmw::mwrﬂwhhﬂihrvm—ne'mlhﬂy:hapwmheﬂh.
o ang ciown the road.

Three houses currently available!

Plan the next new chapter of life at Field of
Dreams!

At Figld of Dreams, we understand the Intricacies of your unique sihation
Wil are committed to belping vouw and your |aved sre make the smoothest.
satest, and most comfortable transition to our senior Fving campus.

COMTACT US
[/CONTACTY)

{htt
psf
Doy
w.fa
ceb
ook,

o

fiel

(714) 43000
F260 Street
Al 14704
e

gan
¥)

HOHD  ASHITEC UMINGANGYENDIN AR DAYFROGEAME  COTTRGES aRfnfl = COMIACT = ROG

5 B0EY Fledd of Direarrs. Al rights reservsd. Crested by Quiked Sourred, s



g? & H.S (https.ifhetdafdreamseallegany.com)

Field of Dreams supports Alzhelmers cure research at University of Florida

W March 4, 2024httosoldofireamsallegany,comy 202403044

The: Liniversity of Florida (LIF) researchers have recently been awarded a3 substantial grant, ameunting to milions of dollars, (o
canduct pioneering studies on Alzheimess disaase. This remarkable achievement nat ondy highlights the cutting-edge research being
urdertaken at UF but also underscores the impartance of finding effective treatments for this chall=nging condition.

Thils arnouncement aligns perfectly with our mission to provide sxceptionad care and suppert to our residents, and alignirg and
supparting every avenue that could Iead to better treatments and ubtimately, a cure fior Alzheimer's disease,

Head mare at the link below about Field of Dreams owner, Mick Farmeni's, imvolvement in finding at cure with the schentists and
resgarchers at University of Florida

wrargy. floridapolitics. comdarchives #4358l budget-conference-uf-reserarchers-soore-milliors -to-s tudy-aizheimers- buriosy=/
thetpeifwsw floridapolitics. comfarchivesf &4 2 24 0-budpet -conference-uf-researchers-score-millions-to-study-aldheimer s-f useysi

{htt
ps:/
Harw

w.fa
ceb
ook,

om
/el
i
A2E0 Strest
wﬁm

gan
y)

g ASITROLA RO ARDMESORY CARF  OAF PAOORME  DOTERGEE  ARDLT = DORIRET = B0

2 2023 Field of Dreams. All nghts resersed, Creabed by Sulted S




¥

Fieim

=

E‘EEFE AME [httpsiffisldofdreamsallegamycom|

| ifestyle

Live the good Hie at Field of Orasme.

Savar life's mare relased momenls in the camdort of our inclusive senioe living campus. Beautiful
vhewys, Carirg stall Wonderful campam.

Amenities

@)>

Private Suites
Find comfiert in a Drivate, ore-ted suite just for you.

=Tt
-

Ehared Suftes

U



Share @ twosbad suite whth your wife, Fushand, sr friend.

el

Lounges
{zet cozy by the fireside, read a book, arwatch TV

U7

S

Freshly Hade Heats
Enjoy a three deficlous meats a day prepared by our skaff,

<

Fimess Coptar
Caek AL, Siay active. MMaintain & healtiy and hapoy lifestyle.



()\_'

Beauty Zzfon & Spa
Look and feel beautiful with op-site salon services.

Beligious Services
Freedy practioe your Faith with ene of cur different weskthy serdees.

Socialization
Enjoy the company of residents with scheduled activities,



Ficnie Favillian
Cefebirate sunny days with a fresh plonic under the pavilion.

A

Fizhing Ponds
Fish with friends and ramily st two fully stocked ponds.

Sl

=

Paved Footpaths
Taloe 8 Febsurety strall alongside the scenic foothills of Allegany.



Transportation
Get aquick and comfartabla ride 1o aff-site appaintments,

Plan the next new chapter of life at Field of
Dreamst

At Field of Dreams, we understand the intricacies of your uriguse situation.
W= are commitied fo helping you and veur lowed ane make the smeothest,
sufiess; and most comfartable transitien to 3 senior living campus

CONTACT LS
[FCONTACT!)

(htt

F
ceb
ook,

m
/el

718)
3380 Streat
| .4 14706

Ean
¥)

HIVE  ASRTIEDLM ANDMES DAY CARE DAY PROGRAME.  DOTTAGRS  ABCLT » COREECT »  BUOG

= 02 Field of Dreams, &A1 rights ressrved, Created by Quiled Sodrred (bigsdtheouitiedsouireloom)



114

-

E

s Me thttpsfieldoldreamaallepars cam)

Assisted Living and Memory Care

The switch bo assisted Geing i5 sometimes met with hesitation. Many peaple feel that mowing ta 3n assisted
living facilivy will be isalatimg ansd lansty. At Fisld of Dreams, owr mibsshan |5 b make our reskdents feel
cornected, loved, and cared for on a daify basis.

Assisted Living Services

Active saniars whe could benefit from day-to-day tazks thrive in assisted [Pang 2t Fleld of Drears—a
CommLnity where they can eruly Aourish.

Qur youthful méndset and eenphasis on secial sctivities stimulabes both the mind and body In ways that
homa care oF nursing Pames slmsly can:

= Vibrant gocial commurity

= Pereona care assistance

Customized welness programs

= Medicatian amd healthosre assistance
Schieduled transportalion

——— = . e

Mermory Care Services

Wie understand that caring for those with Alzheimer's disease or other momory impairment [ssues
requires sxira patience, upderstanding, and compassian

Qur residents get all of that and mare with owr specialized memony care services, Wa offer the
apparlunity to fee| independent while mairtaining a high lewel of safety and cane:

« Cartifved cementia pracriticaers
= Specially trained staff—avallalbie 247
= Secured ealrances




Licensed and Certified Staff

We're proud La be theorly atull care homs in the Southern Tiee with licersed awsisted fving and
advaniced needs memory care. P emeres yau and vour loved anes gel-

= Themast qualifed staffl
= 24/7 personal and medical assistance

= Care, regardiess of your budgst

Respite Services

Arg yau the primary caregiver to a friend ar family member and need a fe'w days to yourself to take
same Bma o resat and rechargs or to fravel for anevent orvacation, but need care services bodo so?

Respibe stays are o great o plion for caregivers Lo safely step away fram their ceregiver responsioliities
and know that their loved one 8 in good hands.

‘Whe offer respite stays all year kang and can range in length from a week, & month, or several menths -
yau might even decide you lie i enough ba 9tay on as 2 resident]

LEARM MORE
{HTTPSAFIELDOFDREAMSALLEGANY.COM/MAY-PROGRAMSS]

Plan the next new chapter of life at Fleld of
Dreams!
At Feld of Dreams, we understand the irtricacies af your unsgue Sibuation.
Wiz are commitied o hedping you and your foved one make the smoothest,
satest, and most comfortable transition toour semiar living campus.

COMNTACT U
[FCOMTACT!)



:?%ﬁ: LMe {httmsfieldofdreamsallegany.comi

Adult Day Care and Socialization Program
Dur daily respite pregram s set inoa cozy home style environmens, snd runs Monday theough Friday from
Bl B, — 230 P,

‘W affer guests a variety of dally activities and entertainment, the oppartisity to sociali e with pesrs,
deficious meals and snacks, and provide personal care for those that need it

Guests can even enjoy the pampering they deserve in our full salon or boak a massage!

Peace of Mind for Caregivers

Carcgheers - this s your chance ta fale some time fo yourselves withaut any Pesitation, You can retas
Inoeating your |owed ocne is being cared for and enjoying thesr time withus!

This program sdds reesningld experiences tovour [oved one's day and ghves you the tme vou need to
recharge, and strengthens your relationship with 3 walcome reunion at the end of the day.

Program Details

= Pl Doy (B by - 598

»  Half Dey (4 hours) = 368

= Additionsl Hour(s) - $10 per hour

= Hair appomkrenls e Massages svailabha By appeirtrment

Try it out! Join us for & complimantany coffee haur, lunch, or anactedty atno cost.




f "

[ 'wes able to review the Agreespent to be Contacied, Terms of Uss, and Povecy Podicy,

& Get Costs

.|

A Read Reviews

.

# Get Financing

Description of Field of Dreams Senior Living

Nestled in the Allegany hills of Cattaraugus County, we offer independent and
assisted living options, including memory care support, respite care, and adult day
services for seniors who require help with things like personal care and medications,



= Attentive to your needs,

* Available to provide support.

+ Able to assist with Medicaid qualification when it is time,
* [nterested in your unigue circumstance.

* Assessable and responsive to your concerns.

* Honest about what we can and cannot provide.
* Sensitive to the monumental transition that is before you.

Field of Dreams Senior Living Amenities

Financing & Payment Options

Rent And Care Fees
Accepts Insurance
Medicaid Accepted
Accepts Check Payments

NNA K

Diet & Nutrition
v Special Diets/Dietary Accommodations

Guests
v Guest Parking

Inside Amenities

+ Entertainment Venues
v Cable/Satellite TV in Common Areg

Parking Options
+ Parking Lot

Safety & Security
v (Gated Facility

Therapies



"

Games Hobbies & Recreation

v Tabletop & Other Games/Programs
Arts & Crafts Activities/Programs
Literary Activities/Programs
Educational Activities/Programs
Music Activities/Programs
Facilitated Field Trips/Outings
Horticultural Activities

NN ANAK

Dining

" Guest Meals
v Communal Dining

Health Services

v Medication Reminders

On-Site Services

v Religious Services
+"  Veterans Affairs (VA) Aid Assistance

Personal Care

+"  Personal Care Assistants
v  Cooking services

Specialized Staff
+  Nurse on Staff {(Part fime)

Resident information
v Offers Respite Care



'@ .

Fitness & Wellness Programs

" Fitness & wellness facilities/equipment
~  Salon Services

Housekeeping & Maintenance

+  Laundry Services
+ Linen Services
+"  Housekeeping Services

Outside Amenities

" (zarden
v Walking and Hiking Areas

Room Amenities

" Wifi/Internet In Unit
v Cable/Satellite In Unit

Staff Training & Qualifications
v Staff trained in Medication Management

Pets
" No Peis

Additional Amenity Information

+"  Housing: private room with shared bathroom

+  Dining: Private Dining Room for family gatherings

" Special Comment: If you're ready to find peace of mind, Field of Dreams is the
perfect place to savor your golden years while still enjoying a full and active
daily routine in a vibrant soecial setting.



Brandon B, Cotirell i
B Hodgson ! |

Huodgsou Fuss LLP
Tel: 5836153938

July 11", 2024

VIA EMAIL

County of Cattaraugus Industrial Development Agency
P.O. Box [ 749, % East Washington Streot

Ellicottville, New York 14731

Attention: Corey E. Wiktor, Executive Director
Corey . clliosid pmmil com

RE:  Olean Town Centre LLC — Application for Financial Assistance

Dear Mr. Wiktor:

We represent Olean Town Centre LLC (the “Company™). Prior to our representation of
the Company, the Company submitted to the County of Cattaraugus Industrial Development
Agency (the “Agency™) an Application for Financial Assistance (the “Application™).

Dunng the Agency’s review of the Application, and related discussions with respect to
structuring a “straight lease™ transaction, you have asked for the Company to provide supplemental
information with respect to the Application, particularly with respect to a description of the project
and the payment-in-lieu-of-taxes (“PILOT™) structure. Please allow for this letier to serve as the
Apphicant’s response to your request for supplemental information.

As previously discussed, to facilitate the overall development of the Olean Mall (the
“Overall Project™), the Company will subdivide the Overall Project into six (6) scparate tax
parcels (each a “Lot”} as shown on the enclosed overall development plan. By creating separate
Lats the Company has positioned itself to pursue development opportunities on a Lot-by-Lot basis,
which will enable the Company to maximize the potential of each Lot over the next five (5) vears.

For reference, the chart below summarizes the acreage and assessed value for each Lot:

Lot Number Acreage  Assessed Value

l b | 85,000
. 0.9 £30.000
3 1.1 $35,000
4 3.1 550,000
5 16,4 F230,000
6 2.9 $20,000
Tha Crsrandy Binkling, SUB Pean Sreal Sl i00 | Bulass piesy Yok 143024000 | 76652 4500 | HodpsonSoss cren

EF 0 BelDia 0 i Jdesmsp 0 i TE o 8 Pavd Geah 0 Moo Sawioin Spgigr e



Praject Descriptions

At a high-level, the following ame proposed descriptions for each of the projects fo be

undertaken on each of the Lots. We note that although each proposed Lot project is broadly
described, any project to be pursued by the Company will be 2 "project” as defined in Section 854
of the General Municipal Law (i ¢. manufacturing, warchousing, research, commercial, rencwable
energy, industrial purposes, refail, apartments or recreational facility).

Lot 1: the construction and equipping of an approximatsly 3,000 square foot single-use
building, together with related site improvements and other, ancillary facilities and
improvements, including landscaping and parking. The estimated cost of the proposed
project on Lot 1 is approximately 32,830,000, broken down as follows: (i) $2,500,00 in
building construction; (it} $30.000 in soft costs; and (ii1) $300,000 in non-manufacturing

equipment.

Lot 2: the construction and equipping of an approximately 3,000 square foot single-use
building, together with related site improvements and other, ancillary facilities and
improvements, including landscaping and parking. The estimated cost of the proposed
project on Lot 2 is approximately $2,830,000, broken down as follows: (i) $2,500,00 in
building construction; (i) $30,000 in soft costs; and (iii) $300,000 in non-manufacturing

equipment.

Lot 3: the construction and equipping of an approximately 3,000 square foot single-use
building, together with refated site improvements and other, ancillary facilities and
improvements, including landscaping and parking. The estimated cost of the proposed
project on Lot 3 is approximately $2,830,000, broken down as follows: (i} $2,500,00 in
building construction; (i) $30,000 in soft costs; and (iii) $300,000 in non-menufacturing
equipment,

Lot 4: (i) the partial demolition of the former Bon-Ton anchor building (estimated cost of
$595,000); (if) the interior renovation of approximately 20,500 square feet of the former
Bon-Ton anchor building (estimated cost of $5,000,000) for ene or more “projects”; (7ii)
roof replacement (estimated cost of $344,5000; (iv) new HVAC (estimated cost of
S100,000%; (v) paving and sinping of the parking lets (estimated cost of $100,000); {vi)
landscaping, reotientation of existing driveways and installation of new entrance pylon
sign (estimated cost of $275,000); and (vii) engineering and architectural services related
to the foregoing (estimated cost of $100,000). The total estimated project costs for Lot 4

would be approximately $6.514,500.

Lot 3: a multi-phased project involving (&) (1) the demolition of former fenant spaccs
{estimated cost of $342,565); (ii) the replacement of interior “common area” ceilings
{estimated cost of $126,0007; (i) fagade restoration (estimated cost af $200,000); (1v) roaf
replacement (estimated cost of $1,100,00{); and {¥) engineering and architectural services
related to the forepoing (estimated cost of $100,000) and (b) (i) the interior renovation of
common areas and new tenant buildouts (estimated cost of 511,156,250); (it} the equipping
of commeon areas and new tenant spaces (estimated cost of $2,000,000); and (jii) soft costs

The Guaranly Buldiog. 140 Paan Sveal Sule 190 | Bulala dls YO0k 14203-80600 | T6 8554000 | HoggsonSiuss.com

Afany 9 Suilao 0 SRS Jerndy W NEw Yark B Per Boooh M Reomesin 0 Samioga Spamgs o Tosva




related to the foregoing (estimated cost of $400,000). The total estimated project costs for

Lot 5 would be approximately $16,224,815.

s Lot 6: the consiruetion and equipping of an approximately 35,000 square foot building
(podium style construction), together with related site improvemnents and other, ancillary
facilities and improvements, including landscaping and parking. The estimated cost of the
proposed praject on Lot 6 is approximately §9,000,000. '

Job Creation 7 Retenfion

The company commits 1o creating one (1) FTE job for the umatllpmjnct - said job will be
created either by the company, Umbrella Property Management LLC, Ciminelli or such other
entity as the company may choose as property manager of the averall project.

Reiaif Trade Facility

One or more of the projects may involve 4 facility that (&) constitutes more than one-third
of the project cost on such Lot and (b) is “primarily used in muking retail sales to customers who
persenally visit sech facilities™ (as such phrase is used in Section B62(2(a) of the General
MMunicipal Law). Accerdingly, for each Lot we would request that the Agency determitie thal (x)
the predominant purpose of any retzil trade facility located on such Lot would be to make available
goods or services which would not, but for the project on such Lot, be reasonably accessible to the
residents of Olean, New York because of a lack of reasonably accessible retail trade facilities
offering such goeds or services; and (y) each Lot is located in a “highly distressed area™.

PILOT Structure

The proposed PILOT strucrure is a deviation from the Agency's Uniform Tax Exemplion
Policy because we are requesting a Brownfield Redevelopment Project style PILOT, despite the
Owerall Project qualifying as an Adaptive Reuse Project.

ln addition, we are requesting that although all six (&) Lots be subject to a “master PILOT™,
we are requesting that each Lot have its own fourteen (14) year PILOT, the term of which will
commenes an the eaclier of (a) the date on which the Company elects to cormmence the PILOT as
to such Lot and (b) the date which is five (5] years after the closing of the straight lease transaclion.

By way of example only, if the closing occurs on October 1, 2024, then all Lots would
commence their respective PILOT (i.e. the Lot would be subject to a real property tax abatement)
no later than October 1, 2029, Between October 1, 2024 and October 1, 2029, as to any one or
more Lots, the Company could commence its PILOT (and until it commences the PILOT, the
Company will pey full taxes) — so, for example, on October 1, 2026 the Company could commence
the PILOT term for Lots 1 and 2, but continue to pay full taxes (i.e. no real property tax abatemert)
for Lots 3, 4, 5 and 6, and then on October 1, 2028, the Company could commence the PILOT
termis for Lots 3, 4, 5 and 6. In that scenario, for Lots 1 and 2 the PILOT would apply from 2026
through 2040 (14 years) and for Lots 3, 4, 5 and 6 the PILOT would apply from 2028 through

2042 (14 years).

Tha Guaranly Susldng. 140 Peact Siés, Suls 100 | Bufalo, Few York 142024040 | 7186554000 | HodgsaiPauge com

Ay 0 BobAke T A JBey 0 WS PR 0 Paw Baac B Anchawler B Sambage Sonemt A T




Although the PILOT would not take elfect at the closing of the straight lease transaction,
the Company would require that sales tax exemptions and mongage recording tax exemptions fou

all six (6) Lots be made available at closing.

Transfer of PILOT

As previously discussed, My, Ingrassia’s preference is to own all six (6) Lots for the
duration of the PILOT term ay described in this fetter under PILOT STRUCTURE However,

there are certain end users {7.e. potential tenants) that may vequire that it acquire 3 Lot, a3 opposed
to leasing a Lot from the Company. We would request that if the Company uses cotmmercially
reasonable efforts to structure &n "end user transaction” as a lease, but ulbmately sells a Lot to an
end wser o effcctuate a polential project on a Lot that the Agency will agree not to unreasonably
condition, withhold or delsy its consent to any trapsfer of PILOT benefits to such user,

As part of the Company's agreement fo use commearcially reasonable efforts 1o structure

end user transactions as leases, the Compeny agrees that it will provide the Agency with market
data (to the exten! available} demonstating that the end user has historically acquired {and not

leased) property to be used by it for its operations.

Should yau have any further questions regarding the Application or the information set
forth herein, or require edditional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Very Truly Yours,

e ’.:ﬂ'.- 7 i
B9l
Brandon Comell

Enc.

Robert Murray {bmurray/@harrisbesch com)

Thz Caraniy Baking &0 Paowl Sheel. Seaia Y | Bofso Meyr Yok 10202400 | 305 S5E 40NN | -HodpeoPisg Lo

Slai] Siefny w es fapas) Thase i M Bl Haaih el iigt O Dwanus Sl Vwrgaagy



PUBLIC HEARING SCRIPT

Olean Town Centre LLC andfor
Individual(s) or Affiliate(s),
Subsidiary(ies), or Entity(ies) formed or
to be formed on its behalf Project

Public Hearing to be held on August 20, 2024 at 9:00 a.m.,
at the Olean City Municipal Building, Mayor's Conference Room, 101 East State Street,
Olean, New York 14760

ATTENDANCE:

See Attached Sheet

[ ] Members of the General Public

X L. WELCOME: Call tp Order and Identity of Hearing Officer.

Hearing Officer: Welcome. This public hearing is now open; it is 9:06 am. My name is
Corey R. Wiktor. | am the Executive Director of the County of
Cattaraugus Industrial Development Agency, and [ have been designated
by the Agency to be the hearing officer to conduct this public hearing.
This public hearing is being live-streamed and made accessible on the
Apency’'s website at www.cattcoida.com.

X 2. PURPOSE: Purpose of the Hearing.

Hearing Officer: We are here 1o hold the public hearing on the Olean Town Centre LLC
and/or Individual(s) or Affiliate(s), Subsidiary(ies), or Entity(ies) formed
or to be formed on its behalf. This public hearing is being recorded and
will be transcribed for the Board Members of the Agency for their review
and comments before they take any further action. We have a sign in
sheet for anyone who would like to participate in this public hearing either
by presenting oral comments of we would be happy to take writien
statements. Notice of this hearing appeared in Olean Times Herald on
Friday, August 9, 2024,

X 3 PROJECT SUMMARY: Description of Project and Contemplated Agency Benefits.

Hearing Officer: The proposed project (the "Project”) consists of: (i) the acquisition by the
Agency of a leasehold interest in certain property located at 400-459
Morth Union Street in the City of Olean, Cattaraugus County, New York
and all other lands in the City of Olean where, by license or easement or




other agreement, the Company or its designees are making improvements
that benefit the Projeet (the “Land™), (ii) partial demolition of the former
Bon-Ton facility and reconstruction andfor renovation of approximately
20,500 sq. ft. for one or more retail related uses; the construction of three
3,000 sq. ft. single-use buildings: construciion of an approximately 35,000
sq. ft. podium style facility {the “Improvements™); and (1ii) the acquisition
by the Company in and around the Improvements of cerftain items of
machinery, equipment and other tangible personal property (the
*Equipment”; and. together with the Land and the Improvements, the
“Project Facility™). The Facility will be initially operated and/or managed
by the Company.

The Agency will acquire a leasehald interest in the Faeility and lease the
Facility back to the Company. The Company will operate the Facility
during the term of the lease. At the end of the lease term, the leasehold
interest will be terminated. The Agency contemplates that it will provide
financial assistance to the Company for qualifying portions of the Project
in the form of sales and use tax exemption benefits, mortgage recording
tax benefits, and real property tax abatement benefits. With respect to the
contemplated real property tax abatement, the Company requested that the
Agency enter into up to six scparate payment in lieu of tax agreements
having terms that deviate from the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption
Policy standard Cualified Commercial Facility (Renovation) PILOT and
CQualified Commercial Facility {New Construction) PILOT by extending
the term by six years, with respect to the Qualified Commercial Facility
(Renovation) PILOT, and by one year, with respect 1o the Qualified
Commercial Facility (New Construction) PILOT, with adjusted
Percentage of Exemption, as follows:

PILOT Year Percentage of Exemption

1 IJm:mgy 5 100%
B 90%%

BO%h

70%

60%

50%

50%

0%

er in which the hearing will proceed.

Hearing Officer: All those who have joined this conference call will be given an

opportunity to make statements and/or comments on the Project if they so
desire.



Minutes of the Public Hearing will be transcribed and posted on the
Agency's website (www.caticoidacom). Additional information can be
obtained from, and written comments may be addressed to: Corey R.
Wiktor, Executive Director, County of Cattaraugus Industrial
Development Agetcy, 9 East Washington Street, P.O. Box 1749,
Ellicottville, MNew York 14731; Telephone: 716-699-2005 and

electronically at corevi@cattcoida com or [nfof@eaticoida.com.
X 5 PUBLIC COMMENT: Hearing Officer gives the Public an opportunity to speak.

Hearing Officer: Those interested in making a statement or comment will be called upon.
Please begin by stating your name and address; if you are representing a
company, please identify the company. I request that speakers keep
statements and‘or comments to 5 minutes, and if possible, 3 minutes,

The Hearing Moderator introduces each participate in the order they registered for this
meeting.

Mayor Aiello: The project is a very positive project for downtown and it is the last big piece of
property that needs to be renovated for new businesses and I think the developer has a great track
record in what he has done not only in Irondequoit, but in other areas and would encourage the
Board to vote yes on this project.

Mr. Smith: [ agree with what Mayor Aiello just said, I think it is a great project, the developer
has done a great job with his other projects but I do have a couple of questions. How much of a
praject is it to develop the project?

Mr. Wiktor: The proposed Application states $40,229,315 and those costs are approximate so
that is the level of redevelopment when it is built out from the start to the conclusion in totality.

Mr. Smith: Wow, an empty building that could sit there for years if it doesn't get developed then
the County will get stuck with it and we are going to be tearing it down so this project is a great
thing for Olean,

Mr. Smith: There are rumors going around about housing, this is not a low-income housing, it is
moderate housing, right with the rents I was told is $700 to $1,000 is that true?

Mr. Wiktor: Yes, to my knowledge, | can answer in concept to that as the housing piece is not
part of the IDA project, but since we are doing the SEQR, we certainly have the information. To
what we know to date by information put up by People Inc., it is not low income housing in this
case, it is what they are considering a workforce housing which | believe are 50 units and then
there are 10 units that would serve some sort of capacity of challenged individuals that can still
live on their own through the mission of People Inc. It is not a specific voucher or type of
housing program, in my opinion with my information, it is workforce housing with rates that are
consistent based off the median income levels of that program for the City of Olean so it is a
targeted program that would quality for Olean with workforce housing, based on the rents, |
don't mean to call on the City, but 15 that basically the context of it?



Mayor Aidello: Yes. it is housing and that we need that type of housing in the City.
Ms. Keri Kerper: A market study was done and it shows the need.

Mr. Wiktor: What leads us to any and all projects, whether it is master plans or empire state
development awards, there are a number of parties wanting to be involved in supporting this
project. Often when & community or a city revises it's comprehensive plan or its redevelopment
whether it is the brownfield, there are specific groups which say how can you create density and
warkforce housing that may not be here to allow residents to live and work downtown and have
them utilize the North Union Street and corridors of East State Street and West State Street so
really 1t 15 bringing people downtown very similar to the Manny Hanny building and how well
that has done in brng people here. We know from a general point of view of cconomic
development in the County that serves 32 fowns, 9 villages and 2 cities that housing is always a
challenge and [ can tell you when we are working with companies whether they are here or
looking to invest or come to the County, obviously the City of Olean being our largest commerce
base, companies are now looking al quality of life aspects, education, recreation, trails and
housing. It's not so much taxes and regulations, it is how do | reeruit people and what sort of
amenities can 1 offer, can [ walk to school, can I po to a university, so it is very important, a
fabric of any city, town or village.

Mr. Smith: May | ask you about the PILOT program? There are rumors going around and |
heard 30 years, which [ am against 30 years. What would the PILOT program be for and for
how long? | understand for other businesses we have to give them or they are not coming.

Mr. Wiktor: I understand, the PILOT would be for 11 years, the proposed PILOT and [ think if
you look the costs of reconstruction and inflation, we hear those things on the news and this
really matters with interest rates, financing and banks doing projects now it is tuff so any sort of
benefit is really helping as without it, in my humble opinion doing these 18 vears, in today's age
the project is not going to happen. There was a recent article in the Buffalo News where they sat
down with William Paladino who is the President of Ellicott Development and really it was
touched upon if PILOTs are incentives, some have the belief that they are going to do the project
regardless, it's just corporate welfare and giving a benefit to a corporation. Many projects in
Western New York have been tabled, put off, deemed not financially sound to do because of the
rents and those payments as it's just too hard right now. You are seeing a slow down in some of
those projects that tried and true developers are saying, this is absolutely something we are
seeing across the board whether it i tourism, manufacturing and this project which is a very
unigque project of 200 plus acres in your downtown comidor, it is as big as it gets for Olean for that
size 50 obviously we understand trying to leverage as much benefit as we can because these
projects are skinny enough, and now anytime you have those increased costs, it tends to put the
project out of play. Again, it would be 11 years, as proposed.

Mr. Smith: I'm gomg back with the Mayor to this developer with what he did on the project up
on Rochester, just copy it. 1t 15 a beautiful development of what they have up there now, he took
it from like ours and built it into that, Another question, would it bring and other developments
on that property, would he be looking to bring in others?



Mr. Wiktor: Yes, absolutely. I think the big piece of this is allowing the developer to market,
now largely as SEQRized site, which is a huge piece, as well as some tax stability in a City that
is very friendly and welcoming to business and now has the ability to say now when you run
your pro-forma, when you run your construcltion costs, now you have the ability to shave off
some of those development costs for period of 11 years based on that so it is giving insurance of
your development costs in those critical years. It is allowing the project to move forward in
some instances, if not all, we run the cost benefit analysis showing the retumn on that proposed
PILOT of the return back to the taxing jurisdictions are

Mr, Smith: Does yvour [DA Board know this is going on?
Mr. Wiktor: Yes, certainly yes.

Mr. Smith: This project is bigger than [ thought it was. [f we lose this project, we will never get
anything like it again in Olean.

Mr. Wiktor; Carly, this is Corey Wiklor of the County of Cattaraugus [DA, we are the (lean
Municipal Building in the Mayor's Conference Room for the purpose of the Public Heanng.
Would you like to give any comments with respect to the proposed [DA invelvement with
redevelopment of the mall? Someone responded: Carly who works at Angelo's office will be
dialing in.

Mr. Wiktor: Mr, Smith do you have any more comments or questions?

Mr. Smith: [ think this is important stuff to let the public know and let the public know more
information on this development. When you bring in more stuff around the mall, which peeple
don’t know, I didn’t know, ["m really hoping 1t goes.

Mr. Wiktor; Certainly, it is a huge project not only 1o the City of Olean but your sales tax base,
your employment base and you are having your shop local that is everything that constitutes
MNorth Union Street, the multiple phases of Walk of Olean and compliments so much your
shopping districts.

Mr. Smith: Tunderstand giving the businesses PILOT programs, I believe right Keri?
Ms. Kerper: Yes.

Mr. Piechota: Very rarely do we get a large-scale construction project without one these days.
Originally years ago, I would get upset about it, but now it has to happen, that is the way it is
now.

Mr. Wiktor: We certainly recognize this. The answer is it 15 just challenging and we have come
through unprecedented times through global pandemic and somewhat of a banking costs now so
a lot of these developers are looking at projects they want to do. We run the cost benefit analysis
and we look at the costs and we look at our partners at Empire State Development who have 2
types of grants attached to this, obviously the City that is wanting this project fast and wanting a
developer that sought this project and kudos to the Mayor and Keri for recruiting this project.



We look at how that shapes not just new companies or prospective companies, having a vibrant
downtown is something every community and elected official is going to want.

Mr. Piechota: You are talking a $40 million project, would it be our local people doing these
jobs: electricians, plumbers etc. from right here in this area?

Mr. Wiktor: Great question Gregg. We have had multiple conversations with the developer and
everything to date which they have expressed to us is using as much local suppliers, contractors,
sub-contractors as they can and 1 firmly believe they will. It is in our languapge we require a
sense of outreach and developers have reached out to us over the last few years and we have
conngcted with the company and Angelo himself has made those connections. [ have no doubt
this would put local trades people right to work, no question about it,

Mr. Plechota: 1 know at your Board Meetings there were issues arising about the assessed value
of the property and they had questions on that. Do you have any questions on how [ arrived at
the value as | know there was mention of other properties, smaller in scale that are the same
value as the mall property. 1 would like your Board to think of it this way, if T am an investor
and | come into the City of Olean and looking to purchase a piece of property, am [ going to
purchase an already established business, with a new lease that's already been just remodeled, or
a monster that already needs tens of millions of dollars in roof, mechanicals, updates which take
away the 2 anchor tenants, which one are you going to buy for $450,0007 I'm going to buy
every single time, the small Pizza Hut, so [ wanted to get that on record for the Board.

Me. Wiktor: 1 appreciate your comment.

Mr. Piechota: | agree this is what PILOTS are made for, this project right here. A project like
this could not happen without a PILOT. The Mall is too far gone, and it's a mall. Current history
tells us what malls are doing. The bank could have called the MNate, but they didn"t because they
didn’t want the mall. The developer paid $450,000 cash to Five Star Bank to assume the nearly
$6,000.000 million dollar note, as note on the RP-5217.

Mr. Wiktor: Again, | appreciate your comments. [ think this is a wonderful oppormunity to put
this mall back into play.

Mr. Ingrassia: Mo other comments than what was already discussed unless someone has a
specific question.

Mr. Smith: Angelo, with this project is Kohl"s and JCPenney locked in on this project?

Mr. Ingrassia: When 1 purchased the property, [ extended all of the leases, including KeyBank.
So as much as you can lock someone in, yes with their lease, they are locked in as much as they

can be,
Mr. Smith: Ok, thank you.

Ms. Kerper: In addition to our local support, NYS has committed $3.25 million towards the
project and $2 million to Olean Town Centre directly and $1.25 million to the City of Olean with
our partnership. The 32 million is for the mall itself with the roof and HVAC and then the §1.25



million with the City for the democlition and restore. In addition to any local contractor that
would be hired there is an additional 30% minority woman business enterprise attached to that so
30% would be going to those whether it be a firm, suppliers or construction.

Superintendent Moms: This sounds like an amazing project. What they are struggling with is
recruitment and when we are able to recruit outside of the area for educators, we have that
conundrum about where do we find adequate housing. 1 heard some of the housing use that has
been described, is that housing only specific to People Inc. or 15 its general housing that we could
use as a marketing tool?

Mr. Wiktor: Yes, I believe 50 units are available in that workforee housing, walkable o your
campus.

-0OR-
] Hearing Officer: Wote that no one in attendance wished to make a statement or comment.

X 6. ADJOURNMENT:

As there were no further statements and/or comments, the Hearing Officer closed the
public hearing at 9:48 a.m.



SIGN IN SHEET
PUBLIC HEARING

Public Hearing to be held on August 20, 2024 at 9:00 a.m,

at the Olean City Municipal Building, Mayor’s Conference Room, 101 East State Street,

(lean Town Centre LLC and/or Individual(s) or Affiliate(s),
Subsidiary{ies), or Entity{ies) formed or to be formed on its behalf

Olean, New York 14760

Project Location:  400-45% North Union Street, Olean, New York 14760

X box to
speak/
Name Company and/or Address comment
Mr. Gregg Prechota City of Olean Assessor X
City of Olean X
Ms. Keri Kerper
Mayor of City of (lean b4
Mayor William Aiello
Olean School Supenntendent X
Genelle Morris
Cattaraugus County Legislature X
Rick Smith
Steve Teachman Canaraugus County Lepislature

Angelo 1,

DNean Centre Mall




Full Erviromirierial Assessinent Formg
Part [ - Project and Setting

Instructions for Completing Part 1

Part 1 is te be completed by the applicant or project sponsar. Responses become part of the application for approval or funding,
are swhiect o public review, and may be subgect to firther venfication,

Completz Part | based on mformation currently availabbe. 1f additional research ar investigation would be needed o fully respand o
any item, pleass answer a5 thoroughly a5 possible based oo current information; indscae whéther missang mformation does nob sxist,
or 1% nod reasanably available oy the sponsor; ond, when possible, generally describe work of studies which would be necessary 1o
update or fislly develop thet informiation

Applicansfsponsers masl complete all iems in Sections A & B. In S2ctions C, D & E, maost ltems contain an inital question thae
mwst be angwered sither "Yes" or “Mo®  1f the answer & the indtial question is “Yes", complete the sub-questions that follow, IF the
angwer 1o the initsl qaestiaon is "Ba”, proceed to the next question. Section F allows the progect sponsor to identify and sttach any
additional information. Section (5 eequlres the name and signaiwre of the applicant of project sporsor we verify that the information
cemtained in Part |is accurte and compless,

A, Project and ApplicantSponsor Informatbon,

Mame af Action or Praject:
Ngan Cerdor Mall Rodovedopmant

Project Location (describe, and atiach a general jocation map):
AN0-450 M Uhnicn 51, Qe MY 14761

Brief Description of Fropoased Action (imcluds purpose or nesd);

Proposed mdevelopment af a 27,38 acng sie conlainng an sopmseeiey 155,000 5F axisting buliding, comprising the sxisling Clesn Wal propesty,
Tiweasgh (1} enbarcsment of e site for an sxisng building (4, 700" =Ty, (283} 3,000 of quck ==rve resiaurants wilk assocabed improvemeanis, (4)
damalition of portons of tha: Tormss Bon Tan dapartment slom building (apprex, 50K 8! 10 b damclishad), with upgracks being & new en¥ance, with inlna
ienant space (approx. 20K £f 1o semain and be echanced]; {§) amprovamaenis 1o (ke ramaining rmall structisre, induding balding axianiat and facade. roal

roptacomart, anc subGta00| idercr endvasans; an (6} 9okl o appreimaiaty 35000 & Bkt [Podunt ke conalrucion] 1t oo and of he
Finally, davslopman| of s culparcal s e aoclhveashody oie Smed 49 8 muli-siony housng desslopment conlgining 80 apanmant umils,

Mame of Applicant/Sponsor: Telephono: was o5 q14n
Angale bagrssa, Dlaan Town Cerdar, LLT E-hail: skanga ol oo

ADIIESE: w | ninna R, Bidg £ Suits 501

CHpPLY ptsetar Staig: - Zip Code: —
Pmject Conlact {if not same as sponsor; give mame and titlefrale): Telephone: sap.asa.777a
Wam Tomiiaeon, Marathan Ergineerng 5 A Ty
Address:
38 Caucade O
Cliy PO Stare: Zip Code:
R dmeciley WY 14514
Property Ohwoer (iF not same as spomscerk Telephont;

E-hail:
Addiress:
Tty PO State: Zip Code:

Page 1 of 13



B GCovernment Approvals

" B. Government Approvals, Funding, or Sponsorship, (“Funding™ imcludes prams, loans, s relief, and any other farms of fnancial
assksfamce. )
Gaovernment Entlty I iz Ddemtify Agemey anad Agpjirovalis) Application Date
Required {Actual or projected)
a. City Counsel, Town Board, BEIYesTIMo | gity Soundl - PILST for Propls o
ar Village Board of Trustes:s
b. City, Town or Villoge By esCMa Cily Planning Commisson oRmaz4
Planning Board or Commission _
e. City, Town or CYesCOve | 1ap
Village Zoning Board of Appeals
d. Dther local agencies O¥esCNa
. County agencie BTV esCIMNe [ Dapl of Healih, ioA TD
i Regional agencies OYes ke
g Statz agencies ElvesMe  |MySDEC - Stoomwate T8O
HYS0OT - Trathe Study {THO)
h. Federal zgencies E¥es[TMe | USACOE - Flooding Eassmant TBO
I Coactal Resources.
i. 15 the praject site within & Coastal Area, or the waterfront sves of a Designated Inland Waterway 7 CIYeshfio
i Iz the project site localed in & community with an approved Local Waterfront Revitalization Program? i T i [
fif 1% the project site within a Comctal Erogion Hozasd Ares? O veslAirie

. PMlanmbng and Eoning

.1, Manning and zoning actions.

Will administrative or legislative adoption, or amendment of & plan, local law, ordinence, rule or regulation be the  L1¥ esl o
oaly approval(s) which must be granted o enabie the proposad action o proceedT?
1T ¥es, complets sections C, F and G
= [f Mo, procesd to question C_2 end compbele all remainlag sections and questions in Part |

2. Adopted land wse plans,

a.. Do any municipally- adopted [cify, town, willage or county] comprehensive bind wse plans) includs the sie Y esCMo
whsre the propased actzn woulkl be located?

IF Yes, does the comprehensive plan include specific recommendations for the site where the proposed action g =

would be looated? -

b. 14 the site ol the propossd action within any local or regional special planning district {for example: Greenway,  [YesBNo
Brownficld Opportunity Area {BOA); designated Sintz or Federal heritage anca; watershed management plan;
or otherT)

1f Yes, identify the plan{s):

. Iz the proposed action lecated whally or partially within an area listed in an sdopied municipal open space plan,  [JYesslNa
or an adopted musicipal farmland protection plan?
IF ¥es, identify the plan{s);

Page 2 of 13



C.3. Toning

& 15 the site of the proposed action located in o mundcipality with an odopted zoning lnw o1 ordimance. K1Y esCINe
If Yes, what is the zoning classification(s) including any applicable ocverlay digtrict?
GO Cilby Cntar

b Is the use permitted or allowed by & spectal or conditional use permil? i ¥e Mo
¢, I3 a zonkng change requestsd as par of the proposed action? DY eslfMo
I Yes,

i What 5 the praposed new zoning For the sice?
. Existing communlty services,

. Inwhat school distriet 2 the project site localed?  Oesn Conlral Schoal Dislect

b. What police or other public protection forces serve the praject site”

Sty af Chean Poice ol _
<. Which fire proiection and emergency medical services serve the project site?
City ol Digen Firs L and Serdoss

i. Whal pﬂl‘lﬁ!mﬂll prl:uu:: site?

D. Project Details

0.0, Propesed and Potentisl Development

& What is the general nature of the propased action (e.g., residential, industrial, commercial, recreational; if mixed. includs all
componentsl? St mainfenance & improvameanda in enticipation of frlure development

b o Total sereage of the sl of the proposed action? 27.3% pcres
b. Total acrcage to be physically disturbed? B4~ pieres
c. Total acreage (project sive and sy contipuaus propenies) owned
or contralled by the applicant or project sponsoe? T Rcres
¢ Is the proposed action an expansion of an existing projest or use? & YesCINo
i [f Yes, what ix the approximate percentape of the proposed expansion nod identify the wnits (¢.£., acres, miles. housing units,
suare feet)? %% 26% Uniizs: LAl
d. 1s the proposed action a subdivision, or doss it include o subdivision? EiYes CINo
IfYes,

i, Purpase or type of subdivision? {o.g., residential, indwserial, commercial if mixed, specify I;ﬂ:ﬂ:si
Mnied-usa o facildsle davelopment

if. 15 a cluster/comservadion bayroud pmpﬂmf" OYes o
Iii, Mumber of lots proposed? .
fv. Misimum and maximum pru-p-clml Tot sizes? Minimum 1 Maximum 25 ac

. Will the proposed action be constracted in mulkiple phases? Fl Yes Mo
i [F Mo, anlacipated period of ponstruction; meiaths
il TMYes:
#  Towal nember of panses anticipated
s  Anticipated commencement date of phase 1 (including demolition) A month 203 vear
= Anticipmed completion date of Final phaze 12 mionth 2028 year
»  Clenerally deseribe connections or relationships among phases, including any contingencees whare progress of ose phase may
determine timing or duration of flre phaces:
Irdusirinl desmlopmant driven by merkel demand. Generally independent of gubpequant phasos.

1

Page 30f 13



[ Does the project include new redbdential uses? Yes| [Mo
IT%es, show mumbers of units proposad,
Cne Family Twa Familv Thres Family Multiple Fasmily {four os moee)

Imitial Phase ) Bl -
At comgletion
of all phasss —
g. Does the proposed action include new non-residential construction (including expansions)? AvesIke
1 es,
i Toda! number of strucnenes a
i, Dimensions (in feet) of larges! propossd stnacture: 50 height; 120 width; and 120 leagih
fii. Approcmmabe extent of budding spece to be heated ar cosled: adk square feel
h. Does the proposed action include constraction or ether scivites thar will resalt in the impowndmene of ary O esiliMe
liquids, such a% creation of a water supply, reservoir, pand, lake, wasts lagoon or other starage?
[f%es,
i Purpase of the impoundmens: . S
# 1 a water impaundment, the prmeipal source af the water: [ Ground water || Surisce water strearns [_JCeher specify:

i, [T ather than waler, identify the Eype n[iwuu.iﬂﬂ.l.u'-wul.-'ned ]i.quid: amel their sowrce,

fu Approximate size of the proposed impoandmesnt, Volame: _million gallons; surface area; acres
1. Dimensions of the propesed dam or impounding structure: hesighe; length
vi. Constrection method ' msterials for the proposed dam o1 impoanding steuctung (.8, earth fill, rock, wood, conerelelx

D2, Project Operntions

"2 Dwes the propased action include any excavalion, mining o dredging, ductng canstruction, operations, o both? £
(Mot including peneral site preparation, grading or installation of wilities or foundations where all excavated
materials will remain ongige}
I Yes:
i.What i% the plipose al the excavaliim n'r:l:'lud.ging"
ii. How much materal (including rock; earth, sedimends, eic.) is proposed to be removed from the site?
= Volame ispecify sons ar cubdc wards):
= Over what duration of Gme?
iti. Drescribe naturs and characteristics of moerials to be excavated or dredged, and plans 0 ase, manage or dispose of them,

iv. Will there be onsite dewatering or processing of excavated materials? LIved |ma
[£ yes, describe,

v, What is the total ares o be dredged or excavabed?
wi What is the macimum ares to be worked at any one time!?
wii What would be the maximum -|:|.E|;r|.h of excavation or -l:h'l:ll'iui_'?
wili Wil the excavation reguire blasting? Clyes[no
ix. Bummarize site reclamation goals and plan:

3t

b, Weaild the proposed astion csuse of result in alteration of, merease or decrease in size of, or encroechmeans D‘:’tsmﬂn
inte any existing wetland, waterbody, shoeeline, heach or adjacent area?
I Yes:
&L ldentify the wedland or waterhody wihich wauld be affected [by name, water index numnber, wedland map sumber or geographic
description’:

= E

— . e — = - - —

Page 4 of 13



it Deseribe how the proposed action woald affect that walerbody or wetland, 2.8 excmvation, fill, placement of smechores, or
alveration of chanpals, banks and shorelines. Indicale axtent of aciivibes, alterations and addiidons in square Beet or acnes:

£, Will the proposed actlon cause or result in disturbance 1o hottomn sedimenes? ves[da
If Yes, describe;

fv. Will the proposed action canise or pesalt in the destruction o removal of aguatic vegetation? L Yes[gre
I Yes:

e acres of aguatic vepetation prr.upuml i be resmoved:

s expected acreage of aguatic vegetation remaining afier pl'ﬂ]t::-'l compledion:

= purpase of propesed removal (eg beach clearing, invasive species conerol, bl:lll.i'ﬂ'l.‘-:!-ﬂ

o prapased method of plant removal;

if chemicalferbicide trestment will be ﬁad Fp'l:f.tlﬂl' product{sl

T, I'.'I't.'l.ml:lu any prapoded reclamstion'mibgation follewing disterbance:

. Will the propased action use, ar create o new demand for wates? = [Ho
If Yes:
i Total anticipated water usage’'demand per day; 15,000 gallomsidny
A WK the proposed acticn oblain water from an exising public water supply? e [va
[fYeas:
+  MName of district or service area:  Cily of Clean Watar
#  Does the existing public water supply have capacily o sérve the praposal? 1 ves[ ] Mo
w Ia the project site in the exsting districs? Bl ves[J Mo
# [Is expansion of the district needed? [ ¥eshf] Mo
* Do existing lines serve the project site? B YesCINo
dii. Wikl line extersion within an existing disiricl be necessary to supply the project? Oves Mo
I Yes:

#  Desribe extensions of capacity expansions proposed 1o serve this peojec:

»  Sawrce(s) of supply for the district:

e 15 o new water supply district or service area propossd W be formed o serve the project sie? O Yes&INa
1L, Yes:

« Applicantssponsor for new district

=  Dhde applicalion submatted or anticipaicd:

= Proposed source(s) of supply for mew disiric;

v. ifa public water supply will not be used, describe plans 1o provide waser supply for the projest:

wi, If water supply will be from wells {public or priwl:],,-wmt is the maximam pumping capacity: _ gallons‘minste.
d WHI e pmpmﬂd a-:t':q- EEnerabe |[-|:|ni|:| washesT Eﬂ‘:"e:l:tilu
IF Yas:

i Total amticipated lEquid waste geseration per day: i o0 gallons'day
ii Mueure of liquid wastes to be generated {2 p., sanitary wastewater, indvstrial; if combination, describe all companents and
appraximate volumes or propoctions of cach:

Saculary veastewabar

it Wil the propased action wie any exising public wastewaler ireafment facilpes? WY es Mo
[ Yes
= Mame of wastewater treatment plant 10 be wted: Olean Wastewater Treatmant Plani
«  Mameofdisiriec 0
s Doesibe existing wastewater ireatment plant have capacily io serve the project? EAYes[ Mo
- [5 the praject site m I‘Fu.-:;t:'nbinj; dasgrice? m‘l'esl:l"h
& |z expansica of the district nesded? OYe:EPe

Page 5 of |3




« Do existing sewer lines serve the project site? A vesJrio

s Wil & line extension within an existing district be pecessary o serve the projec? O%es ke
I ¥ e

e Deserihe extensions o capaciny expandians propoied e derve ikis praject

iw. Wil & mew waslewsler (sewage) trealment disriol be farmed 1o serve the project sie? O %es Mo
I Yes:
e Applicastsponsar for new disrict
= [Diate ppplication submatted or anticipated;
. What 15 ihe receiving waber for the wastewater discharge?
v IF public Beilies will mot be used, desenbe plans o prowide wastesvaber nsstment for the peaject, melading speeifiving proposed
reoziving water (name and classificasion if surface discharge or desoribe subsurfoce disposal plarsk

v, Describe any plans or desipns to captare, recyale ar reuse liquid wasee:

Hors

e. Will the proposed action disturb more than one acre and create stiormwater runolT, eilber fram new paint Y eal Mo
sources (i.e. ditches, pipes, swales, curbs, gutters or other concentrated fows of stormwaner) or poR-point
source (ig, shest fow) during construction or pest consinsction?

Il Y'sg:

i, Haww much impervious surface will the project creats in relation to todall size of project parcel?
T Squore feet or @ pores (impervious surface)
Square feet o acres (parce] slze)
i, Describe fypes of new point sources, Aeconstnection preject with anbicpabed reduclion in imperious

i Where will the stormowaser nmofT be directed (i.e. on-site stommaater management facilify/structures, adjpcent propeniss,
groundwater, an-site surface water or off-site surface waters)?
Exisfiing on=5ita Sorm SEwnl sysiem dschames o Olean Cresk

s [f o surface waters, Memtify seceiving water bodies or wetlands:

GHEan Craed
= Wil stommarster nnoff flow to adincest propertiesT OvesfAnn
iv. Doos the propeasd plan minkmlze imperviows surfaces, ule pervioas matertals or colbect and re-use stormwaee? [JYesDIMo
f. Duies the proposed action mclude, ar will i use on-site, one or more sources of air emissions, imcluding fuel Eves[Jna
combustion, wakle incintration, or other proceises or oparations!?
[F s, ddentify:
£ Mobile sources during project opertions (e g., heavy equipment, floct or delivery vehicles)
VLU Gl P ey

il Stationary sources duning construstion (ep. power generstion, strechural heatimg, batch plant, crushers)

il Semonary sources during operations {6.g, process eimisabons, barge bollers, electric generation)

g Will any air emission soerces nomed in DU {obove), require o MY State Air Registration, Air Fecility Permit,  [JYeslMa

or Federal Clesm Arr Act Titbe 1V or Title ¥V Parmir?
if Yes:
i 15 the project site locased inoan Air quality nor-stiainment area? (Ares routinely or periodically Fails to meel CvesCIna
ainbient air quality standards for all or some pars of e year)
it In addition te emiEgions as cakeulated in the application, (ke project will ganerate:
Tons'year (short ons b of Carbon Diexide (TC0y)
o Tonsvear (short tansh af Mitrous Oyade (M0
Tonstyear (shart tonsh of Perflussocarbons {PFCs)
_ Tors'year {shoct tonsy ol Sulfur Hexafluoride (SF)
Toms'year {short tons) of Carbon Dioxide equivalent of Hydmflouwrocarbons (HFCsp
Tony'yeas |shoet tons) of Hazardous Alr Pedlutards {HAPs)

Page Gof 13




h. Wil the proposed action generate ar emit methane (including, but not kimited to, sewage reatment plants, O veskfma
landfills, compoating facitities]?
If s

i. Estimate methane generation in as'rear (metrick

i Deseribe any methane caplure, control or eliminathon measures included in project desipn (2.4, combustion io gemerate heat or
electmicity, flaring):

i. Will the proposed action result in the release of air poliutants from open-air aperations or processes, such as [IWeskf It
guarry or lapdfill epermbons?

IF ¥es: Describe operations and mabare of emissions {e.g., diese] exhaust, rock partrculatesdusty

J. Wil the proposed ection resalt in o subsianiial increnss in traflic above present levels or geourate substantial LIV col) M
e demnand fior transportation lacililies or servioes?
IMYes:

i When is the penk traffic expected {Check all 1hu1 spplyl [ Moming [ Evening [O'Weskend
[ Randomily between haurs of

ii, Por commercial astivilies only, projected munh'r of truck tripsiday ard type 2.2, semi traibers and dump trecks):

iti Parking spaces: Exlating Proposed Met increasedecrease

iv. Does the groposed action inchede any shamed use parking? Cives[INo
v [f the proposed action includes any modifization of existing roads, creation of new roads or change in existing aceess, describe:

ui. Are pablic/peivate rransporiation servics(s ) or facilities available within % mile of the proposed sie? EEBND
vii Will the proposed action inclode sceess to public ranspartsson or accommpdarions. for uss of hybrid, eleciric
or ather aliernative fweled vehicles?

uiil, Will the proposed aclion mclude plans fior pedestrian or bicycle sccommuodations for conpections to existing  [JYes[ Mo
pedesirian or bigycle noutes?

. Will the propased action (Tor commescial or industrinl projects only) generate new or additional demand m‘t't!El ]
for enengy?
1 Yes:

{ Estimnte snnual slectricity demand during operation of the propesed dction:

10

Wi
ii Anticipated sources/suppliers of edeetricity for the project (e.g.. on-site combustion, on-site rerewsbie, via gridilocal mility, o
pier)

Rardices| ity
i, Wil the proposed action reguire 8 new, or an upgrade. bo an existing sebstation? DT:':;H-:.
|. Hewrs of operation. Arswer all llems which apply.
. During Construction: fi. Dwering Operations:
s Momday - Friday: Tam-fprm ¢ Moaday - Friday; Tam-12pm
¢ Saterday: _Pamfpm " Saturday: Fam-10pm.
»  Sunday: Tam Spm »  Sumdoy; Fam-10pm
= Holidays: 7am-Garm «  Holidnys: Tair-10pm

Page Tof 13



m. Will the: propossd action produce noise that will excesd existing ambient noise bevels daring consinsction, O Yes e
openatian, ar both?

AL yes:

i Provide dewils insluding sources, time of day and dorstioa:

ii. Will the proposed aclion remave extating narural barriers thar could act as 3 noise hamier or gereen? L yes bbio
Dieseribe:

If ves:
& Deseribe souree(s), location(s), height of fixture(sy, directionfain, and proximicy so esarest pooupied structunes:
B howet by ke downlighting theoughoul the mall ko Sghl spil proposed.

0. Will the propased action have oudeor lightng? A Wes[Oko

ii. Wl proposed sctinn remove existing natursl barriers tkst coeld act as a light barmier or screen? OvesNa
Desoribee:

o Does the proposed acthon have the poteetial o produce adors for mors thas one howr per day? ¥ esiANu
If ¥es, describe possible sources, potential frequency and duraton of odor esmissions, amd proximity to nearest
oceupied structures;

P Wil the propesed action include any bulk siorage af petroleum (combmed capseity ol aver |, 100 pallons) O esFka
o chemical products 185 gallons i abowve ground stocape or any amount in undearground Aorags?
[f Yes:
i Prodeclis] fo be stored
&, Valume(s) per it thae {e.p., month, year)
ifi Generally, describe the proposed storage facilities:

e ——

g, Will the proposed sction {commencial, industrial ard réecreational projects only) use pesticides (ic. herbizides,  EYes (Mo
treasetizides) during construckion or speration?
I es:
i, Drescribe proposed treatment{s)-
Sgrmal fywn & pest regiment

| i Will the proposed action use [ntegrated Pest Management Practices? Wes LN

r. Will the proposed action (commercial or mdustrinl projects only) imvalve ar require the managemien or dizpesal Yes CMo
of solid waste (excluding hazardous materials|?

If Yes:
i. Describe any solid waste(s) 1o be gereraied during construction or aperation of the facality:
= Congructhon! 24,000+ wO0S per B mondns (umin of time)
»  Operation TE4- boog per year funit of time)

fi. Describe any proposaks for on-site minimization, recyeling or reuss of materials to avoid disposal a5 solul waste:
& Constrsction: el managen anl pmokees - ieuse of sabeiols (o.g. milings) whon sopmprats

= Operation: _ Commarcial peparaion of meycisbios from solid wasis

iii. Proposed disposal methodsfacilities for solad waste yeneriled an-gile)
»  Comstruction! Lgcal boensed washe horcher

= Operatbon: _ Local licersed wasta handls

Page B of 13



5. Does the praposed action include constuction or modification of o selid waste management fcilsy” [ Yes | Mo
I Yes:
L Typeof management oc handling of waste proposed for the site (2.g., recycling or iwansfer station, composting, Endfill, or
other dispasal activities):

i, Anticipated rate ufﬁispmh‘;mmsi;g:
. Tomssmonth, il transfer or other non-combastisnithermal reatment, or
- Tenshaus, if combustion ar thermal restment

i 1f landfill, anticipated sive life: years

¢, Will the proposed action at the sne involve the commercial generation, treatmen. storage, or dispasal of hazardous [ ]YesiNo
wste?
If Yes:
i, Maenels) of 2l hazardous wastes or constituents to be generated, handled or managed at facility:

ii Generally describe processes or activitees involving hazardoas wastes o constitaents:

ii7, Specify amounl 1o be handled or gererated tonsmonzh
Iv. Describe any propasals for on-site minimization, recycling or resse of hazardous constiments:

¥ Will any hazardous wastes be disposed at an existing offsite hazardows wasts Tacility? Lves[ Mo
I Yes: peovide name and location of facility:

If e deseribe proposed management of aay lazadous wastes which will not be send to & hazardous waste facility:

E. Site and Setting of Proposed Action

E.1. Land uses on and serrosnding the project site

a. Existing lnnd uses,
i Cheek all uses that oecur on, adjeining and near the project site.
@ Urban [ Industrial ) Commercinl B Residential (suburban) [ Russl {non-farm)
O Forest [0 Agriculwre B Aquatic ] Orier (specify:
ii. 1 mix of uses, genermlly describe:

b. Land uses and covertypes on the project site,

Land use or | Current Acreage After Change
Covertype Acrerpe Froject Completion (Agres +-)
" mrﬁdmgﬂ_ and other peved or impervisus i i i
o Fosested - . )
»  headows, grasstands ar brushlands (pon-
agricultural, inchsding absndoned agricultaral} ; : *

= Agriculural
{incledes active orchards, field, greenhouse eic.)

o Surface waler Faatures
{lakes, ponds, sireams, rivers, ele.}

& Weilands {freshwaber or tidal} - - -

®  Mon-vegetated (bace rock, earth or fill) 5

s Other
Diescribe: Lawndard scegieg &1 L] +OLS

Pape 3 of 13



. 15 the project site presently used by enembers of the communizy for public recrestion? O vesli] ™o
i IE Yes: explain

d. Are there any facilities serving children, the d{kﬂ}' people with disabilitses {e.g., schools, Impﬁnli. Imn:s:d ElYes[ JNa
day emve centers, or group homes) within 1500 fsel of the peaject dite?

i ¥es,
i [dentify Faciliies:
Clean Schaal, Diean Intsmadiale Widda Schonl. Jomasiown Communily Colegs —
¢. Does the project site contain an existing dam? IV esid Mo
M Yes:
L Damensions of the dam and impoundment:
*  Dam height: fe
#  Dam lengthi I et
»  Surface area: aares
= Wolume impounded: gallars OR ssre-feat

ir. Dam's exigting hazaed clozsificsbon:

iti. Provide date and summarize results of last inspection:

f. Has the project site ever been wsed as a municipal, commgreial or indusirial solid wasie mapagement facility, L Yedd] b
or does the project site adjoin property which is now, or waa at one time, used s o solid waste management feciling?
If Yies:

L Has the Bacility bean formaly closed? C¥e ] Mo
& [fyes, cite spurces'documentation
if. Describe the location of the project site relative o the boundarics of the solid uum management Caciling:

il Trescribe any development constraints due 1o the prior solid waste activities:

g. Have hazardous wastes been generated, weated andior disposed of at the site, or does the project aite adjoin E'fﬂm?*iﬂ
property which is now or was at one time wsed to commercially weat, store and'or disposs of hazardous wasie?
1f % es:

i Daseribe wasteds) handbed snd waste management activities, including approximate time when nctivities ocoamed:

h. Patential contamination history. Has thers been a reporied spill at the prepoded  project site, or hirve any Ovedd Mo
remedial scrions been conducted at or adjacend to the proposed site?
I Yes:
¢ 13 any partion of the site listed on the NYSDEC Spills Incidents database or Enviroomestal Site Oved Ino
Remediation database? Check all that apply:
L ¥Yes - Spills Incidents database Provide DEC I number(s):
[ ¥es = Environsmental Site Rernediation database Provide DEC ID numban{s):

] Meither database
i 17 gite bas been subject of RCRA corrective aciivities, deseribe contrisl measurss:

ifi. [s e project within 2000 feet of any site in the NYSDEC Environmental Site Remedintion database? [(TWeddiNo
If yes, provide DEC 1D numbers):

i, I ves to b, (i or (iii} above, d:mhcmﬂrtﬂmﬂfﬂtﬂ!}

Page [0of 13



v. |5 the project site subjest 1o an institutional contro] limiting property wes? L] veshfIna
Ifves, DEC site 1D number:

Describe the type of instibatiomal control (g2 deed restriction or easement);

Dizscribe any wse limitations:

Describe any engineering controls:

Will the project affect the instiutional or engineering controds In p-li:;-:'.‘ D‘l’tﬁf_:lbh
Explaln:

E & & & @ @

F.X. Matwral Besources O or Near Project Site

3. Whal i3 the averags depth o bedrock an the project site? =g feet
k. Are there bedrock outcroppings on the project site? O eshdme
Il Yes, whal proportion of the site is comprised of bedrock oalcrapEngs’ B
c. Predominant soil typeis) present on project site: Middioury sl kam 154 %
Alard gl lpam : 0.8 %
Liban larg B30 55
. What is the average depih fo s water table on the project site? Averags: fees
e. Drainage satus of project site sails: ) Well Drained: .8 % of sie
A Moderstely Well Drained: 15.4 % of site
O Pasrly Cirained £3 & %0 of sie
£ Approximate propartion of proposed action site with slopes: B o1 LB %5 of gbe
0 10-15%: _ %aolsie
[ 15% or grenter: B of site
g. Are there any unigue geologic features on the project site™ CJv¥eskdiMa
IF Wes, describe:

h. Surface water feaiares.

i Does any partion of the preject site contain wetlands or ather waterbodies (insluding streams, rivers, ¥ eskfrio
ponds or lakes)?
ii. Do any wetlands or other waterbodies adjoin the project site? BTy e o
If 'es 1o either § or i, continze, |f Mo, skipm E.2
iii. Are any of the wetlands or waterbodies within or adjoining the praject sie regulsied by any federal, KT es Clvo

state or [ocal agency?
i Far each identified regalated wetkand and waterbody on the propect sie, provide the fallowing infywmation:

#  Sireama: Wame Clagsification
®  Lakes or Ponds: Mame Classification
*  wWerdands; Mame Fivaring - Sioan Cresk Approximate Size 1610 5cres
*  Wetland MNa, (if regutsied by DEC)
u Are any of the above water bodies listed in the most recent ecmpilation of NS water quality-impaired Cves o
waterbodies?

[Fyes, mame of impaired water body/bodies and basis for listing as impained:

i I he project site in a designated Floodway? T LlYesENo
i. L5 the project site in the 100-year Floodplain? 1Y es o
k. Is the project site bn the 300-year Floodplain® CHyesiTo
I.;;Iﬂm propect site Jocated oves, or immediztely adjoining, » prmary, principal or sole source agquifer? v es[CINo
11 ¥ e

[, Mame o agquifier: Princps| Aquias, Pimary Aguiler

Page 11 of 13




m. ldentify the predominant wildlife species that occupy or use the project sie:

mrnal raeTemnis. small mdents binds i

_hm wip hibeains ——— it
1, Does the pmject site cantain a destgaated significant nataral community? CIYeshfun
If Yew:

i, Erescribe the habitat'commurity {composition, function, and basis for designation);

i, Sowrce(s) of description or evalustion:

dii. Extent of commmunity/bebini;
e Currently:

-
»  Following completion of projest as propesed: RCTEs
= Galn or loss (indicate +or-); BLIES
o, Does project site contain any species of plant or animal tha i5 listed by the federal government or Y5 a5 [;E'i"‘r:ﬂ:lwu

endangered or threatened, or does it contain ary arens identified a3 habicat for an endanpered or threasensd spedies?
1 ¥oa:
i Species and lising fendangesed or treaensd):

Lingaa:d Darlar, Waeyraynd Lamprisssel, Rayed Bean, Bhastenas| Darler

p. Does the project sike contain any species of plantor animal that is listed by WY as rare, or 25 8 spectes of Ve INo
spectal consern”
L s
i Specics and lasing:

Fack Aedhorse, Timsaming Chub, Helberdar

If yeg, give & baef deseription of kow the proposed nction may affect that use:

q. Is the project site or adjoining aren currently used foe hunting, wapping. fishing or shell fishing? EYes[o

Pioaftacy

E.}. Designated Public Resources On or Near Froject Site

n. Is the project site, or any paction of it, lecated in o designated agricubiural district certified pursuans to [ eshfiHo
Agriculiare and Warkets Low, Arficke 25-AA, Section 303 and 3047
If Yes, provide county plus district namenumber:

b. Are apriculiural lands consisting of highly productive soils present” CJ¥esEINo
i, If Yes: acr=age{1) on projeci sie?

£ Souwree(s) of woil ragingls):

Matral Lomlmark™
if Yes:
i Mamre of the namral landmark: [ Bisdogical Community O Geological Feature
ii. Provida brief description af lasdmark, incleding velues behind designation and approsimate sizefentent:

¢. Daes the project site contain all or part of, or is it substantially contigoaous to, a registered MNational 5

d. [5 the project site bocated in or does it adjein & state listed Critical Environmental Area? Oresifmo
I ves:

i. CEA name;

i, Basis for designation:

iiF Desipnating agency and dabe:

Page 120f 13



g; Does the project sile contaim, ar is i subsiamizlly conbiguous to, & bialding, arckaeslogical sive. or disrict 7l ?tﬂhﬂ-
which is listed an the National or State Register of Histone Places. or izl has been detenmingd by the Commissioner of the MYS

HTiee aof Parks. Recreation and Historie Preservation to be eligible for lissiag on the Stale Register of Histare Maces?
IF ¥ois;

i Mawire of hisworic/archommbogicl resource: ClArchacological Sie EHisworic Building or District
i, Mame E_I_E_Frnpu-rtr! 14 Huﬂ'.- Barry Sirest

iii. Driel descriplion of aitributes on which lsting s based:
Embodian disiingiie choractenialics of o bypa ipeviadineihod of constnichon; an example of Queen Anre Viclonan sschiteclurs whigh Hetarical inlagrily

£ |5 the projeet site, o1 any portien of i, loeated in of sdjncent to an ares designated as sensitive for EYes[One
archnenlogical sites on the MY Sute Hisiorc Presereation CHTice (SHPGY archosolepical site ventony?

g. Have additional archaeologicul or bistoric siteis) or resoarces been identified on the project sie? OvesfAno
1M Yes:
i. Deseribe pogsible resowrcel sl

{I. Basis for igdeni Nestion:

b, Is the project site within fives miles of any officially designaied and pulblicly accessible federal. stae, or local [O%¥es LA
scenst of avsthelic resource™
IMyex
1 Dikendify resoumnce;
li. Matire of, o basis for, designation (e.g., established highwoy overlock, state or local park, state histore w3l o seanic byway,
i, = B
fif Dltr::lmre between project and resource: = mi e,

i l=ibe preject site locmied within a desipgnated river comidor imder the Wilil, Seenic and Recreatlonal Bivers [0 Y eslf ™o
Progrm & NYCRR 6667
il Yes:
i, Identify the name of the river and ds designation:

il Is the activigy consistent with developmiens restrictions contnined m GNYCRR Part 6667 OYesOme

F. Addifienal Inlermation
Aitach any additionn! information which meny he needed 1o clarily your prigect.

IF yeu Bue Bleniified ony adverse impacs which coubd be sssocialed with your propesal, please describe ihose impacts phis any
measieres which vou propose to avoid or minimize lbem.

. Verification
I irtify that the information provided is doee to the best of my knowledge.

ApplicanySponsor Mane Man Tormfnsan, Maraihan Enginearing Diase f"’ff:{{-—ff‘/

Signaure M Title Fraiect Marager

PRINT FORM Page 130f 13




EAF Mapper Summary Report Tuesday, August 23, 2022 10:22 AM

Disclaimar: The EAF Muppar @ o oopsary ol miend i b s
im ok pIiact PO SNE MRS SOHESCIEE In prananng an ammomenis
= L ervessnnal him (ERF)L Mol all quesions kel o e EAT s
- irtsmerad by Fae EAF Magpe: Addbonal misimaisn on dny EAF
- el can b olilsined by conauiling the EAF Wodbooh  Albcugh
a ™ g EAF Mapper prosides the mosl op-io-dals digiol dais oasfable o
i a DEC, you may 2% ased W ooatact Do lor olhar faia sources in oo
. Xy ¥ Dizin dana Pl @ioeaked Dy (ha Magpor. Digaal 3o0a = nol a
-_I subaliseli Fy agency dalermenatis i

ity Moaniraal
r

x T e b
(W11 | T =
] avl e Fodhzda
i Ay
5 =3 . N Pixton
d_' ERcretinid Higniddnc=
e - - [
LI RE L e i W B i
= = ifizlrrgh

= [ i - i
o ta - il
= LSGE h'l:-.-mlm,.IlI".'EI-EH'I'F‘.HF!".':M_"L_I Evni P MET]. Ezn Claa |I'I-’.|n-;r-:r|1-.1,lm Eh-irﬁlrﬁﬁtan Exil Japan ETH glll Emlg gngn . Bzp
Earaa Esnifhaibid | I'.'-n':g.l}'é Dy anira i) -:-Hﬂbtt—!g-l-ndtm (A5 Upsr Combin unity snniis ani i dtldnp m%w-e 1% U Cotnm Lty

B.Li [Coastal or Waterfront Araa| No

B.Lil [Local Watertront Revilalization Aneal o

C.2.b. [Special Planning District) Digitad mapping data are nod availatde or are incomplete. Refer to EAF
Waorkbook

E.1.h [DEC Spills or Remediation Site - Digitel mapping data are nod avallable or are incomplete, Refer o EAF

FPotantial Contamination History| Warkboak,

E.1h | [DEC Spills or Remadiabon Sile - Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer bo EAF
Listesd] Workbook

E 1hi [DEC 3pils or Remediation Sile - Digital mapping dala are nol avalable or ame incomplete. Refer o EAF
Environmental 58 Remediation Detabaze]  Workbook.

E.1.h.iw [Within 2,003 of DEC Remediation Mo

Site]

E 2 g [Unique Geologlc Features)] Mg

E.2hi [Surface Waler Fealuras] Mo

E.2.hii [Surface Yater Features] Yes

E.2.hiiii [Surface Waler Fealunes) Yes - Digital maggring nformation an kcal and lederal wellands and
waterbodies is known o beincomplete. Reler io EAF Workibook,

E.2 h.v [Impaired Waler Bodias] o

E.2i. [Floodway] Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplate, Refer to EAF
Winrkbook

E.Z . [100 Year Flocdgplain] Digitad mapping daky are nol svaitable of are incomplade. Raler io EAF
Workbook.

E.2.k. [50) Year Floodglain] Digital mapping data are not avaslable or are incompleta. Refer 1o EAF
Workbook.

EZ1 |Aquisers] Yieg

E-ZIL [Agquiter Mames| Principal Aquifier, Primary Aguiter

E_Z.n. [Matwral Communitias| Mo

Full Erwircnmental Assessment Fomm - EAF Mapper Summary Feport



' E.2.0. [Endangered of Threatened Species]  Yes

E.2.0. [Endangered or Threatenad Specias - Longhead Darter, Wavyrayed Lampmussal, Rayed Bean, Blueoreast Daster
Marmia]

E.2.p. [Rare Plants or Animals] s

E.2.p. [Rare Plants or Animals - Nami] Biack Redhorse, Straamfing Chub, Hellbender

E.3.a [Agricuttural District) Mo

Ed.c [Nafional Natursl Landmark] Mo

E 3.d [Critical Ervironmantal Ared] Mo

E 3.e, [Mational or State Register of Historic  Yies - Cigital rapping data for archasological site boundaries are mot
Flaces or State Eliginle Sites] gvailable, Refer to EAF Workbook.

E.3.8 7 [National or State Register of Histonc Eligible propedy-214 Morh Bamy Street
Placas ar State Eligible Sites - Name]

£.3.1 [Archeological Sites] L=
E. 3. [Designated River Comidar] Mo

Full Environmental Assessment Form - EAF Mapper Summary Report



Agency Use Only (1 applicable]

Full Envivonmental Assessment Form Broject: Yo —=
Part 2 - Idenrification of Potential Project Impactx  Dae

Part 2 is to be completed by the lesd agency. Pari 2 is designed to help the lead agency imventory all potential resources that oould
be affected by & proposed project or action, We recognize that the lead agency’s reviewer(s) will not necessasily be environmental
professionals. So, the questions are designed to walk a reviewer through the sssessment process by providing a series of questions that
can be answersd using the information found m Part 1. To further aasist the leed agency in completing Part 2, the form identifies the
most relevant questions in Part 1 that will provide the information needed to answer the Part 2 question. When Part 2 is completed, the
lead ageney will have identified the relevant environmental arcas that may be impacted by the proposed sctivity,

If the lesd ageticy is @ state agency and the action is in any Coastal Area, complete the Coastal Assessment Form before proceeding
with this assessment.

Tips for cempleting Part 2:
#  Beview all of the mformation provided in Part 1.
Review any application, maps, supporiing materials and the Full EAF Workbook.
Answer each of the 18 questions in Part 2.
I yors answier “Yes™ to o numbered question, pleass complete all the questions thar fallow in that section.
If you answar “No™ 1o a numbersd question, move on to the next numbersd question.
Check appropriste columea fo indicate the anticipated size of the mpact
Proposed projects that would exceed a numeric threshold contained in a question should result in the reviewing agency
checkmg the box "Modernie to large impact may cccur,”
The reviewer is nol expected 1o be an expert in eovironmental acalysis,
*  Ifyouare pot sure or undecided aboul the size of an mmpact, i may help o revies the sub-guestions for the genersl
question and consult the workbook,
®  When answering & question consider all components of the proposed activity, that is, the "whaole action”.
s Consider the pogsibility for long-term and cumularive impacts as well as direct impacts,
Angwer the question in a reasonable manner considering the scale and context of the project.

L Impiﬂ on Land
Proposed action may involve construction on, or physical alteration of, LND WIYES
the land surface of the proposed site. (See Part 1. D.1)
If "Yes", answer guestions a - §. If "No", move on lo Section .
Helevant Mo, or Moderate
Part 1 small tm large
Question(s) | impact | impact may
may sceur a1y
i The proposed action may involve construction on land where depth to water tsble is Eld %) 0O
less than 3 feet.
b. The proposed action may iovelve constriction on slopes of 15% or greater. EX %) O
. The proposed action may invobve constraction on land where bedrock iz exposed, or | Els % O
_Fﬂtm]!;l'_'-\'l-!hm § feet of existing ground surface
d. The proposed action may nvolve the excavation and removal of mors than 1,000 tons | D2 %] O
of manral material,
e. The propoeed action may invelve construction that contmues for more then one year | Dle | %)
of in multiple phases,
f. The proposed action may result in increased erosion, whether from physical D2e, D2g O
distarbance or vegetation removal (mscluding from treatment by hechicides). |
g The proposed action is, or may be, located within & Coasial Erogion hazard sres, ;E]i O
h. Dther impacts: %} O

Page 1 of 10

FEAF 2010



2, lmpaci oo Geological Features

The propased action may result in the modification or destruction of, or inhibst

access to, any unique or unusual land forms on the site (&g, cliffs, dunes, N0 [CIvEs
minerals, fossils, caves). (SeePant 1. E2.g)
If "Yes". answer questions a - ¢, If "No", move on fo Section 3,
Relevant Mo, ar Moderate
Pari1 small b large
eestions) imapect impact may
may occur ceur
a. Identify the specific land form{s) attached: Elg o o
b. The proposed action may affect or is adjacent to a geological feature listed 25 2 E3ec o o
registered Natiooal Matwral Landmark.
Specific featurs:
¢, Other impacts: o o
r 3. Tmpacts on Surface Water
The proposed action may affect one or more wetlands or other surfiesce water Cno W vEs
bodies (e.g., streams, rdvers, ponds or lskes). (See Part 1. D.2, E1Lh)
If “Yes", anawer guestions a -1 If “No", move on to Seciion 4,
| Relevant Mo, ar Moderate
Part I small s Burge
Questianis) impact impact may
MayY DeCur oeenr
. The proposed action may create & new walter body. [2hk, Dk [~} O
b. The propesed action may result in an incnease or decreass of over 10% or more than a Dzb =i O
1} acte increase or decrease in the surface area of any body of water.
¢. The proposed action may imvelve dredging more than 100 cubic yards of material D2a O
from & wetland or water bady,
d. The proposad astion may involve construction within or adjoining a freshwater or EZh & (]
tidal wetland, or in the bed or banks of any other water body,
e The proposed sction may ereate tarbidity in a waterbody, either from uplaad esosicn, | D2, D2h i O
runoff or by disturhing bottom sediments.
f. The proposed sction may include construction of one or more intake(s) for withdrawal | D2c [ O
of water froem surface water.
g- The proposed action may include constraction of eoe or mode outfall{s) for discharge | D2d %]
of wastewaler to surface water(s)
h. The proposed action may cause soil erasion, or otherwise create a source of e A O
stormwater discharge that may lead b silation or other degradation of receiving
waler bodies.
i. The proposed action may affect the water quality of any water bodies within or Ezh
downstream of the site of the proposad actioa.
j. The propased action may involve the application of pesticides or herbicides in or D2q, EZh O
ground eny water body,
k. The proposed action may requine the constraction of new, or expansion of existing, Dla, D2d
wastewater treatment facilities.

Page 2 of 10




L Orther ety e e T o oo =
4. Impact on groundvwater
The proposed action may result in new or additional use of ground water, or [(Iwo WvES
may have the potential to introduce confaminants to ground water or an aquifer,
(See Part 1. D.2.a, D2¢,D2d, D2p, D.2.q, D21)
If “Yes", answer guesiions a - h. if "No", move on to Section 5.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part 1 sl o large
Omestion]s) impact impuect may
sy {sCCar necur
8, The propossd action may require new water supply wells, or créate additional demand | Dl %} O
on supplics from existing water supply wells,
b. Water supply demand from the proposed action may exceed safe and sustainable D2e %) O
withdrawal capacity rate of the local supply or aguifer.
Cite Source:
¢. The propesed action may allow or result in residential uses in areas without water and | Dia, D2e 5| O
BEWOT BErViCes.
d. The proposed action may mclude or require wastewater discharged (o groundwater, . Dd, E21 i O
. The proposed action may result in the construction of water supply wells in locations | Dic, E1f, ¥ O
where groumdveater is, or is suspected to be, conaminated. | Elg, Elh
f The proposed sction may require the bulk storage of petroleum or chemical products | D2p, E21 "5 O
over grouid water or an aquifer. |
g. The proposed action may involve the commercial application of pesticides within 100 | E2h, D2q, [ O
feet of potable drinking watey or lvigation sources :
h, Other impacts: Dawatering of shalow groundwarar during consteuction, # necessary, wil be 7l |
candusied i secandance wi local, sioke and fedeal ra & and
rasuling chewateving fids will be praperly managed 16 minmize or 2w
negative impacts fo waler resourcas.
5. Impact on Fhuding
The proposed action may result in development on lands subject to flooding. o bl vEs
(See Part 1, E2)
i "Yes ", answer guestions a - g If "No ", move on fo Section 8.
Relevant Mo, ar Moderate
Part 1 small to large
Question(s) |  impact | impact may
mEY Becur oeCur
. The proposed sction may result in development m o designated flondway. Eli_ %) O
b. The propased action may result in development within & 100 year foodplain E2j %) O
. The proposed action may result in development within a 500 vear floodplain, Elk %) L1
d. The proposed action may result in, or require, modification of existing drainage Db, Dle %) O
TeEbtEma
. The propoacd sction may chenpe food water flows that contribute to fooding, Db, E2i, %)
E2, EXk
£ If there is & dam located on the site of the proposed action, 15 the dam in need of repair, | Ele %)
o upgrade?

Page 3 of 10




. Other impacts: A 0
6. Impacts on Air
The proposed action may include a state regulated air emission source. D]\‘D' E'l’EE
(Bee Part |. IL2.[L, 020, TX2.8)
A " Yes”, answer questions a = £ IV "Noe©, miove on o Section 7.
Relevant Mo, ar Muoderate
Part [ small o large
Question(s) | impact | impact may
AAY SeCUF OeCHr
a. If the proposed action requines federal or stabe air emission permits, the action may
also emil gae o more greenhouse gased st or above the following levels:
1. More than 1000 II:II'I!.:."}"H' af carbon disxide (CO4) D2g & O
i, More than 3.5 tonsiyear of mitroas oxide (N0 D2g 5| O
fii, Mare then F0EF tonsfyenr of carbon equivalent of perfluarocarbons (PFCs) Dig il E
iv. More than 045 tons'venr of sulfur bexalleande (5F.) Dlg % o
w. More than 1000 tons/year of earhon diexide equivalent of Dig
hydrachloroflourccarbons (HFCs) emissions
vi. 43 tonsiyenr or more of meshane Dzh m
b. The proposed action may penerate 10 tons'year ar mare of any ane designatad D2g (%] O
hazardous air polimant, or 25 tonsiyenr or more of any combination of such hazardous
air pollutants.
¢. The proposcd action may require o state air registation, o may produce an omissions | D2F, D2g B O
rate of total contaminants that may excesd 5 hs. per haur, or may imclude a heat
source capable of producing more than 10 million BTL"s per hour
d. The proposed sction may reach 50% of any of the thresholds in 2" tdrough “c”, Dig # O
pbove.
e. The proposed action muxy resull n the combustion or thermal treatment of more than | | D2s (%] 0
ton of refuse par hour,
. ' : n r ns reaull o vahice and ésgui ]
f. Other WPHH_TMM;I:. MRy Alr presskans would : esquipma [} O
7. Impact on Plants and Animals
The proposed action may result in o loss of flora or fauna, (See Pan 1, E.2, m.-q.) [Jwo M vEs
I * Yoy ", answer guestions a - § I "No ", mave on to Secrion &
Relevant M, or Mioderate
Part 1 amall to karge
Cuestlonis) Imipaci impact may
mAY GCeur gccur
i The proposed action may covse reduction in population or loss of mdividuals ofany | Elo %] o
threstersed or endengered species, as listed by Mew York State or the Federal
poverument, that use the site, of are found on, over, or near the site,
b, The proposed action may resuli in & reduction or degradation of any habitet used by Elp O
any rara, threstened or endsngered species, os listed by Mew York State or the federal
| government
¢ The proposed action may cause reduction in population, or lass of individuals, of any | Elp o
species of specinl concern o conservation need, os Tisted by Mew Y ork State of the
Federal government, that use the site, or arc found on, over, ar near the site.
d. The proposed action may result in @ reduction or degradation of any habitatused by | E2p % O
any spocics of special concemn and conservation need, a3 listed by New York Siate or
the Federal government.

Page 4 of 10




&. The proposed action may diminish the capacity of a registered MNational Natural Elc & O
Landmark (o suppert the biological community it was established to protect.
f. The propoaed action may result in the remowval of, or pround disturbance in, amy Eln % o
portion of 8 deaipnated sigmificam ratural community,
Source:
g The proposed action may substantially intecfere with nesting/brecding, foraping, or E2m B
creir-wintering Babitat for the predominant species that nooupy or use the project site,
h. The proposed action requines the conversion of mors than 10 acres of forest, Elh %}
grassland or any other regionally or lecally important habitat,
Hahirat type & information source:
i. Proposed action (commercial, industrial or recreational projects, only) involves use of | g %} O
herhicides or pesticides,
j. Other impiacts; Corstuction best managament practicas, including sosion and sedimant cantrol, %] ]
: e o - sty bl
araility
8.  Impact on Agriculiural Resources .
The proposed action may impact agricultural resources. (See Part | E3.a. and b)) Nﬂ DTES
if "'Yes ", answer questions a - h._If "No ", move on to Section 9.
Belevant Mo, ar Moderante
Part1 small o large
Cruesthomn(s) imipact imypact may
may oceur | occur
& The proposed action may impact soil classified within soil group 1 through 4 of the Elc, E3b o =i
WYS Land Classification System.
b. The propoaed sction may sever, cross of otherwise limit acoess to agriculhural land Ela, Elt = =l
{includes cropland, hayficlds, pastire, vineyand, orchard, sic)
¢ The propased action may result in the cxcavation or compaction of the soil profile of | E3b = o
sctive agriculnimal land.
d. The propesed action may ireversibly convert sgrculivrsl land o son-agriculfiral Elb, Ela o o
uses, either mare than 2.5 acres if located o an Agnculiural District, or mone thas 10
scres if not within an A gricultural District
e The proposed action may disrapt ar prevent installation of an agricultaral land Els, Elb o o
minagement systen
[ The proposed action may result, directly or indirectly, in increased development Cle, C3, = o
potential ar pressure on frmiand, D2e, D2d
g The proposed project is not consistent with the adopted manicipal Faomland Cle - o

Protection Flan.

h. Crthes mmpacts:

Page 5 of 10




9. Impact on Aesthetic Resources
The land use of the propesed action are obviously different from, or are in Cwo WlvEs
sharp confrast o, current land use patterns between the proposed project and
@ scenis or aesthetic resource. (Part |, E.l.a, E.Lb, E3R)
_ If "Yes ", answer questions a - g If Mo ", go to Section 10,
Relevant Mo, ar Moderzie
Fart 1 small im large
Chsestion(s) impact impact may
May SCeur L T of
&, Proposed action may be visible from eny officially designated federal, state, or local | E3b 7] O
scenie or sesthetic resource.
b. The propeged action mery result in the obstruction, liminstion or significant B3k, C2b (%] O
screening of one or more officinlly designated scenic views.
e. The proposed action may be visible from publicly accessible vantage painis: E3h
L Zeazonally (e.g., screened by summer foliage, but visible during other seagons) %] I:I
. Year rownd [ O
d. The situation or activity in which viewers are engaged while viewing the proposed Eih
action is! Elg,
1. Routine travel by residents, incheling travel to and from work P 0
ii. Recreational or tourism based activites Elc = 0O
¢. The proposesd acticn may caase & diminishmest of the public enjoyment and E3h 7] O
apprecigtion of the designated apsthetic resource.
f There are similar projects visible within the following distance of the propoaed Dis Ela, E O
project: DIE Dlg
0-1/2 mle
Y =3 mile
3-5 mile
¥+ mike
g Oither impacis: [ O
1. Impact on Historic and Archeological Resources
The proposed action may occur in or adjacent to a historic or archacological [Oro W]ves
resource. (Part 1. E3e, fandg)
If "Tes ", angwer questions a - e. [ "Ne", go to Section 11,
Relevant Mo, or Muoderabs
Part I small to large
Question(s) | impact | impact may
o The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantinily contiguous i
to, amy buildings, archaeological site or district which is listed on the Mational or e H ()
Siate Register of Historical Places, or that has been determined by the Commissioner
of the WY 5 Office of Parks, Recreation and Historie Preservation to be eligible for
listing on the State Register of Historic Places.
b. The proposed action may ocour wholly ar partially within, or substantislly contiguous | E3T B O
1o, an zrea designated ag sensiive for archaeologleal sites on the WY State Historic |
Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological sile inventory.
. The proposed action may eccur wholly or partially within, or substantially contigucus | E3g B O
to, an archasological gite mot incloded on the MY SHPO mvendory.
Source

Page 6 of 10




d, Diher impacts: %] O
Tf any of the abave (a-d) are answered * Moderate (o large impact may
& pocur”, continue with the following questions to help support conclusions in Part 3:
i, ‘The proposed sction may result in the destruction or alteration of all or part E3e, E3g. O O
af the site or property. E3f
i The proposed sction may result in the zlteration of the property’s seiting or Ele, E3f, O O
inbegrity. E3g, Eln,
Elb
jii. The propesed action may result in the introduetion of visual elements which | E3e, E3L, ] O
are out of character with the site or property, or may alter its sefting, a&-&ffh-
11. Impact on Open Space and Recreation
The proposed action may result in a loss of recreational opportunities or a Hﬂ D‘I'ES
reduction of an open space resource as designated in any adopted
municipal open space plan.
{(SeePart 1. C.2.¢, E.l.c,Elq.)
If “Yes ", answer questions o - e. If “No", go fo Section i
Relevant Mo, or Moderate
Part I small i larpe
Juestiomn(s) impuict impact may
may nccur aeCur
a. The propoaed sction may result in an impaimment of natural functions, or “ecosystem D2e, Elb o a
services”, provided by an undeveloped srea, including but not limited to siormwater | E2h,
storape, natrient cycling, wildlife habitat Elm, E2a,
Eln, Elp
b. The proposed action may result in the loss of & current or future recreational resource. Clo, Els, =] o
Cle, E2q
¢. The proposed action mixy eliminate open space or recreational resource n an anss Cla, Clc o o
with few such resources. Ele, Elg
d. The proposed action may result in los of an area now used informally by the 2z, Ele o o
COMIUOILY 45 in Gpen Space IEsounos,
e, {Oiher tmpacis: n] a
12. Impact on Critical Environmental Areas
The propesed action may be located within or adjacent to a enitical Nﬂ [Jves
environmental area (CEA). (See Part 1. E.3.d)
If "Yes", answer questions a - ¢. If "Na", go to Sectior I3
Helevant M, or Maoderate
Part 1 small in large
uestion(a) impact impaet moy
may 0Ccur occur
a. The proposed action may result m a redustion in the quantity of the resource or E3d o o
characteristic which was the basis for designation of the CEAL
b. The proposed action may resalt in 2 reduction in the quality of the ressurce or Edd u] o
charactenistic which was the basis for designation of the CEA.
¢, Dther impacts: o o
|

Papge 7 of 10




13, Impact on Transportation

Th proposed action may result in 2 change to existing transportation systems.

[Mwo

[]ves

{See Part 1, D.2.7)
I Yes ", anewer guestions a - 0I5 "No”, go to Section 14,
Relevant Mo, or ¥inderate
Part [ small o karge
[uestiana) impack impact may
may Geeur occur
| 8. Projected traffic merense muy exceed capacity of existing road network. Dz O
b, The prapesed sction may sesult in the constraction of paved parking aren for 5 or | D2 %) 0
more vehicles.
€. The proposed action will degrade existing transit access Dz %) O
d. The proposed action will degrade existing pedestrian or bicycle sccommodations. D2 (%) ad
. The proposed action may alter the present pattern of movement of people or goods. Dij ¥l a
f. Oaher impacts; mmmlnmmmnnmﬂmmmmmgmmu , razantly O (=]
modied irmtersactions and raad nateark i prapact &te. The municipsl sie ravETa
pracess will ansure (bat trathc mpacts are minimized of Apprepniately mitigatad,

I4. Impact on Energy
The sed action may cause an increase in the use of any form of energy.
(See Part |, D2 K)
I " Yes™, answer questions d - ¢. I "Na ", go 1o Section 15,

o

[v]vEs

Relevant Mo, or Muoderate
Part 1 small 1o lurge
Question{s) impact | impact may
may gecur pecur
a. The proposed action will reguine a new, or an upgrade to an existing, substaton. D2k %] [N
b, The propased sction will require the creatbon of extension of an energy transmission | DMF 5| a
ot supply system to serve more than 50 single or bwo-Family residences or to servea | DMg, D7k
commerial or industrial use,
€. The proposed action msy wlilize naee tian 2,500 MWlirs per year of elecerizity. D2k % o
i The proposed action may invelve heating andior cooling of more than 100,000 square | Dg % O
feet of building area when completed.
&, Diher Impacts: =
15. Impact on Noise, Odor, and Light
The proposed action may result in an increase in noise, odors, or owtdoor lighting. I:'NCII ¥]vEs
{Sea Part |, D2m., n., and 0.}
I Ve ", mnawer guestions o - [7"No”, go fo Section 16
Relevant MNa, or Muoderate
Part I small to large
{Juestionis} impact impact may
By FCCHT OECUE
a. The proposed action may produce sound above noise levels established by local D2m %] O
rer |ation.
b. The proposed action may result in blasting within | 500 feet of any residence, D2m. Eld % Ll
hospital, schoal, licensed day care center, or nursing home.
¢. The proposed action may result in routine odors for more than ene hour per day. Do ¥ O

Page 8 of 10




d. The proposed sction may result in light shining onto adjoming properties. 3o 7 1
¢, The proposed action may resuli in lighting creating skv-glow brighter then existing DZn,Ela [} O
aren eonditions.
f, Orther impacis: Vahciel and squipmant uss during construction may sxceed (%] (]
16. Impact on Homan Health
The proposed zction may have an impact on human health from exposure [Juo [v]vES
to new or existing sources of contaminants. (See Part |.D2.g.,E 1L 4, L g andh.}
{f "Yes", answer questions a - m. I "No”, go to Section 17,
Relevant MNoar Mnderate
Part I small to barge
Cuestion(s) impact impact may
may ccour oCCur
. The proposed sction 18 located within 1500 feet of a schonl, bospial, licensed day Eld [ % O
care cenfer, group home, nursing home or retirement community.
b, The site of the proposed action is currently undergoing remediation. Elg, Elh %) O
¢. There is a completed emergency spill remediation, or a completed environmental site | Elg, Elh B O
remediation on, or adjacent Lo, the site of the proposed action.
d. The site of the action is subject to an institutional control limiting the use of the Elg.Elh %} O
progeerty (eg,, edsement or deed reatriction).
e. The proposed action may affect institutional control measures that were put in place | Elg, Elh %} O
o ensure that the site remains proteciive of the emvronment and human health
f. The proposed action has adequate control measures i place to ensure that future B (%] O
generation, treatment and/or disposal of hazardos wastes will be protective of the
environment and homan health,
g. The proposed action involves construction or modification of a solid waste Dig, E1f %} O
management facility.
h. The proposed sction may result in the unearthing of solid or hazardous waste. Dlg, EIf (%] O
i The proposed action may result in an incresse in the rate of disposal, or processing, of | D2r, D2s (%} O
golid wasie.
[ j. The proposed action may result in excavation or other disturbance within 2000 feet of | EIf Elg O
u site used for the disposal of solid or hazrdous waste. Elh
k. The proposed sction may result in the migration of explosive gases from 4 landill EILElg O
site to adjacent off site structires,
| The proposed action may resuli in the relesse of contaminated leachate from the D2s, EIf, %) O
project site. DiZr
m. Other impacts: Potential sits contarination and regulated building malsrisls from historic uses = B

Page 9 of 10



17. Consistency with Community Plans

The proposed action is not consistent with adopted land use plans. [#no [Jves
(See Part 1. C.1, C.2. and C.3.)
If "Yes", answer questions a - h._If "No”, go to Section 13
Relevant Mo, or Moderate
Part 1 small to large
Crueation(s) impait impact may
may seeur DLEIF
a. The proposed action’s land use components may be different from, or in sherp C2,C3, Dla o o
gonlrast to, current surrounding land use patem(s). Ela, Elb
b. The proposed action will cause the permanent popalation of the city, town or village | C2 o =}
in which the project is located to grow by more than 5%.
. The proposed action is inconsistent with bocal land use plans or zoning regulations, 2,0, 03
d. The propeaed sctioa 3 inconsistent with any County plans, or other regionsl land use | CL 02
plans,
. The proposed action may canse 8 change in the density of development that is naot C3, Dlc, o o
supported by existing infrasimuchare or is disimt ffom existing infrasmuctores, Dld, D1E
Did, Elb
[ The proposed actien (3 located {n & area characterized by low deasity development C4, DZe, D2d o o
that will require new or expanded public infrastructure, DZj
E The proposed action may mduce secondary development impacts (e.g., residential or | Cla o g
commercial development not inchaded in the propeaed action)
b. Oefer: o o
|
18. Consistency with Community Character
The proposed project is inconsistent with the existing community character, [wnD [Clves
(SeePart 1.C.2,C3,D.2,E.3)
A "Yer ", answer questions & - g J "No ", proceed fo Part 3.
Relevant Mo, ar Moderate
Part 1 small tiv large
Croestbonds) Impact impact may
MY GCCHr [ty
a. The proposed action may replace or eliminate existing facilities, aroctures, or areas | Ede, E3f, E3g =] o
of histore importance b the community,
b. The proposed action may cieate & demand for additional comerunity services (62 C4 2 H
scheols, police and fire)
¢, The proposcd action may displace affordable or low-incons: housing m an srea where | G, O3, DIE o o
there is ashnrhﬂeufmr:h hmml:g_ Dig Ela
d. The proposed action may interfere with the use or eojoymens of officially recognized | C2, E3 =4 8]
o1 destenated public resources.
. The proposed action is inconsistent with the predominant architectural scale and 2,03 o o
character.
f. Proposed action is inconsistent with the character of the existing natural landscape. 2,03 ; o o
Ela El
Elg. Elh
g. Orther mmpacts; Q o
PRINT FULL FORM Page 10 of 10




Agemey e Ouly [HApplicable]

Praject | » Wl Arciyssicprment Frojpc:
Crate o

Full Environmental Assessment Form
Part 3 - Evaluation of the Magnitude amd Importance of Profect Impacts
and
Deiermination of Slgnificance

Part 3 provides the reasons in support of the determination of significance. The lead agency must complete Part 3 fior every question
in Part 2 where the impact has been identified as potentlally moderate to large or where there 1s a need o explain why & particular
element of the proposed action will not, or may, result in & significant adverse environmental impact.

Based on the analysis in Part 3. the lead agency must decide whether 1o require an environmenial impact statement 1 farther assess
the proposed action or whether available information is sufficient for the lead agency o conclude that the proposed action will not
have a significant adverse environmental impact. By completing the certification on the next page, the lead agency can complele fs
determination of significance.

Reasons Supporting This Determination:
To complete this section:

Ldenlify the impact based on the Part 2 respomses and describe its magnitude, Magnitade considers fmeclors such as severity,
size or exfent af an impact

Assess the importance of the impact. Importsnce relates 1o the geographic scope. duration, probability of the impact
occurring, number of people affiected by the impact and any additional environmental consequences if the impact were to
EoCur.

The assessmient should take into consideration any design element or project changes.

Repent this process for each Part 2 question where the impact has been identified as potentially moderate Lo large or whene
there is a need fo explain why a particular element of the proposad action will not, or may, result in a significant adverse
environmental impact.

Provide the reason(s) why the impact may, or will not, result in a significant adverse environmental impact

For Conditional Megative Declarations idemtify the specific condition(s) imposed that will modify the proposed action so that
no significant adverse environmemdzl impacts will result.

Artach additional sheets, as needed.

san altached naralive

Determination of Significance - Type 1 and Unlisted Actions

SEQR Status: [¥] Type 1 [ Unlisted

|dentify portions of EAF completed for this Project [ff] Part 1 Part 2 [ Pun 3

FERF 2019




Ulpon review of the information recorded on this EAF, ac noted, plus this additional support information
fsfe plans and project documants

and considering both the magnitude and impomance of each identified potential impact, it i3 the conclasion of the
Catamgus r.'-m.:E.a Indusirial Develamant Agency as lead agency that:

[] A. This project will result in no significant adverse impacts on the environment, and, therefore, an environmental impact
statement nead mot be prepared. Accordingly, this negative declaration i issued.

[ B. Altsough this project could have a significant adverse impact on the environment, that impact will be avaided or
subatantially mitgated because of the fallovwmg conditicns which will be required by the bead agency;

There will, therefore, be no significant adverse impacts from the project as conditioned, and, thersfore, this conditioned negative
declaration i isswed, A conditioned negative declaration may be used only for UNLISTED actions (sez 6 WYCRR 617.7(d)).

[] ¢ This Project may result in one or more significant adverse impects on the environment, and an environmental impact
siatement must be prepared o further assess the impact(s) and possible mitigntion and o explore allematives i avoid or reduce those
impacts, Accordingly, this positive declarntion is issued,

Hﬂ'ﬂt nf A_.-_I,ﬁ,m-l_ Clean Mal mﬁwﬂﬂ F'I'l*d

Mame of Lead Apency; Caltaraugus County indusinal Devaloament Agency

Mame of Respansible Officer In Lead Agency; Corey B, Wiklor

Title of Responsible Officer: Execulive Diractor

Sigmature of Responaible Officer in Lead Agency: Drate:

Sigmature of Preparer {if different from Responsible Officer) Dhate:

For Further Information:

Cantack Person: Comy R, Wikior

Address: F.O. Box 1749, 8 East Washinglon Streel, Elcolivile. Mew Yok 14731
Telephone Number: (716) 6982005

E-mail: coray. callcagipmail com
For Type | Actions and Conditioned Negative Declarations, a copy of this Motice is seant to;

Chief Executive Officer of the political subdivizion in which the action will be principally located {e.g., Town ! City / Village of)
Oither ivvolved agencies (if any)

Applicant (if anv)

Environmental Motce Bulletin: hropsweww dec. iy gowenbvenb. him)

PRINT FULL FORM Page 2 0f 2




State Environmental Quality Review (SEQR] - Part 3 Narrative for Proposed Olean
Mall Redevelopment Project, Olean, New York

Olean Town Center LLC ("Applicant) proposes the redevelopment of an approximately
27.30 acre shopping mall campus {the “project”) located at 400-453 Morth Union Strest in
the City of Olean. Cattaraugus County, New York as described below:

Lot 1© currently improved with an approximately 4700 square fool existing single-use
building and would hawe related site improvements and other ancillary facilities and
improvements, including landscaping and parking.

Lot 2. the construction and equipping of an approximately 3,000 square foot single-use
building with drive-thru. together with related site improvements and other, ancillary

facilities and improverments, including landscaping and parking.

Lot 3 the construction and equipping of an approximately 3.000 square foot single-use
building with drive-thru, together with related site improvements and other ancillary
facilities and improvements. including landscaping and parking.

Lot 4: (i) the partial demalition (approximately 50.000 square feet) of the of the former Bon-
Ton anchor building: (i) the interior renovation of approdmately 20,500 square fest of the
former Bon-Ton anchor building; (i) paving and striping of the parking Lots; (iv) landscaping,
reorientation of existing driveways and installation of new entrance pylon sign.

Lot 5 a multi-phased project involving (a) () the demolition of former tenant spaces:; (il the
replacement of interior ‘commaon area” ceilings: (il facade restoration; and (bl (i} the interior
renovation of common areas and new tenant bulldouts Lol & the construction and
equipping of an approxdmaiely 35000 square fool building {oodium style consbructian),
together with related site improvements and other, ancillary facilities and improvements,

including landscaping and parking.

Lot & the construction and equipping of an approximately 35000 sqguare foot building
{podium style construction), together with related site improvements and other ancillary
facilities and improvements, including landscaping and parking.

Lot 7 the construction of approxamately 60 units of multifamily housing in a mult-story
structure together with landscaping and parking.

The Cattaraugus County IDA ("IDA"), as the designated lead agency under SEGRA, has
considerad the impacts of short-term construction activities, as well as the long-term
operation of the project in preparing its determination of significance for the proposed
action. The 1DA carefully reviewed the Information and answers given in the Part 1 EAF by
the Applicant. This infarmation informed the IDA's preparation of the Part 2 EAF. In addition.
the Part 1 EAF was circulated to the list of involved and interested agencies. Any comments
from these agencias were taken into account in the IDA’s consideration of its Determination

300 State Street, Suite 201 | Rochester. NY 19614 | p 505-454-6110 | f 585-454-3066



of Significance. In order to assess whether the potential impacts identified by the IDA may
have a significant adverse impact on the environment, the impacts reasonably expected to
resull from the proposed action were compared against the criterla for determining
significance provided in 6 NYCRR 617.7.

Based on this analysis, the IDA has not identified any large, significant adverse impacts on
the environment as a result of the proposed action. Instead, the potential impacts identified
using Part 2 of the EAF were found to be small moderate, temporary or minor in
importance, particularly in consideration of their magnitude. geographic scope,
irrenversibility, duration, number of people affected. and probability, The IDA therefore issues
a Megative Declaration for the project

The following is provided to document the reasoning and findings of the DA with regard to
the significance of potential environmenta! impacts, including the conclusion that no
potentially significant adverse environmental impacts have been found.

Impacts on Land and Erosion

The proposed project involves the redevelopment of a mall site located in Center City (CC)
district The proposed project is permitted within this zoning district, and there would be no
change in land use,

The total acreage to be physically disturbed is approximately 8 acres. Any site preparation
involving excavation would occur within previously disturbed solls and there are no
anticipated excavations to deeper lUmits than previously performed for the original mall
construction. The foundations for new structures are anticipated to be spread footers
meeoting frost depth requirements (size to be specified by structural engineers) typical of
commercial buildings and quick service restaurants, Any removals off-site would consist of
construction debris from demolition activities.

Additionally, the existing parking field would be maintained in its current footprint, The
parking field would include enhancements to reduce surface pavement and add new green
space,

The proposed project would be constructed in 3 to 4 phases over the next few years. All
work would be conducted within the project site's boundaries and would not encroach on
adjacent or neighboring properties. If groundwater Is encountered during construction,
standard dewatering technigues would be employed The construction site would have
appropriate erosion and sediment control measures in place to manage groundwater and
prevent contamination,

Lawn and pest treatment chemicals may be used as part of the landscape maintenance
program. The property management company would implament a plan to minimize the use
of chemicals and prioritize environmentally friendly practices,

[ &



The project would not have a significant adverse impact on soil resources resulting in
erosion. As noted above, the construction site would have appropriate erosion and
sediment control measures in place o manage groundwater and prevent contamination
The Applicant would be required to obtain, and comply with, all applicable NYSDEC permits
ralating to wastewater and stormmwater discharges, Further the Applicant would be required
to comply with all NYSDEC permitting requirements and requlations goveming erosion and
sediment control Therefore, no potentially significant adverse impacts on land have been
identified.

Impacts on Water Resources

The proposed action would be constructed exclusively within previously developed areas
of the mall campus and would not have any direct impacts on surface water or
groundwater resources in the area, which include Olean Creek flowing along the eastem
site boundary and the glacial outwash sand and gravel aguifer that underlies portions of tha
City of Qlean including the project site. Mo physical impacts to the bed or banks of Olean
Creek are planned in connection with the proposed action. Although the entire bank of the
craak, which is not located within the Projact Site, is cumrently green space, the introduction
of more permeable surfaces on the Project Site would minimize stormwater impacts.
Additionally. while lawn and pest treatment chemicals may be used as part of the
landscape maintenance program, the property management company would implement a
plan to minimize the use of chemicals and prioritize environmentally friendly practices. Best
management practices would be used to prevent runaflf of treatment chemicals to Olean
Creelk, Furthermore no withdrawals of surface water from Olean Creek or groundwater
from the aguifer are planned in connection with the redevelopment project

The current stormwater management system servicing the mall campus discharges directly
to Olean Creek. This systern may undergo some modifications intemally within the mall
campus to accommodate the site improvements and new construction, but would continue
to discharge to Olean Cresk through the current outlet The project site consists almost
entirely of Impervious surfaces and reductions in the area of iImpervious surfaces on the
mall campus are planned in connection with additional landscaping and greenspace
elements of the proposed action and should reduce the guantity of stormwater discharged
from the site to Olean Creek by incorporating additional green space. Furthermaore, any
modifications to the stormwater control system would be designed in accordance with
applicable local, state and federal requirements to ensure that there are no negative
impactis to the quality of the discharge to Olean Creek,

During construchion of the proposad site improvements and new construction elements. a
Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan {SWPPP) developed in accordance with lecal and
state reguirements would be implementad to prevent stormwater impacts. The Project
would also be subject to all requirerments and regulations related o wastewaler and
stormwater discharges as implemented by NYSDEC. This would include erosion and



sedimantation control measures to minimize sediment laden runoff or discharges from the
property. Simillarly, standard dewatering techniques would be employed shoutd shallow
groundwater be encountered during excavation activities required for the improvements.
ANy dewatering fluids generated during construction would be properly managed to
prevent impacts to surface water or groundwater resources. All dewatering activities would
comply with local, state, and federal regulations to ensure the protection of groundwater
resources, Therefore, no potentially significant adverse Impacts on water resources have
been identified.

Impacts on Flooding/Floodplains

The project site is located within the 100-year Mloodplain and consists almost entirely of
impervious surfaces The proposed project would result in reductions in the area of
Impervious surfaces on the mall campus in connection with additional landscaping and
greenspace elements and should reduce the quantity of stormwater discharged from the
site to Olean Creek by incorporating additional green space, Furthermore, any modifications
to the stormwater control systerm would be designed in accordance with applicable local
state and federal requirements. Temporary erosion and sediment control practices would
be installed to limit and capture stommwater runeff during censtruction, The proposed
project would comply with all local, state, and federal requirements for building in a
floodplain. As such, no potentially significant adverse flooding impacts or impacts to the
floodplain have been identified as a result of the proposed project.

Impacts an Air Guality

No new alr registrations or permits are associated with the proposed project Minor,
tesnporary air emissions would result from the use of construction vehicles and equipment
as well as staff. resident. customer, delivery, repair, maintenance. and waste management
vehicles during operations. Therefore, no potentially significant adverse impacts to alr
quality have been identified as a result of the proposed praject.

Impacts on Animals

New York State-listed rare, threatened, and endangered aquatic species were flagged by
the Environmental Assessment Form (EAF) Mapper Surmmary. The Project is not anticipated
to adversely impact populations of Longhead Darter, Wavyrayed Lampmussel, Rayed Bean,
Bluebreast Darter, Black Redhorse, Streamiine Chub or Hellbender, The project site remains
entirely within previously disturbed or impervious areas, and no work is proposed adjacent
to or within the bed or the banks of the Clean Creek.

During construction of the proposed site improvements and new construction elements, a
Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) developed in accordance with local and
slate requirements would be implemented to prevent stormwater impacts, The project



i

would also be subject to all requirements and regulations related to wastewater and
stormwater discharges as implermented by NYSDEC. Construction best managerent
practices, including ercsion and sediment control, would be In place to minimize any
potential impacts on aquatic habitats and water quality, As noted above, lawn and pest
treatment chemicals may be used as part of the landscape maintenance program. The
property management company would implement a plan to minimize the use of chemicals
and prioritize environmentally friendly practices.

The United States Department of the Interior Fish and 'Wildlife Service (USFWS) IPaC tool
flagged the endangered Northern Long-eared Bat as a species which may potentially occur
on or near the project site. Mo clearing of forested areas is proposed, In a letter dated
October 6, 2022. the USPWS indicated that the proposed action is not likely to result in an
unauthorized take of the Northern Long-eared Bat Therefore, no potentially significant
adverse impacts to animals have been identifled as a result of the proposed project.

Impacts on Agricultural Resources

The project site is not located within a New York State Agricultural District nor (s it located
on or near agricultural lands. Therefore, no potentially significant adverse impacts to
agricultural resources have been identified as a result of the proposed project.

Impacts on Scenic, Aesthetic, Historic, and Archaeological Resources

The Olean Creek. a Class C Streamn as identified by NYSDEC. flows along the eastemn
boundary of the project site. The proposed project is designed to be located entirely within
previously disturbed or impervious areas and no worl is proposed in the bed or banks of the
creek. Additionally, the project site is substantially contiguous to a historic bullding located
at 214 Morth Barry Street however, the proposed project is not anticipated to have any
impact an this historic building and would not impact views of this historic buillding, Based
on a review of the NYS Cultural Resource Information System {CRIS) Mapper, the project
site is also located within an area of potential archaeological sensitivity. The proposed
project was reviewed by the New York State Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation
Office and in its letier dated September 26, 2022, the New York State Parks, Recreation and
Historic Preservation Office determined that no properties, including archasological and/or
historic resources, listed in or eligible for the Mew York State and National Regisiers of
Historic Places would be impacted by the proposed project Therefore, the no potentially
significant adverse impacts to scenic, assthetic, historic, or archasological resources have
been identified as a result of the proposed project,

Impacts on Open Spaces and Recreation

The Olean Creek, a Class C Stream as identified by NYSDEC, flows along the eastem
boundary of the project site. Fishing activities occur in Glean Creek. The praject |s designed



to be located entirely within previously disturbed or impervious areas and no work Is
proposed in the bed or banks of the creek. As such, there would be ne direct impact on
recreational activities within the vicinity of the project site. including hunting, trapping. or
fishing. Therefore, no potentially significant adverse impacts to open spaces and recreation
have been identified as a result of the proposed praject,

Impacts on Critical Environmental Areas

Rewview of the NYS5 Environmental Resources Mapper (ERM) indicates the project site is not
located within a Critical Environmental Area (CEA). Therefore, no potentially significant
adverse impacts to CEAs have been identified as a result of the proposad project,

Impacts on Traffic and Transportation

Primary components of the proposed action involve the reconfiguration of an existing
retail mall facility supplemented by a separate 60-unit multi-family housing structure on
the mall property. Additionally, two 3,000 square foot single-use bulldings with drive-
through facilities would be constructed within the footprint of the existing mall property.
The existing primary access and egress point from the project site would remain, as
would internal traffic circulation patterns. The two single-use bulldings with drive-
through facilities would be accessed exclusively from the mall access road via the
existing mall entrance and exit.

Historically. during the time of greater occupancy, the mall generated traffic lovels that
exceeded current levels associated with the reduced occupancy at the mall Additional
trips to be generated by the redeveloped mall. multi-family housing facility and
outparcel businesses are expected to offset to some degree the reduction experienced
as a result of the mall's decline, Further, the proposed redevelopment is anticipated to
have a minimal impact on traffic levels and would not significantly increase demand for
transportation facilities or services. It is not expected that the trips generated by the
project would exceed trips previously generated by a fully cccupied mall.

Substantial maodifications to the roadway network and intersections servicing the
property were completed within the last decade. This includes modifications to the
geometry of North Unien Street INY Route 18) in the vicinity of the project site and the
intersection of the mall access road with North Union Street, which went from a
signalized intersection to a roundabout,

Additionally, peak trip generation would occur at different times for retail refated uses
and housing related uses. Parking has been planned to mest the needs of new and
existing tenants without creating excess demand, therefore there is no anticipated
significant new increase in parking dermand that would strain the current capacity.

m



Also, public transportation facilities are conveniently located within a reasonable
distance from the site and pedestrian and blcycle accommadations would remain well-
Integrated with existing routes. There would alsa be provisions made for altermnative-
fueled vehicles including increasing the availability of Electric Vehicle charging stations.

As part of the municipal site plan review process. the City of Olean, consulting as
necessary with the New York State Department of Transportation (NYSDOT), would
verify that the existing transportation network is capable of accommeodating the traffic
toc be generated by the proposed action at acceptable levels of service. This
assessment would occur as successive components of the proposed action are
advanced through the municipal site plan review process and would ensure that project
related traffic impacts are minimized or appropriately mitigated prior to the
implementation of each project phase. Therefore, no potentially significant adverse
impacts to traffic and transportation have been identified as a result of the proposed

project,
Impacts on Local Utilities and Energy Use

The electrical energy dernand from the proposed action is expected to be similar to levels
historically consumed by the mall during past periods of higher occupancy. The
incorporation of more energy efficient building techniques, materlals and fixtures for new
construction elements of the proposed action, as well as renovations to portions of the
existing mall, is anticipated to result in a measure of ensrgy consenvation,

Additionally, the capacities of the local utilities are sufficient to provide services to the
project, including to such utiliies after the Project becomes operational The existing local
utility weuld be able to supply required additional energy without requiring a new., or an
upgrade to an existing substation. The project site is also currently serviced by public water
and sewsr utilities with the capacity required for the proposed action, Therefore, no
potentially significant adverse Impacts to local utilities or energy have been identified as a
result of the proposed project.

Impacts on Noise, Odor and Light

MNoise levels during construction of the proposed action would likely temporarily
axceed ambient nolse levels in the project vicinity during active demolition and
construction work. However, the site is located in a commercial area and adjacent to
major transportation infrastructure Including Morth Union Street (NY Route 16} to the
west and an active railroad line to the south, Noise generated by these features would
likely mask temporary construction noise from the site during daytime hours,
Furthermere, the demolition and construction activities associated with the proposed
action would be required to comply with the City of Olean noise ordinance. This

5.|



0

ordinance prohibits such activities between the hours of 10:00 PM and 7:00 AM Sunday
through Saturday. The applicant has indicated that the hours of construction activity
would be mited to 7:00 AM to 6:00 PM daily, which are within those permitted under
the City's noise ordinance. Operating noise levels from the components of the proposed
action are expected to be similar to those generated by the current mall facility.
Therefare, no potentially significant adverse nolse impacts have been identified as a
result of the proposed action,

The Project is not anticipated to result in odors significant enough to result in an adverse
impact to the surrounding areas.

Lighting associated with the renovated mall, multi-family housing structure and out-
parcel buildings and their associsted parking areas would be consistent with
illumination levels within the current mall campus and surrounding commercial corridor,
Proposad lighting consists of LED and dark-sky compliant fixtures. New light fixtures
would be designed and installed to minimize light spill and related Impacts. As a result,
no patentially significant adverse lighting impacts have been identified as a resuit of the
proposed action.

Impacts on Public Health and Solid Waste

The project would not create a hazard to public health, To the contrary, the project would
present a significant improverment to the environment. particularly with respect to
revitalizing a blighted abandoned mall site and living accommodations of residents within
the community as the project includes the development of new multi-family housing.

Based upon the age of the existing matl complex and the results of a Phase | Environmental
Site Assessment {ESA) conducted in 2020, thera s the potential for hazardous building
materials (e, asbestos, lead paint, etc) and soil and/or groundwater contamination
stemming from historical site usage to be present within the building and on the project site,
respectively. As such, building demolition and renovation, site grading, and foundation and
infrastructure excavation activities have the potential to encounter hazardous building
materials and subsurface contamnation. However, corresponding impacts to public health
would be minimized or avoided through compliance with applicable regulations and safety
requirements, environmental monitoring during construction and abatement and/or
remediation of contaminants encountered in accordance with local state and federal
requirements. More specifically, the following measures are o be emploved during the
redevelopment project and would eliminate the potential for substantial public health

impacts:
Hazar 5 Building Materials

= Prior to demolition and renovation work, inspections by property certified professionals
would be conducted to identify any hazardous building materials;



= Abatement of any such materials would be performed by properly licensed contractors:

« Demolition and renovation werk would be conductad in accordance with NYS Industrial
Code Rule &6;

» Maonitoring would be conducted pursuant to applicable regulatory requirements; and

= All such materials would be handlad, transported and disposed of at properly permitted
off-site facilities.

contaminated Medi

s Environmental monitoring would be conducted by a Oualified Environmental
Professional (QEP! during activities that have the potential to expose or disturb
contaminated media (Le., soil, fill groundwater, etc.l;

s The QEP would oversee and ensure thal all impaclted media are managed in
accordance with applicable local state and federal regulations;

» The GEP would comply with appilicable regulatory reporting requirements upon
discovery of contamination:

¢+ Regulatory reguirements for the control remediation andsor removal of all
contaminated materal encountered during the redevelopment project would be
complied with, inclusive of any precautions or corrective measuras required o
safeguard human health and the environment.

Additionally, while solid waste s anticipated to be generated during construction and
operation of the facility, the project would not result in a significant increase in the
gencration of solid waste During construction approximately 24,000 tons per every s
manths would be disposed of during construction, and approximately 79 tons per year
would be disposed of during operations, these are not levels significant to cause an adverse
impact Any materials that cannot be reused or recycled would be disposed of by a local
llicensed waste handler. Therefore, no potentially significant adverse public health impacts
or impacts stemming from solid waste disposal have been identified as a result of the

propased action.
Impacts to Community Plans, Growth, and Character

The project site is located in the City Center (CC) zoning districl, the intenl of which is to
enable higher intensity mixed use develooment supportive of a vibrant urban environment.
The proposed project i consistent with the current zoning and is intended to revitalize the
mall property through a mix of commercial and residential improvemeants and development.
The City of Ql2an is currently in the process of updating their Comprehensive Development
Plan and, through this ongoing process, has identified improvements to the mall campus as
well as improvements to the diversity of housing through new development as priorities



maving forward, The proposed action is consistent with these priorities and supportive of a
number of the preliminary goals established through the comprehensive planning update
process, including:

«  |[mprove housing and neighborhoods

*« Advance economic development

= Promote optimal and efficient land use
» Enhance quality of life

The proposed action is intended to revitalize the existing mall property, which has been in
decline due to changing market conditions and consumer behaviors. The mall property and
naarty properties located along the North Union Street corridor have a character consistent
with a mature suburban retall’commercial coerddor. The Improverments and new
construction planned in connection with the proposed action would prevent the mall from
further decline and would modernize and improve the aesthetics of the property by
revitalizing a blighted/abandoned property which would encourage economic growth and
community revitalization. Furthermore, the project involves the development of much
needed multi-family housing which would have a beneficial impact on both residents and
businesses within the County,

As such, positive impacts to the character of this corfidor are expected to result from this
redevelopment project Therefore, no potentially significant adverse impacts to Community
Plans, Growth, or Character have been identified as a result of the proposed project



COUNTY OF CATTARAUGUS INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

INDUCEMENT RESOLUTION

OLEAN TOWN CENTRE LLC, AND/OR INDIVIDUAL(S) OR AFFILIATE(S),
SUBSIDIARY(IES), OR ENTITY{IES) FORMED OR TO BE FORMED ON ITS

BEHALF

A regular meeting of the County of Cattaraugus Industrial Development Agency was
convened on Thursday, August 22, 2024 at 9:00 a.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:

RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY OF CATTARAUGUS INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY: (i) ACCEPTING THE APPLICATION OF
OLEAN TOWN CENTRE LLC, AND/OR INDIVIDUAL(S) OR
AFFILIATE(S), SUBSIDIARY(IES), OR ENTITY(IES) FORMED OR TO BE
FORMED ON ITS BEHALF (INDIVIDUALLY, AND/OR COLLECTIVELY,
THE “COMPANY™) IN CONNECTION WITH A CERTAIN PROJECT
DESCRIBED BELOW; (ii) RATIFYING THE SCHEDULING, NOTICING,
AND CONDUCTING OF A PUBLIC HEARING [N CONNECTION WITH
THE PROJECT; (ui) APPOINTING THE COMPANY, OR ITS DESIGNEE, AS
ITS AGENT TO UNDERTAKE THE PROJECT; (iv) AUTHORIZING THE
UNDERTAKING OF THE PROJECT TO PROVIDE FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE TO THE COMFPANY IN THE FORM OF (A) A SALES TAX
EXEMPTION BENEFIT FOR PURCHASES AND RENTALS RELATED TO
THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION AND EQUIPPING OF THE
PROJECT, (B) A MORTGAGE RECORDING TAX EXEMPTION BENEFIT
FOR FINANCING RELATED TO THE PROJECT, AND {C) A PARTIAL
ABATEMENT FROM REAL PROPERTY TAXES BENEFIT THROUGH
PILOT AGREEMENTS; AND (v) AUTHORIZING THE NEGOTIATION AND
EXECUTION OF A LEASE AGREEMENT, LEASEBACK AGREEMENT, A
PAYMENT-IN-LIEU-OF-TAX AGREEMENT, AN AGENT AND FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE PROJECT AGREEMENT, AND RELATED DOCUMENTS

WHEREAS, County of Cattaraugus Industrial Development Agency (ithe “Agency™) is
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York,
constituting Title 1 of Article 1B-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “Enabling Act™) and Chapter 536 of the 1971
Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 8%0-b of said General Muni¢ipal Law (said
Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Act™) to promote,
develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, reconstructing, improving,
maintaining, equipping and fumishing of manufacturing, warehousing, research, commercial and
industrial [acilities, among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing
economiczally sound commerce and industry to advance the job opportunitics, health, gencral
prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their
prosperity and standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and



WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and empowered
under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more “projects” (as defined in
the Act), or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed, reconstructed and installed, and to
convey said projects or to lease said projects with the obligation to purchase; and

WHEREAS, the Company has submitted an application to the Agency (the
“Application™) requesting the Agency’s assistance with a certain project (the “Project”)
consisting of: (i) the acquisition by the Agency of a leasehold interest in certain property located
at 400-459 North Union Street in the City of Olean, Cattaraugus County, New York and all other
lands in the City of Olean where, by license or easement or other agreement, the Company or its
designees are making improvements that benefit the Project (the *“Land™), (ii) partial demolition
of the former Bon-Ton facility and reconstruction and/or renovation of approximately 20,500 sq.
ft for one or more retail related uses (the "Existing Improvements™); the construction of three
3.000 sq. ft. single-use buildings; construction of an approximately 35.000 sg. fi. podium style
facility (the “Improvements™); and (iii) the acquisition by the Company in and around the
Existing Improvements and the Improvements of certain items of machinery, equipment and
other tangible personal property (the “Equipment™; and, together with the Land, Existing
Improvements and the Improvements, the “Facility™). The Facility will be initially operated
and/or mansged by the Company; and

WHEREAS, the Agency contemplates that it will provide financial assistance to the
Company for qualifying portions of the Project in the form of ssles and use tax exemption
benefits, mortpage recording tax benefits, and real property tax abatement benefits (collectively,
the “Financial Assistance™). With respect to the contemplated real property tax abatement, and in
recognition of the speculative nature of the Project, the Company requested that the Agency
enter into up o six separate payment in lieu of tax agreements (each a "PILOT Agreement” and
collectively, the “PILOT Agreements™), said PILOT Agrecment(s) to be entered into no later
than August 22, 2029, having terms that deviate from the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption
Policy (the “UTEP™)} standard Qualified Commercial Facility (Renovation) PILOT and Qualified
Commercial Facility (New Construction) PILOT by extending the term by six years, with respect
to the Qualified Commercial Facility (Renovation) PILOT, and by one year, with respect to the
Qualified Commercial Facility (Mew Construction) PILOT, with an adjusted Percentage of
Exemption, as follows:

PILOT Year Percen mplion

I through 5 100%

(1] W%

7 8%

i E 70%
9 6%

110 S0°%

11 0%

12 and thereafler 0%




WHEREAS, notice letters detailing the requested PILOT Agreement and UTEP
deviation as 50 described herein were mailed or delivered to the chief executive officers of each
Affected Tax Jurisdiction on August 6, 2024; and

WHEREAS, at this August 22, 2024, meeting of the Apgency, the Agency allowed
representatives of all Affected Tax Jurisdictions present at the mecting to address the Agency
with respect to the deviation from the Agency’s UTEP; and

WHEREAS, the Project constitutes a "retail” project as defined under Section 862 of the
Act and as such requires additional findings; and

WHEREAS, the Agency must, prior to providing any Financial Assistance to such a
"retail” Project find that: (1) the Project is likely 1o attract a significant number of visitora from
cutside the economic development region in which the Project is located as established by
section two hundred thirty of the New York Economic Development Law; or (2) the
predominant purpose of the Project would be to make available goods or services which would
not, but for the Project, be reasonably accessible to residents of the City of Olean because of a
lack of reasonably accessible retail trade facilities offering such goods or services; or (3) the
Project is located in a “highly distressed area™ as such term is defined in Section 854(1K) of the
Act, and, in addition, find that the undertaking of the Project will serve the public purposes of the
Act by preserving permanent, private sector jobs or increase the overall number of permanent,
private sector jobs in the State; and thereafter obtain the approval of the chief executive officer of
the County of Cattaraugus, New York, confirming the Agency's finding; and

WHEREAS, the Project is located in census tract 9617, which is contiguous to census
tract 2613, which is considered to be a distressed census fract and therefore is in a “highly
distressed area™ as such term is defined in Section 854(18) of the Act; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to General Municipal Law Section 85%-a, on August 20, 2024, at
900 a.m., at the Qlean City Municipal Building, Mayor’s Conference Room #119, 101 East
State Street, Olean, New York 147680, the Agency held a public hearing with respect to the
Project and the proposed Financial Assistance (as hereinafter defined) being contemplated by the
Agency (the “Public Hearing™) whereat interested partics were provided a reasonable
opportunity, both orally and in writing, to present their views; and

WHEREAS, it is contemplated that the Agency will {i) designate the Company as its
agenl for the purpose of undertaking the Project pursuant to an Agent and Financial Assistance
Project Agreement (the “Apent Agreement™), (ii) negotiate and enter into a lease agreement(s)
(the “Lease Agreement’) and related leaseback agreementis) (the “Leaseback Agreement™) with
the Company, pursuant to which the Agency will retain a leasehold interest{s) in the Land, the
Existing Improvements, the Improvements, the Equipment and personal property constituting the
Facility; and (iii} provide Financial Assistance to the Company in the form of (2) an exemption
benefit from all New York State and local sales and use taxes for purchases and rentals related to
the Project with respect to the qualifying personal property included in or incorporated into the
Facility or used in the acquisition, construction, reconstruction and/or renovation, rehabilitation
or equipping of the Facility, (b} a mortgage recording tax exemption benefit for the financing
related to the Project, and {c) a partial abatement from real property taxes benefit through an



eleven (11) year term PILOT Agreement(s) for the benefit of each municipality and school
district having taxing jurisdiction over the Project; and

WHEREAS, by resolution dated August 22, 2024, the Agency adopted a nepative
declaration with respect to the Project in compliance with the New York State Environmental
Quality Review Act; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 18-A of the Act, the Agency desires to adopt a
resolution describing the Project and the Financial Assistance that the Agency is contemplating
with respect to the Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE
COUNTY OF CATTARAUGUS INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS
FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Company has presented an application in a form acceptable to the
Agency. Based upon the representations made by the Company to the Agency in the Company's
application and any other comespondence submitted by the Company to the Agency, public
hearing comments, if any, and Agency board member review of and recommendations related to
the Project and its resolution to approve the Project subject to the terms and conditions as
described herein, the Agency board member review of the Project’s cost benefit ratio, the costs
of incentives so applied for, the anticipated new tax revenues to he generated by the Project, as
well as the Project's contemplated community benefits, and Agency board member review,
discussion, and consideration of same, the Agency hereby finds and determines that:

(A} By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and
convenient 1o carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all
powers granted to it under the Act; and

(B) Tt is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to appoint the Company as
its agent for purposes of acquiring, constructing and/or renovating and equipping the Project; and

(Cy  The Agency has the authority to take the actions contemplated herein under the
Act; and

(D}  The action to be taken by the Agency will induce the Company to develop the
Project, thereby inereasing and/or retaining employment opportunities in Caftaraugus County,
New York and otherwise furthering the purposes of the Agency as set forth in the Act; and

(E}  The Project will not result in the removal of a civie, commercial, indastrial, or
manufacturing plant of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project from one
area of the State of New York (the “State™) to another area of the State or result in the
abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the Company or any other proposed occupant
of the Project located within the State; and the Agency hereby finds that, based on the
Company's application, to the extent occupants are relocating from one plant or facility to
another, the Project is reasonably necessary to discourage the Project occupants from removing
such other plant or facility to a location outside the State and/or is reasonably necessary to
preserve the competitive position of the Project occupants in their respective industries, and, to



the extent occupants are relocating from one plant or facility to another in another area of the
State, the Agency has complied with the Act’s abandonment procedures; and

(F)  The Agency has assessed all material information included in connection with the
Application necessary to afford a reasonable basis for the decision by the Agency to provide
Financial Assistance for the Project as described herein; and

(G)  The Agency has prepared a written cost-benefil analysis satisfactorily identifying
the Project’s cost-benefit ratio, the costs of incentives so applied for, the anticipated new tax
revenues o be generated by the Project, the extent to which the Project will create or retain
permanent, private sector jobs, the amount of private sector investment generated or likely to be
generated by the Project, the likelihood of accomplishing the Project in a timely fashion, and the
extent to which the Project will provide additional sources of revenue for municipalities and
school districts, and any other public benefits that might occur as a result of the Project; and

(H)  The Company has provided a written statement confirming that the Project as of
the date of the Application is in substantial compliance with all provisions of the Act.

(I)  The Project is situate within a "highly distressed area” as such term is defined in
Section 854(18) of the Act and therefore gualifies for Financial Assistance under
Section 862(2)(b)}ii) of the Act. The Apency hereby finds that, as required under
Section 862(2)c) of the Act, the undertaking of the Project will serve the public purpose of the
Act by preserving permanent, private sector jobs or increasing the overall number of permanent,
private sector jobs in New York State. In compliance with Section 862(2)(c) of the Act, prior to
providing Financial Assistance to the project, the Chief Executive Officer of the County of
Cattaraugus shall provide written confirmation confirming that the Project will serve the public
purpose of the Act by preserving permanent private sector jobs or increasing the overall number
of permanent, private sector jobs in the State of New York.

h The Project qualifies for Agency Financial Assistance as it meets the Agency’s
general uniform criteria for project evaluation, said criteria established by New York State and
the Agency as required under General Municipal Law Section 859-a(5) as evidenced by the
following:

(1) Extent 10 which the Project will create or retain jobs: The Project will
retain at least one FTE employee position and create at least one new FTE
employee position, however, assuming the Project is able to attract new
tenants, many more full-time and part-time employee positions will be
created because of the Company s investment.

{(ii)  The estimated total value of Financial Assistance is approximately
$5,321,532 over the 11-year real property tax abatement benefit period

(ii)  The estimated amount of private sector investment to be made by the
Company is $40,229315,

{iv) Likelihood of the Project being accomplished in a timely fashion: There is
a high likelihood that the Project will be completed in a timely manner,



with initial demolition and improvements beginning in the fourth quarter
of 2024, and phased development anticipated to occur in five phases over
the mext five years, or sooner, based upon the ability of the Company o
attract end-users.

(v}  Extent of new revenue provided to local taxing jurisdictions: By
rehabilitating and creating new retail space and facilities, it is anticipated
that new retail tenants will establish facilitics at the Project site, thus
attracting visitors to the Facility and to the City Olean resulting in new and
increased sales tax revenues.

(vi)  The extent to which the Project will create local construction jobs. The
Company will ctilize local construction contractors to the maximum
extent possible.

(K}  The proposed Financial Assistance to be provided under the PILOT Agreement(s)
with respect to the Project deviates from the terms of the UTEP. The Agency hereby approves of
the PILOT Agreement deviation as described herein. In making this determination, the Agency
has considered the following factors as required by the Act and its UTEP, no single one of which
is determinative:

. The nature of the proposed project: The Project is primarily a retail project that
will provide significant opportunity for the retention and creation of new temancies and
employment opportunities at the Project Facility, in that it will allow for the retention of
employee positions for existing tenants at the Project Facility, with the potential to create
additional full and part time employee positions by virtue of increasing overall tenant occupancy
at the Project Facility, and indirect secondary benefits (including consumer purchasing
opportunities, new sales tax revenues, and employee expenditures on local goods and services) to
residents of Cattaraugus County.

. The nature of the property before the project begins: The Project Facility is
comprised of the existing Olean Mall (the *Mall™).

. The economic condition of the area at the time of the application and the
sconomic multiplying effect the project will have on the area: The Project involves the
renovation, construction and equipping of the Mall site. The condition of the Mall has steadily
deteriorated over the last several years. The construction component of the Project contemplates
an approximate $40,000,000 investment in the Mall and its existing facilities, as well as related
construction of new Mall facilities to increase overall occupancy. The Project Facility, upon
completion, will revitalize the existing Mall campus, atiract new retail tenants, and has the
potential to create new employment opporiunities in the community through expanded tenant
occupancy opporunities at the Project Facility.

. The extent to which the project will create or refain permanent, private sector
jobs, the number of jobs to be created/retained and/or the salary ranges of such jobs: The Project
will, by atiracting new Mall tenants, create new full time and part time employee positions,
predominantly at retail service level wages and management level wages.



. The estimated value of tax exemptions to be provided: Sales tax exemption
benefits are estimated at $1,551,560, mortgage recording tax exemption benefits are estimated at
$437.991, and real property tax abatement benefits are estimated at $3,331,981 over the term of
the 11 year PILOT Agreement.

. The economic impact of the praject and the proposed tax exemptions on affected
tax jurisdictions: The Project has the potential to attract and generate new retail and commercial
activity over the term of the PILOT Agreement, It will revitalize a current blighted and
declining Mall structure and area within the urban core of the City of Olean. The Project will
generate new sales tax revenues and new part-time and full-time employment opportunities for
City and County residents.

- The impact of the proposed project on existing and proposed businesses and
economic development projects in the vicinity: See above. In addition, by revilalizing a
blighted and vacant area of the City of Olean, it is anficipated that increased interest, traffic,
visitors and shoppers to this area of the City of Olean may spur addibional investment and
revitalizalion efforts on adjacent properties.

. The amount of private sector investment generated or likely to be generated by
the proposed project: The Project involves up to a 340,299.31 5.00 private sector investment.

. The likelihood of accomplishing the proposed project in a timely fashion: The
Project is contemplated to be undertaken in up to six different phases, with initial demolition and
construction activities beginning as early as fall'winter 2024, Une or more phases are anticipated
to be completed within the next five years.

. The effect of the proposed project upon the environment and surrounding
property:  The Project will not have a significant adverse impact on the environment, and
rehabilitating this blighted, near vacant structure will have a positive impact on the community.

. The extent to which the proposed project will require the provision of additional
services including, but not limited 1o, educational, transportation, emergency medical or police
and fire services: It is not likely that the Project will require additional governmental services.

. The extent to which the proposed project will provide additional sources of
revenue for municipalities and school districts in which the project is located: The proposed
Project will most likely increase local sales tax revenues resulting from direct purchases made by
customers who wvisit the Project Facility within Cattaraugus County. PILOT Apreement
payments will provide new revenues to municipalities and the school district compared to the
amount of real property taxes that would otherwise be received in the event that the proposed
Project does not move forward.

. The extent to which the proposed project will provide a benefit {economic or
otherwise) not otherwise available within the municipality in which the project is located: The
tenants occupying the Project Facility will refain and create part fime and full time employment
opportunities, thus increasing local wages and related incidental spending, locally and within the
region, providing wealth creation. The Project will also attract new tenants, which will increase



otherwise absent retail opportunities for consumers. The impact of the Project is a positive one
on the community, as it will continue to promote job opportunities, eliminate blight, and increase
the general prosperity and economic welfare for the residents of Cattaraugus County.

(L}  As an additional consideration with respect to the Agency's approval of the
requested PILOT Agreements{s) and deviation from the Agency’s UTEP as related thereto, the
Agency's approval of the PILOT Agreements(s) is subject to the Land and the Existing
Improvements thereon being taxed withowt abatement, such thai the Company shall be
respongible for the payment of 100% of the amount of general taxes and assessinents payable to
each Affected Tax Jurisdiction as if the Facility™s Existing Improvements were owned by the
Company and the Agency did not have a leasehold interest therein.

Section 3. Subject to the Company executing an Agent Agreement and the delivery
to the Agency of a binder, certificate or other evidence of insurance for the Project satisfactory to
the Agency, thc Agency hereby authorizes the Company to proceed with the acquisition,
construction and equipping of the Project and hereby appoints the Company as the true and
lawful agent of the Agency: (i) to acquire, construct and/or renovate and equip the Project; (ii) to
make, execute, acknowledge and deliver any contracts, orders, receipts, writings am:l
instructions, as the stated agent for the Agency with the authority to delegate such agency, in
whole or in part, to agents, subagents, contractors, and subcontractors of such agents and
subggents and to such other parties as the Company cheoses; and (iii) in general, to do all things
which may be requisite or proper for completing the Project, all with the same powers and the
same validity that the Agency could do if acting in its own behalf, provided, however, the
appointment of the Company as agent of the Agency, if utilized, shall expire one year from the
date of this resolution {unless extended for good cause by the Chair, the Vice Chair, and/or the
Executive Director).

A Financial Assistance, With respect to the foregoing, and based upon the
representations and warranties made by the Company in its application for Financial Assistance,
the Agency hereby:

(i) authorizes and approves the Company, as its agent, to make purchases of
goods and services relating to the Project and that would otherwise be subject to New
York State and local sales and use tax in an amount estimated up to 19,394,505, and,
therefore, the value of the sales and use tax exemption benefits (“sales and use tax
exemption benefits™) authorized and approved by the Agency cannot exceed 51,551,560,
however, the Agency may consider any requests by the Company for increases to the
amount of sales and use tax exemption benefits authorized by the Agency upon being
provided with appropriate documentation detailing the additional purchases of property
or services; and

(if)  authorizes and approves that the value of the mortgage recording tax
exemplion benefit (“mortgage recording tax exemption benefits™) shall not exceed
5437.991; and

(iiiy  authorizes and approves that the real property tax abatement benefits
(“PILOT benefits™) to be provided over the term of the PILOT Agreement are estimated



to be approximately 53331981 resulting in estimated total PILOT payments of
$1,568,059 over the term of the PILOT Agreement.

B. Terms and Conditions of Financial Assistance. Pursuant to Section 875(3) of the
MNew York General Municipal Law, and per the policies of the Agency, the Agency may recover
or recapture from the Company, ils agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party
authorized to make purchases for the benafit of the Project, any New York State and local sales
and use tax exemption benefits, and/or mortgage recording tax exemption benefits, and/or partial
abatements from real property taxes benefits taken or purported to be taken by the Company, its
agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party authorized to make purchases for the
benefit of the Project, if it is determined that: (i) the Company, ils agents, consultanis,
subcontractors, or any other party authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, is
not entitled to the Wew York State and local sales and use tax exemption benefits; (ii) the New
York State and local seles and use tax exemption benefits are in excess of the amounts
authonzed 1o be taken by the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party
authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project; (iiil) the New York State and local
sales and use tax exemption benefits are for property or services not authorized by the Agency as
part of the Project; (iv) the Company has made a material false statement on its application for
Financial Assistance; andfor (v) the New York State and local sales and use tax exemption
benefits and/or morigage recording tax exemption benefits, andfor the partial abatement from
real property taxes benefits are taken in cases where the Company, its agents, consultants,
subcontractors, or any other party authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project,
fails to comply with the Investiment Commitment, the Employment Commitment, and/or the
Construction Jobs and Local LaborVendor Commitment, said commitments, as described
below, being a material term or condition to use properly or services in the manner approved by
the Agency in connection with the Project.

Az a condiion precedent of receiving Financial Assistance, the Company, its agents.
consultants, subcontractors, or any other party authorized to make purchases for the benefit of
the Project, must cooperate with the Agency in its efforts to recover or recapture any Financial
Assistance, and promptly pay over any such amounts to the Agency that the Agency demands.

C. Commitments. As an additional condition precedent of receiving Financial
Assistance, and as a material term or condition as approved by the Agency in connection with
the Project, the Company covenants and agrees and understands that it must, subject to potential
modification, termination and/or recapture of Financial Assistance for failure to meet and
maintain the commitments and thresholds as described below, submit, on an annual basis or as
otherwise indicated below through the termination of the PILOT Agreement, a certification, as
so required by the Agency, confirming:

(i) Investment Commitment - the total investment actually made with respect to the
Project at the time of Project completion eguals or exceeds 540,229,315, being the
total project cost as stated in the Company™s application for Financial Assistance.

(1)  Employment Commitment — that there is at least one existing full ime equivalent
(“FIE™} employee located at, or to be located at, the Facility as stated in the
Company's application for Financial Assisiance (the “Baseline FTE"); and



o the number of current FTE employees in the then current yvear at the Facility;
and

& that within two (2) years of Project completion, the Company has created one
new FTE employee position at the Facility.

(iii) Construction Jobs and Local LaborVendor Commitment - that the Company will
utilize local labor and local vendors to the maximum extent possible for

construction purposes.

Section 4. Subject to the terms of this Inducement Resolution, the Chair, the Vice
Chair, andfor the Executive Director, are hereby authorized, on behall of the Agency, to
negotiate, execute and deliver (A) an Agent Agreement, (B) the Lease Agreement whereby the
Company leases the Project to the Agency, (C) the related Leaseback Agreement whereby the
Agency leases the Project back to the Company, and (D) the PILOT Agreement and (E) related
documents; provided, however, that (i) the rental payments under the Leaseback Agreement to
the Company include payments of all costs incurred by the Agency arising out of or related to
the Project, the Project’s approvals, and indemnification of the Agency by the Company for
actions taken by the Company and/or claims arising out of or related to the Project; and (ii) the
terms of the PILOT Agreement are consistent with the Apency's Uniform Tax Exemption
Policy, or procedures for deviation have been complied with accordingly.

Section 3. Subject to the terms of this Inducement Resolution, the Chair, the Vice
Chair, and/or the Executive Director, are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to
negotiate, execute and deliver any mortgage, assignment of leases and rents, security agreement,
UICC-1 Financing Statements and all documents reasonably confemplated by these resolutions or
required by any lender identified by the Company (the “Lender”) up to & maximum principal
amount necessary to undertake the Project, aequire the Facility andfor finance or refinance
acquisition and Project costs or equipment and other personal property and related transactional
costs (hereinafter, with the Lease Agreement, Leaseback Agreement, and related documents,
collectively called the “Agency Documents™); and, where appropriate, the Secretary or the
Assistant Secretary of the Agency is hereby authorized to affix the seal of the Agency to the
Agency Documents and to atiest the same, all with such changes, variations, omissions and
ingsertions as the Chair, the Vice Chair, and/or the Executive Director of the Agency shall
approve, the execution thereof by the Chair, the Vice Chair, and/or the Executive Director of the
Apgency to constitute conclusive evidence of such approval; provided in all events recourse
against the Agency is limited to the Agency’s interest in the Praject.

Section 6. The Executive Director of the Apency is hereby authorized and directed to
give notice in writing to the chief executive officer of each affected tax jurisdiction regarding the
proposed deviation of the terms of PILOT Agreement from the Agency's Uniform Tax
Exemption Policy, and to do such further things or perform such acts as may be necessary to
comply with Section 874 of the Act.

Section 7. The provision by the Agency of Financial Assistance with respect to the
Project as described herein is subject to the Agency’s policies.

10



Section 8. This resolution shall take effect immediately, and shall expire one (1) year
from the date hereof unless extended for good cause by the Chair, the Vice Chair, and/or the
Executive Director,

Dated: August 22, 2024



SEQRA RESOLUTION
Mean Mall Redevelopment)

A regular meeting of the County of Cattaraugus Industrial Development Agency was
convened on Thursday, August 22, 2024 at 9:00 a.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:

RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY OF CATTARAUGUS INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY ISSUING A NEGATIVE DECLARATION
PUESUANT TO THE NEW YORK STATE ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
REVIEW ACT FOR. THE OLEAN MALL REDEVELOPMENT

WHEREAS, the County of Cattaraugus Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency™)
15 authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York,
constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the
Consolidated Laws of Mew York, as amended (the “Enabling Act™) and Chapter 336 of the 1571
Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 890-b of said General Municipal Law (said
Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Act™ to promote,
develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, reconstructing, improving,
maintaining, equipping and furnishing of manufacturing, warchousing, research, commercial and
industrial facilities, among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing
economically sound commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general
prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their
prosperity and standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and

WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and empowered
under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more “projects” (as defined in
the Act), or to cause said projects to be scquired, constructed, reconstructed and installed, and to
convey said projects ot to lease said projects with the obligation to purchase; and

WHEREAS, the Olean Town Centre LLC andfor Individualis) or Affiliate(s),
Subsidiary(ies) or Entity(ies) formed or to be formed on its behalf (individually andfor
collectively, the “Company™) hes submitted an application (the “Application™) for certain
financial assistance to the Apency with respect to a project (the “Project™) consisting of: (i) the
acquisition by the Agency of a leasehold interest in certain property located at 400-459 North
Union Street in the City of Olean, Cartaraugus County, New York and all other lands in the City
of Olean where, by license or easement or other agreement, the Company or its designees are
making improvements that benefit the Project (the “Land™), (ii) partial demolition of the former
Bon-Ton facility and reconstruction and/or renovation of approximately 20,500 sq. fi. for one or
mare retail related uses; the construction of two 3,000 sq. f1. single-use buildings; improvements
to an approximately 4,700 square foot existing single-use building and related site
improvements; construction of an approximately 35,000 sq. ft. podium style facility (the
“Improvements™); (iii) the acquisition by the Company in and arcund the Tmprovements of
certain items of machinery, equipment and other tangible personal property (the “Equipment™;
and, together with the Land and the Improvements, the “Project Facility™), (iv) and the



development of an outparcel as a multi-story housing development containing 60 apartment
units, which will provide significant environmental benefits to the region by promoting,
atracting and developing economically sound commerce and industry to advance job
opportunities, general prosperity and cconomic welfare of the people of the County of
Cattaraugus; and facilitate a component of a comprehensive, long-term, and cost-effective
solution to the economic and community challenges currently facing the City of Olean and the
County of Cattaraugus; and

WHEREAS, the Agency must comply with Article & of the New York Environmental
Conservation Law and the regulations adopted thereto at 6 N.Y.C.RR Part 617 {collectively
referred to as "SEQRA"), and determine whether or not the Project presents a potential
significant adverse environmental impact; and

WHERKEAS, v assist the Agency in determining whether the undertaking of the Project
may have a potential significant adverse effect upon the environment, the Company has prepared
and submifted to the Agency a Full Environmental Assessment Form (the “EAF™) and
supporting comespondence (the EAF and supporting correspondence collectively referred to as
the “SEQRA Materials™), and copies of said SEQRA Materials are on file in the office of the
Agency and are readily accessible to the public; and

WHEREAS, the Agency retained a consultant, Labella Associates (“Labella™, to
support the Agency in it review and analysis of the Project and SEQRA Materials; and

WHEREAS, by letter dated February 6, 2024, the Agency distributed notice of its intent
to act as lead agency to complete the SEQRA review of the Project to all involved and interested
agencies, forwarded copies of the EAF to all such involved and interested agencies, and
requested that each mvolved agency consent to the Agency acting as lead apency pursuant to
SEQRA and provide any applicable comments to be considered by the Agency in reaching its
determination of environmenial significance for the Project; and

WHEREAS, none of the involved agencies objected to the Agency acting as lead agency
within the regulatory 30-day time period pursaant to SEQRA; and

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to declare itself as Lead Agency under 6 NY.C.R.R.
§617.6 of SEQRA; and

WHEREAS, the Agency has reviewed all information provided in the Part | of the EAF
and the SEQRA Materials submitted by the Company regarding the activities proposed for the
Project and the potential impacts of the Project on the environment, and completed the responses
required in Parts 2 and 3 of the EAF, as such Partg 1, 2, and 3 of the EAF are enclosed herein
within Exhibit “A”; and

WHEREAS, the Agency has considered the sipnificance of the potential adverse
environmental impacts of the Project by; (a) using the criteria specified in 6 NY.CRR § 617.7
of the SEQRA regulations; (b) examining the EAF and the SEQRA Materials for the Project in
order to identify potential environmental impacts; and (¢) thoroughly analyzing the identified
potential environmental impacts to determine their significance and seope.



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE
COUNTY OF CATTARAUGUS INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS
FOLLOWS:

Upon due consideration by the Apency of the SEQRA Materials, the comments provided
by the involved agencies and the public, as well as the surveys and studies completed, the
Agency makes the following findings:

Section 1. The Agency has considered the Project pursuant to the parameters set
forth in 6 N.Y.C.R.R. §§ 617.2(b) and 617.3(g) of the SEQRA regulations.

Section 2. The Agency classifies the Project as a Type | action pursuant to the
SEQRA regulations.

Section 3. The Agency declares itself “Lead Agency™ as said term is defined by
SEQRA with respect to undertaking a coordinated review of the Project pursuant to SEQRA;

Section 4.  The Agency has carefully reviewed the SEQRA Materials, the Application
and the criteria set forth in 6 N.Y.C.RR. § 617.7(c) of the SEQRA regulations, as well as
considered the comments received from the inveolved agencies and the public regarding the
Project. Based on the foregoing, the Agency has thoroughly and comprehensively analyzed the
potential relevant areas of environmental concern, and finds that the Project will not result in a
potential significant adverse impact on the environment for the following reasons:

(a) Land, The Project will not have a significant adverse impact on land. While the
Project Site total acreage is approximately 27.39 acres, the total acreage to be physically
disturbed is +/- B acres. Any site preparation involving excavation is within previously disturbed
soils and there are no anticipated excavations to deeper limits than previously performed for the
original mall construction. Any removals off-site will be construction debris from demolition.
Additionally, the existing parking field will be maintained in its current footprint, and regarding
the foundations for new structures the foundations are anticipated to be spread footers meeting
frost depth requirements typical of commercial buildings and quick service restaurants. The
Project will also not result in the modification or destruction of any unique or unusual land forms
{e.g., cliffs, dunes, fossils, caves) or other significant land resources.

(b)  Adr Ouality. While air emissions may oceur during the phases of construction due
to the use of construction equipment, the Project will not present a potential significant adverse
impact on air. Additionally, the Project will not include a state regulated air emissions source.

() MWater Besources. The Project will not result in a potential significant adverse
environmental impact to water quality. Standard dewatering techniques will be emploved if
proundwater is encountered during construction. Additionally, the construction site will have
appropriate erosion and sediment control measures in place to manage groundwater and prevent
contamination and compliance with all local, state, and federal regulations will be strictly
observed to prevent negative impacts on the stormwater discharge to Olean Creek. The Company
will be required to obtain, and comply with, a State Pollution Discharge Elimination System



{“SPDES™) permit. And the Project will also be subject to all requirements and regulations
related to wastewater and stormwater discharges az implemented by NYSDEC. Some
maodifications to the on-site stormwater management system may ocour but it would continue to
discharge to Olean Creek through the curreni outlet, And, as the Project Site consists of almost
entirely impervious surfaces, redevelopment is anticipated to reduce stormwater runafT volume
by incorporating additional green space.

Although the entire bank of the creek, which is not located within the Project Site, is
currently green space, the introduction of more permeable surfaces on the Project Site will
minimize stormwater impacts. Additionally, while lawn and pest treatment chemicals may be
used as part of the landscape maintenance program, the property management company will
implement a plan to minimize the use of chemicals and prioritize environmentally friendly
practices. Best management practices will be used to prevent runoff of treatment chemicals to
Olean Creek. Therefore, no potential significant adverse impacts to water resources are
anticipated.

(d}  Traffic and Transportation. The Project will not have a significant adverse impact
on existing traffic and transportation levels. Traffic patterns and access points to the Project Site
are proposed to remain the same and no changes to the circulation to the public roads are
anticipated; the anticipated traffic will remain well within the capacity of the existing
infrastructure, Further, the proposed redevelopment is anticipated to have a minimal impact on
traffic levels and will not significantly increase demand for transportation facilities or services. It
is not expected that the trips generaied by the project will exceed trips previously generated by a
fully occupied mall. Additionally, peak trip generation will occur at different times for retail
related uses and housing related uses. Further the existing parking field will be maintained in its
current footprint. Parking has been planned to meet the needs of new and existing tenants
without creating excess demand, therefore there is no anticipated significant new increase in
parking demand that would strain the current capacity.

Mo modifications are planned for the traffic routing around the retained mall footprint as
the surrounding strests have infrastructure designed o handle significantly larger traffic volumes
than those anticipated in relation to the Project. Also, public transportation facilities are
conveniently located within a reasonable distance from the site and pedestrian and bicyele
accommadations will remain well-integrated with existing routes. There will also be provisions
made for alternative-fucled wehicles including increasing the availability of Electric Vehicle
charging stations. Therefore, it is not anticipated that the Project will have a significant adverse
impact on traffic and transportation levels.

(e) MNoise, The Project will not result in significant levels of noise resulting in an
adverse impact to the sarrounding arcas.

(f) Odor. The Project is not anticipated to result in odors significant enough to result
in an adverse impact to the surrounding areas.

() Solid Waste. While solid waste is anticipated to be generated during construction
and operation of the facility, the Project will not result in a significant increase in the generation



of solid waste. During construction approximately 24,000 +/- tons per every six months will be
disposed of during construction, and 79 +/- tons per year will be disposed of during operation,
these are not levels significant to cause an adverse impact. Any materials that cannot be reused
or recycled will be disposed of by a local licensed waste handler,

(h}  Erosion. The Project will not have a significant adverse impact on soil resources
resulting in erosion. The construction site will have appropriate erosion and sediment control
measures in place to manage groundwater and prevent contamination. The Company will be
required to obtain, and comply with, all applicable NYSDEC permits relating to wastewater and
stormwater discharges. Further the Company will be required to comply with all NYSDEC
permitting requirements and regulations governing erosion and sediment control.

(i) Vegetation and Wildlife. The Project will not result in & potential significant
adverse impact to existing vegetation and potential wildlife located on, and in the vicinity of, the
Project Site, Measures will be in place to minimize any potential impacts on aquatic habitats and
water quality. Further, the entire Project is to be developed within previously disturbed or
impervious areas; no work is proposed adjacent to Olean Creak or within the embankment area
50 no impacts to vegetation and wildlife are anticipated. The Project will not present a potential
adverse impact to a variety of listed or rare animal and vegetative species noted in the region.
The Project is not anticipated to adversely impact populations of Lomghead Darter, Wavyrayed
Lampmussel, Raved Bean, Bluebreast Darter, Black Redhorse, Steamline Chub or Hellbender.

Additionally, by letter dated October 6, 2022, the United States Department of the
Interior Fish and Wildlife Service indicated that the proposed Action is not likely to result in an
unauthorized take of the Morthersn Long-eared Bar. This determination remains applicable due 1o
the fact that the environmental conditions and project scope have not changed since the date of
this correspondence.

{7} Critical Environmental Area. The Project Site is not located in nor does it adjoin

a state listed critical environmental area therefore no potential adverse impacts to a eritical
environmental area are anticipated,

(k) Aesthetic and Historical Resources. The Project site is substantially contiguous to
a historic building located at 214 North Bamry Street, however the Project is not anticipated to
have any impact on this historic building. Further, by letter dated September 26, 2022, the New
York State Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation Office indicated that no properties,
including archaeological and/or historic resources, listed in or eligible for the New York State
and National Registers of Historic Places will be impacted by this project.

(1) Energy, The electrical energy demand from the proposed action is expected to be
similar to levels historically consumed by the mall during past periods of higher occupancy, and
use of new energy efficient buildings and materials and fixturcs are anticipated to result in a
measure of energy conservation. The existing local utility will be able to supply required
additional energy without requiring a new, or an upgrade to an existing substation.



{m)  Apricultural Resources. The Project will not result in an adverse impact to
agricultural resowrces andor established agricultural districts located in the region. No
agricultwral lands currently exist at the Project Site.

(n) Open Space and Recreational Uses. The Project Site is currently used for
commercial/retail use. The Project Site, however, which will cccupy a footprint of approximately
27.39 acres, will not result in a significant reduction in open space or recreational lands. The
Project is designed to be located entirely within previously disturbed or impervious arcas. As
such, there will be no direct impact on hunting, trapping, or fishing activities within the vicinity
of the Project Site.

(¢}  Public Health. The Project will not create a hazard to public health. To the
contrary, the Project will present a significant improvement to the environment, particularly with
respect to revitalizing a blighted/abandoned mall site and living accommodations of residents
within the community as the Project includes the development of new multi-family housing. As
the Project Site contains property that has been historically used as a foundry, machine shop, oil
and gas manufacturing, and contained underground storage tanks, a full Phase | Environmental
Site Assessment was conducted. Duning any construction activities having the potential to
expose or disturb contaminated soil, [ll, groundwater or other media, 2 Qualified Environmental
Professional will be monitoring on site. This professional will oversee and ensure that all
impacted media are managed in accordance with local, state, and federal regulations by
conducting regular inspections are the site and conducting sampling to ensure that any identified
contamination 15sues will be addressed promptly, Proper precautions will be taken to safeguard
human health and the environment, including implementing appropriate safety measures and
handling procedures. As a result, the Project will not present a potential significant adverse
impact to public health and safety.

(p) Growth and Community Character. The Project will not have a significant
adverse impact on the character of the community or neighborhood. The Project is consistent

with community character as it involves the redevelopment of a sife that previously contained a
large retall mall. Therefore, the Project does not represent a potential significant adverse
environmental impact to growth and community character, but, in fact, represents a potential
significant benefit to improving the community character by revitalizing a blighted/zbandoned
property which will encourage economic growth and community revitaillization. Furthermore, the
Project invelves the development of much needed multi-family housing which will have a
beneficial impact on both residents and businesses within the County.

Section 3. Based on the [oregoing, and the additional analyses set forth in Parts |, 2
and 3 of the EAF the Agency finds that the Project will not have a potential significant adverse
impact on the environment in accordance with the New York State Environmental Quality
Beview Act, Article 8 of the New York Environmental Conservation Law, and, in particular,
pursuant to the criteria found at 6 NY.CRE.R. § 017.7(b) of the SEQRA regulations. The
Agency therefore issues a Negative Declaration for the Project pursuant to SEQRA.

Section 6.  This Resolution has been prepared in accordance with Article 8 of the
New York Environmental Conservation Law by the Members of the County of Cattaraugus



[ndustrial Development Agency, 9 Washington Street, Ellicottville, NY 14731, Additional
information regarding this Resolution may be obtained from the Agency at its office, telephone
number {716) 699-20:03.

Section 7.  The Agency further directs that notice of this resolution shall be filed and
circulated to the extent required by any applicable ordinance, statute or regulation.

Section 8.  Any and all actions heretofore taken or authorized by the Agency andfor
itz members, officers, employees and agents with respect to this Resolution are hereby ratified,
approved and confirmed in all aspects,

tioh 9. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.

Dated: Aungust 22, 2024



COUNTY OF CATTARAUGUS
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

RESOLUTION

A regular meeting of the County of Cattaraugus Industrial Development Agency was
convened on Thursday, August 22, 2024 at 9:00 a.m,

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:

RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY OF CATTARAUGUS INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (THE “AGENCY") AUTHORIZING: (i) THE
NEGOTIATION AND EXECUTION OF A CERTAIN RAILWAY LICENSE
AGREEMENT (THE “LICENSE AGREEMENT™) BY AND BETWEEN THE
AGENCY AND REVOLUTION RAIL COMPANY ADIRONDACK, LLC
("REVOLUTION"} PERMITTING REVOLUTION TO OPERATE AND
UTILIZE CERTAIN RAILWAY PROPERTY OWNED BY THE AGENCY AS
MORE PARTICUALELY DESCRIBED HEREIN (THE “RAILWAY
FACILITIES™), (if) THE NEGOTIATION AND EXECUTION OF A CERTAIN
AGREEMENT WITH SCOTT SYMANS ANDVOR AFFILIATED BUSINESS
ENTITIES THEREOF IN AN AMOLINT NOT TO EXCEED $5260,000.00 FOR
CONSTRUCTION AND ENGINEERING SERVICES IN RELATION TO THE
AGENCY’'S REHABILITATION OF THE RAILWAY FACILITIES (THE
“RAILWAY WORK"™); AND (iii) THE NEGOTIATION AND EXECUTION OF
A GRANT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF CATTARAUGUS
(THE “COUNTY™) AND THE AGENCY RELATIVE TO THE COUNTY'S
REIMBURSEMENT OF THE AGENCY FOR THE RAILWAY WORK IN THE
AMOUNT OF $120,000

WHEREAS, the County of Cattaraugus Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency™) is
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York,
constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the Consolidated
Laws of New York, as amended ({the “Enabling Act™) and Chapter 536 of the 1971 Laws of New
York, as amended, constituting Section 8%0-b of said General Municipal Law (said Chapter and
the Enabling Act being hereinafier collectively referred to as the “Act™) to promote, develop,
encourage and assist in the acquinng, constructing, reconstructing, improving, maintaining,
equipping and fumnishing of manufacturing, warehousing, research, commercial and indusirial
facilities, among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing economically
sound commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and
economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prospenty and standard
of living, and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and

WHEREAS, the Agency currently owns certain railroad properties located within
Cattzraugus County (the “County™} between Milepost £37.48 to Milepost 427,00, which is part of
the New York and Lake Erie Railroad (the “Railway Facilities™); and



WHEREAS, Revolution Rail Company Adirondack, LLC (“Revolution™ operates rail
biking facilities on railway corridors throughout New York State, creating unigue tourism
experiences for the general public; and

WHEREAS, Revolution has expressed interest in operating a rail biking facility on the
Railway Facilities, and has requested that the Agency enter into a license agreement (the “License
Agreement”™), which shall grant Revolution the right to utilize the Railway Facilities and operate a
rail biking tourism [acility on the Railway Facilities, subject to the terms and conditions contained
in a License Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the License Agreement would provide for the Agency’s licensure of use of
the Railway Facilities to Revolution for the sole purpose of permitling Revolution to undertake
rail biking tourism operations thereon, with said license term to commence on November 1, 2024,
and end on October 31, 2031, with an option for an additional five-year term thereafier, for an
mitial annual license fee of $10,000, increasing by $2,500 cach year thereafter during the each
year of the initial term, and during each year of the renewal term; and

WHEREAS, ancillary to the Agency's powers to develop economically sound commerce
and industry to advance the gensral prosperity and economic welfare of citizens of Cattaraugus
County and the people of the State of New York, the Agency desires to enter into a License
Agreement with Revolution for rail biking tourism purposes; and

WHEREAS, prior to Revolution's use of the Railway Facilities, certain improvements and
rehabilitation work must be completed on the Railway Facilities to ensure the Railway Facilities
are in good working order {the “Railway Work™); and

WHEREAS, ancillary thercto, the Apgency requires certain design, engineering,
construction, and administration services to complete the Railway Work (the “Railway Work
Services™); and

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to retain Scott Symans andior affiliated business entities
thereof (the “Contractor™) for the Railway Work Services; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section B(2)(d) of the Agency's Procurement Policy, and in lieu
of seeking proposal and quotations for the Railway Work Services, the Apency may make an
“emergency procurement” as so related to the Railway Work Services if delays caused by soliciting
quotes would endanger an economic development opportunity, or in this case, the rail biking
tourism opportunity; and

WHEREAS, the Executive Director has determined that the expedient completion of the
Railway Work Scrvices is necessary to enable Revolution to commence operations as soon as
practicable to ensure the rail biking facilities are available to residents of Cattarsugus County and
beyond for the fall tourism scason, creating immediate and tangible economic benefits for the
citizens of Cattaraugus County and businesses located within the proximity of the Railway
Facilities: and



WHEREAS, in accordance with the Agency’s Procurement Policy and to facilitate the
expedient completion of the Railway Work, the Agency desires to enter into an agreement with
the Contractor in an amount not to exceed $260,000.00 to complete the Railway Work Services
on the Agency’s behalf (the “Construction Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, on May 8, 2024, as so related to the County's power to encourage and promote
tourism within the County, the County Legislature approved a grant of up to $120,000 (the
“Railway Grant™) for the purpose of reimbursing the Agency for the Railway Work, and ancillary
thereto, the County has requested that the Agency enter into an agreement to confirm the
obligations of the Agency and the County with respect to reimbursing the Agency for undertaking
the Railway Work (the “Railway Grant Agreement”), and the Agency has determined it 15 in the
best interest of the Agency to enter into the Railway Grant Agreement to facilitate the completion
of the Railway Work; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the New York State Environmental Cuality Review Act, Article
§ of the Environmental Conservation Law and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto at 6
N.Y.C.R.R. Part 617, ag amended (collectively referred to as “SEQRA"), the Agency must satisfy
the applicable requirements set forth in SEQRA prior to undertaking the action as described herein.,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF COUNTY OF
CATTARAUGUS INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Agency hereby determines that pursuant to 6 N.Y C.R.RE. §617.5(c)(1)
of the SEQRA regulations, the Railway Work and Railway Work Services are a Type 1l Action
constituting “maintenance or repair involving no substantial changes in an existing structure or
facility,” and accordingly, no findings or determination of significance are required under SEQRA.
In addition, the licensing of the Railway Facilities as contemplated herein also constitutes a Type
IT Action pursuant to 6 N.Y.C.R.R §617.5(c)21), (26) and (32) of the SEQRA regulations, in that
the licensing activity concems minor temporary uses of land having negligible or no permanent
impact on the environment, routine or continuing agency administration and management, not
including new programs or major reordering of prionties, and adoption of local legislative
decisions in connection with the same and accordingly, no findings or determination of
significance are required under SEQRA.

Section 2. Subject to the terms hereof, the Executive Director is herchy authonized on
behalf of the Agency o negotiate, execute, and deliver, in consultation with the Agency’s
Chairperson and peneral counsel, the License Agreement, consistent with the terms contained
herein, and to take all actions necessary and cxecute any ather related documents necessary to
effectuate the foregoing,

Section 3. Subject 1o the terms hereof, the Agency hereby determines that the
expedient completion of the Railway Work is necessary to ensure the mail biking facilities are
available for the fall tourism season, and as so permitted by the Agency’s emergency procurement
authority contained within its Procurement Policy, hereby authorizes the Executive Director, on
behalf of the Agency to negotiate, execute, and deliver, in consultation with the Agency’s
Chairperson and general counsel, the Construction Agreement in an amount not to exceed



260,000,040, and to take all actions necessary and execute any other related documents necessary
te effectuate the foregoing,

Scction 4. Subject to the terms hereof, the Executive Director is hereby authorized on
behalf of the Agency to negotiate, exccute, and deliver, in consultation with the Agency’s
Chairperson and general counsel, the Railway Grant Agreement, and to take all actions necessary
and execute any other related documents necessary to eflectuate the foregoing.

Section 5. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized
and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required and
to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, 1o pay all such fees, charges
and expenses and o do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the opinion of
the officer, employes or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing
resalutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions
of the documenis executed for and on behalf of the Agency.

Section 6.  Any and all actions heretofore taken or authorized by the Agency and/or its

members, officers, employees and apents with respect to this Resolution are hereby ratified,
approved and confirmed in all aspects.

Section 7. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.
Dated: August 22, 2024



ACT NO. 2152024 by Mirs. Ardrgano, Mr. Bengen, Mr, Brisky, My, Burr and Mr. Marsh
who ask mmediate consideration

AUTHORITING THE CHAIR TO EKECUTE COMTRACT WITH
CATTARAUGUS COURTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY FOR
CATTARAUGUS AEVRAIL PROIECT AND ADIUSTING VARIOUS APPROPRIATION ACCOUNTS

Pursuant to Sections 363, 366 and 450 of the County Law.

I. WHEREAS, the Cattarsugus County Industrial Development Agancy 5 desirous of
promating tourism i Cattaravgus County, and

IL. WHEREAS, the County desires to be a strong partner in promaoting tourism thraugh the
RevRail Froject in Cattaraugus County and will provide reimbursement of up ko 5120,000.00 ta assist with
the cost of the necessary agresmeants assoclated with the Project, and

i, WHEREAS, the Cattaraugus County Industrial Development Ageney [IDA] will act as lead
agency in arranging for the RevRail Project agreements and may submit invoices to the County for
reimbursemant out ¢f the $120,000,00, and

. WHEREAS, various appropriation accounts must be adjusted in arder to cover the cost of
the aforementioned reimbursement, now, therefore, be it

I RESOLVED, that the Chair of the Legislature be, and hereby is, suthorized and directed (o
execule a contract, on behalf of Cattaraugus County, with the Cattaraugus County Industrial Development
Agency in arder to promote Tourism in Cattaraugus County through the above-described project, for a
term commencing May 5, 2024 and terminating December 31, 2024, according to the above-deserined
terms, and be it further

It RESOLVED, that the County Administrator is hereby directed to appropriate $120,000.00
fram Committed Fund Balance for Economic Develoament Account ED,913.0000, ard be it further

In. RESOLVED, that tha County Administrator iz hereby directed to make the fallowing

budgetary changes:

Imcrease Appropriation Account:
ED.642.6420.0000.2 1129 41603 RevRail Project %120,000.00.



E A B c_ 1 D E F
2 County of Cattaraugus OPERATING STATEMENT
4 | Industrial Development Agency =~
4 July, 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
5 | APPROVED | M-T-D ¥-T-D BALANCE ¥-T-D
68 BUDGET | ACTUAL | ACTUAL REMAINING | COMPARISON
7
8 [INCOME:
| 9 |Interest on Accounts $20,000 $13 $5.976 314,024 5126
10| & Fees $500,000 $4.500 $481,211] $8,780 904,777
11 |CCCRCIOther Misc. Income $0 30 53,505 $1.778) §4,811
12 Total  |3520,000 $4,513) $500,692 524,501 $805,714]
13 |
14 |
15 |EXPENSES: | |
16 |Wages $200,000 $14,655 §112,154] 3E7,846 504,177
17 |Fringe Benefits 580,000 34,976 $35,218) 544,764 328,371
16 |A- Performance Bonus $20,000 50| 30 520,000 $22,230
10 |Board Mesting/Operations $2,000 $0 51,068 5831 $521
20 |I- Business Development Fm 000 54,688 $12,837 $2.837 $10.649)
|21 |Office Supplies/Service Contracts  $1,800 50 5800 $800] %1386
[ 22 |D- Office Maint./Repairs/Equip 36,000 51,100 54,778 $1.222 $5.400|
23 |E- Office Phones/Cellfax/internet seri$7,000 5433 56,185 5814 $5.234
ilP_psl_agE B $1.200 357 $584 3616 3735
25 |Public Hearings §1.000 3147 $510 $490  $484
26 [TravelMileage $3.000 520 587 32,913 537
27 |Searvice Charges $75 $280 $340
28 |Rent $17,100 $1425| 38,975 §7,125 $11,400
28 |Real Eslate Taxes 3100 S0 387 513 _§81
30 |Utilifies 34,500 $283 $2.518 31982 53,2683
31 |Property/Fire/Liabiity Insurance 55,000 | 30 $3.938 $1,064 $4.977
32 |EducationTralning/Prof. Developmeant 54,000 | 80 B0 54,000 %0
33 |Professional Associations 52,500 | 30| 31,150 $7,350 52,845
34 |C- Professional Services $30.000 $6.850 EEE 233 -$32,233 £06,835
35 [F-Publications 00 | 50 “§1.328 -$1,128 50
36 |Marketing/Promotion/Netwarking $1,000 30 30 51,000 80
37 |Railroad Services §25 30 50 325 s0
38 [H-Miscellansous {3100 30 -51) 3101) S0
38 |Project Expenses {55,000 £2,250 §3,750 $1,250 $2,780)
40 |B- Consulting Expense $36,000 85,500 $28,500 $7.800 $63,502
41|G-Great Lakes Cheese $0 50 §55,500 -§55,500 393,725
42 Total Expenses $443,525 $42,799 $344 557 $99,728 $450,052
43
ad Met Differsnce  |$76,475 -$38,286 $158,135 §74837  $459.862
45
46 |A-Yearly payment I- Includes Sponsaring Events
47 |8-Includes Yearly payment
48 |C-Includes payments due Harris Beach
48 |- Includes [T invoices, accounting  [software, computer storage, monthly office cleaning, yearly window cleaning, lawn
50 |E- Includes monthly cell phones, internet, apple storage, siorage back up and office phone fines
£1 |F- Publications and ad made in local directory
5:_ E-Eg_:a_s_tn_ Harris Baach i
H- Adjustment for New CCB Account '




Current Assets

CATT CO. BANK

CATT. CO. CAPITAL RES. CORP,
Mew CCB ISC Account 800037478
CT¥s

EevBank Investment

FETTY CASH

SECURITY DEPDSIT - RENT
Accounts Receivable

lease asset

Deforred Outfiows

lease liahilicy

ACCTS RECEIVARLE

PREPAID EXFENSES

Total Cusrenl Assats

Property and Equipment
EQUIPMENT

LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS
LAND
RAILROAD/IMPROYEMENTS
ACCUM DEPRECIATION

Total Property and Equipment
Oiiber Assels
Todal Otther Assets

Total Assets

Current Linbilities

MNYE RETIREMENT LOAN ACCT,
Employes Health Ins Payakle
Federal Payroll Taxes

NYS WITHHCOLDIMNG

Social Becurity Tax Payable
Medicare Withholding Tax Pay

WYE PENESION-EMPLOYEE PORTION

WS Retirement Employer Poriio
Dheferred Imflows

accwmubated amort lease asset
ACCOLUNTS PAYABRLE

ACCTS. PAYABLE SERY. AGREEME

ACCRUED PAYROLL
Total Current Liabilities

Lopg-Term Liabilitics
Pension Linbility

Total Long-Term Lishilities

Tatal Liabilities

COUNTY OF CATTARALIGUS DA

Balance Shest
Juby 31, 2024

ABSETS

266,912.43
58,347.20
1,538,706.47
216,506.91
114,137.83
7521
2,775.00
101,000, 00
73,708 92
T2305.00
{36,136,72)
{4,023.14)
15006

2.300,445.20

38,423 05

2217308

145298 92
T, 19506
(£70,546,17)

246,549 4

.00

5 2.546.5095.00

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

{126 69
3.00

(8.951.70)
4,842 41
2.264.51
520 60
55,84
16,429.00
10,002,00
17.552.20
665087
| 5, ol 00
7,883.20

72,134.13

133,287.00

13328700

205,421.33

Unaadited - For Management Purposes Oaly



Capital
Retained Eamings
CONTRIBUTED CAFITAL

Plet Income

Total Capital

Tatal Linbilities & Capital

COLMTY OF CATTARALGUS [DA
Fatince Shest
July 31, 2024

1,875, 367.40
310,072.06
156,134.21

234157347

§ 254699500

Unaudited - For Managernent Purposes Only



Current Assery

CATT CO. BANK

SAVINGS CCE

SAVINGS FT

CATT. CO. CAPITAL RES. CORP.
Five S1ar CD

s

EoyBank Investmen

PETTY CASH

SECURITY DEPOSIT - RENT
Accounts Receivable

lease et

Deferred Cutflows

lanse Hiahility

ACCTS RECEIVABLE

learse amortization expense

Tomrl Current Assers

Property and Equipment
ECUIPMENT

LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS
LAMD
RAILEOAINIMPROVEMENTS
ACCUM DEFEECEATION

Toal Property and Equipment

Other Assets
nes pension asset

Total Other Asety

Todal Assets

Current Liabilities

NYS RETIREMENT LiOAN ACCT.
Employes Healih Ins Payable
Federal Payrol] Texes

NYS WITHHOLDING

Sacial Security Tax Payable
Medicare Withholding Tax Pay
Y5 PENSION-EMPLOYEE PORTION
MY Retirement Employer Portio
Deeferred Inflows

accumulated armort |easa asset
ACCOUMTS PAYABLE

invienast expenies

Total Current Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilites

Total Long-Term Liahilities

COUNTY OF CATTARALGUS (DA
Halance Sheet
Tuly 31, 2023

ASSETS

45)1,53532
5,304,459
429571

443 248,035

434, 000,00

63 41900

107,621 .82

i30ad
135000
10,000.00
T3, 8 92
§7,556.00

(GAS12T)

3686
4,257 63

221520893

3835045
22173.08
149.298.52
DY, 1 5. B
(870,546.17)

246, 47624

50 186.00

S0, E86.00

] 250187117

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

107.31
.00
[ 34322
3,097.09
| 483,14
34714
(10731}
[0, 70, G
[79,28] .00
4257 63
39,530,060
(1,442.37)

240,400 85

.00

Unaudired - For Management Purpases Only



COUNTY OF CATTARALUGUS (DA

Balance Shezt
Fuly 31, 23
Tatal Liabilities 240,409,835
Capital
Retnined Earnings 1,501,726.87
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL J10,07 206
Met Incame 430066339
Total Capital 2271 46] .32
Todal Lisbilities & Capital 5 2310870

Uimaudited - For Management Purpeses Onily



ISIIHD =
w

S3HY1 LYIHD

05°ZES 01 02°925
” Ewmm

Aed AlnoH Suipers

IIUBUBIUIEN

asnoyaef

P2112S

|ona Aiug

SUa|Isa

‘O cioyd pleaaseq
‘Ajdde 03 Japjo 10 sieaA g | ag 1SNy




Great Lakes Cheese is interviewing for full and part time jobs including entry
level, skilled operators, warshouse and maintenance roles across all shifts
with competitive pay, benefits and an ownership culture, Open interviews will
take place at the Hub at 301 north union street in Olean Monday, August
26th, from 8am until 4:30pm. Before attending the interviews, vist
Greatlakescheese.com to learn more. On behalf of Great Lakes Cheese and
the Cattaraugus County Legislature in partnership with the Cattaraugus
County |DA.

& Virus-freswww avast com



WPIG-FM Order Confirmation

Seven Mountains Media of NY, LLC : i
3163 NYS Rbe, 417 OrderID: 1027-001

Clean, NY 14760-1853 Sponsor: CATTARAUGUS COUNTY IDA,
Product: AUGUST 26 INTERVIEWS
Estimate/PO:

AcoountRep: DICK BALES
BllingCycla: Calendar Monih
InvosceType: Dhetail

Run Dates: B 15,2024 - 8252024
CATTARALIGLIS COUNTY TDW Items Ordered: 55

PO BOX 1749 Ordered Amount: $1,100.00
ELLICOTTVILLE, NY 14731

Scheduled Station(s): WPIG-FM / WMXO-FM *** Only WPIG-FM schedule on this

CATTARAUGUS COUNTY IDA
Friilad B 2813004 1 %0345 Ak Fagel
Hidi Deales Rum Woeis Wi Times P Tee Wa Thu T Sob Sen Weed  Lesgl Cescripil Aval Copy D oy Thrs Tatal
Total Ty Cost Cask
Dl QLR - BESEIM A W B I is @ & wm W 13 Sped FICIT-I0] B [Pedkage] [Packege’
DE B - BISBIM A Wk A3:000 ARL - 3503 Al 1 1 1 1 § r i S PI0IT-DE 5 [Pacusga] Lran.u.;
Package 1,100,063
Cadanifar Month Frojected Beling:
Juk-i4 [akee] Aug 4 1, bOd C0 o2 0.0a 3-2024 1 1005

Confirmed Correct; Payment Guarantesd Accepted for WPIG-FM




WMXO-FM Order Confirmation
Seven Mountains Media of NY, uﬂmaﬂn: 1027-001,

f| 3163 NYS Rite. 417
Olean, NY 14760-1853 Sponsor: CATTARAUGUS COUNTY TDA

Product; AUGUST 26 INTERVIEWS
Estirmabe/P0;
AccountRep: DICK BALES
BillirgCycle: Calendar Month
Involce Type: Dretail
Fun Dates; Bf15/2024 - B/25/2024

CATTARALGLIS COUNTY 1DA [tems Ordered:; 55

PO BOX 1749 Ordered Amount: $700.00

ELLICOTTVILLE, NY 14731

Scheduled Station{s): WPIG-FM / WMXO0-FM *** Only WMXO0-FM schedule on this
CATTARAUGUS COUNTY IDA

[Priabed 82003039 L&0Z38 &M Pigm 1
R Do e Aun Wesks Ran Tirmae Mo Tes We Thu Pl Sat Bun Weel Lasgt Sancdpl dwel Copw LD = Tt Teeal
Typa Can Badk
Bl PR - B AN ik Bhedk W 0 W o ow 5 4 St PIRIT-0E 50 [fachiga| [Packege]
B WINM - A5 AR e 100 A3 - G620 AN L I R T A S ¥ Spox PEEITEOI 5 |Pecumga| [Packsge]
Pactage IR0
Calesdar Menth Prajected Billlng:
T34 005 g 0000 G2 0,0 0a-2024 065

Confirmed Covrect; Payment Guaranteed Accepted for WMX0-FM




hitps:fiwww. oleantimesherald. com/nawsihomer-streat-solar-project-benefiting-city-of-plean-sold-benafits-{o-
comlinuefarticle 61M8ab2-55c0-11ef-be28-8374a5331 316 himl

| centeRmiECE || FEATURED |

Homer Street solar project benefiting city of Olean sold, benefits
to continue

By BOB CLARK bdarkioleantimesherald.com
Aug B, 2024

Y

Solar paneds installed on Homer Sireet in Olean have been sold, but will continuing to offer net metering credits to the ity
of Olean, ClearCapital officials said, Solar paneis collect light even on a doudy day, but typically generate lass thanon a
sunny day oulside of certain clreumstancaes, according to the National Ocesnographic and Atmospheric Administration.

Bob ClarkiOlean Times Herald

OLEAN — A solar project that has saved the city hundreds of thousands of dollars on power bills
has a new owner.



CleanCapital announced Thursday that it has acquired the 3.9-megawatt Homeridae solar project on
Homer Street, as well as the Steel Sun |l site built on the grounds of the Bethlehem Steel brownfield
in Lackawanna, from BQ Energy Development. The projects were developed by BQ, which
CleanCapital acquired in 2022,

“The acquisition of BQ Energy and its assets — and the subsequent merging of our teams —
immediately expanded CleanCapital's scope,” said Thomas Byrne, CEQ of CleanCapital. “No other
organization has the breadth of capabilities or deep experise that we can offer. Plus, with the
tailwinds of Inflation Reduction Act and the rapid increase in corporate demand for clean enargy,
converting environmentally compromised land into a source of clean energy presents a unique
opportunity as we transition the grid to clean energy.”

Paul Curran, chief development officer at CleanCapital and former BQ CEO, added, “The work we
did at BQ Energy, including developing and operating these two exceptional projects, is a source of
great pride for me. Our focus now is to execute on the more than 100 projects in our pipeline and
deliver more clean megawatts to our customers as expeditiously as we can.”

Both sites benefited from the Department of Environmental Conservation Region 8 brownfield
cleanup program, and officials said both projects were financed by M&T Bank’s Commercial
Equipment Finance Group.

Ground was broken at the Olean site in 2018 on land that was the tank farm for the former Socony-
Vacuum Qil refinery, opening in 2019 and providing energy credits to the city of Olean. Under the
agreement, the city received credits for energy produced at the site, with CleanCapital receiving
some of the income while the rest goes lo the cily as net metering credits to offset the city's power
bills.

“The net metering credits generated by the Homeridae solar project have been a significant benefit
to our city budget, allowing us to reallocate savings toward other essential services for our
community,” said Mayor Bill Aiello. “We are excited to see the ongoing positive impact of this oll
refinery turned solar project that provides reliable and clean energy to the City of Olean.”

City Auditor Lens Martial told the Times Herald that the contract will remain in place after the
acquisition. The project has saved Olean taxpayers significantiy, he noted.



Figures provided by Martial indicate that in the 2023-34 fiscal year, the program generated around
$387,000 in credits against around $451,000 in power bills — offsetting all but about $54,000 in
electricity bills, or about an 88% discount.

The amount of credits fluctuate through the year.
“The figures are not the same every month,” Martial sald. “Some are better than others.”

For example, from October through January the city paid nothing for its electricity and generated
credits above what the city would have paid, Other months saw power usage above the amount of
credits generated.

Along with assisting general operations, some of the credils were used to offset power needs at the
waler and wastewater treatment plants. The city's water and wastewater divisions have budgets
separate from the general fund which covers most of the city government’s day to day operations.
Water and sewer funds are paid for primarily through water and sewer bills, as well as agreements
selling services to neighboring municipalities.

The company also operates a 4MW project in North Olean, the Solean project, which sells power to
St. Bonaventure University; and a 1.5MW project, Solean West, which is in partnership with Olean
General Hospital,

Steel Sun Il is located on the former Bethiehem Steel site on Buffalo's waterfront. The energy
generated by this praject is contracted to Kaleida Health and Canisius University.

{Cantact Cily Editor Bob Clark af belark@oleantimesherald.com. )

Bob Clark
City Editor



hitps:/iwww.oleantimesherald com/news/come-home-stay-home-pierce-steel-adapts-io-expand-
footprint/article_Sc4e7190-4ba2-11ef-bcSe-4fal0etq 368 himl

| cenTerriEce || FeaTURED |

Come Home/Stay Home: Pierce Steel adapts to expand
footprint

By JOHN BARTIMOLE Special to Olean Times Herald
Jul 27, 2024

I PIERCE
STEEL

TARUCATTS oAl

Fierce Steels [ocation on Routle 16,
Courlesy Piarce Steal

OLEAN — Pierce Steel, along with so many other area manufacturers, was doing business as usual
as the 21st century began.

And that was the problem for the long-standing, family-owned business.

“In 2001, 100% of our sales came within 60 miles of Olean,” Mike DeRose, president and CEQ of
the company since that year, said. "Literally, we used to have a salesman driving around in a pickup
truck, making cold calls on companies that we thought might need our products. That was a low
probability, low success scenario. If we had kept going down that path, we wouldn't be here foday.”

Iindeed, the company now provides its products around the world, featuring such prestigious clisnts
as NASA, and continues to expand its workforce and its footprint, recently moving from its 7th Street
location to the sprawling former Sanzo facility on Route 16. Quite a progression for a company that



began in 1887 and was eventually bought by Milo Mazza, DeRose's uncle, and Joe DeRose, his
father, in 1967,

So, what changed Pierce Steel's fortunes and future?

“About 10-12 years ago, we started getiing into search engine optimization (SEQ)." DeRose said.
SEOQ is a process that improves the quality and quantity of results of a particular search term,
leading more traffic — and more qualified traffic — to a particular website.

“We're a small company, in a small town, and we realized we had to expand our customer base if we
were going to thrive, or even survive,” he said, “We had fo up our exposure on the Internet and use
the Internet and our website to showcase our talents and abllities to companies that probably
weren't aware of us.

“Thanks to SEQ, we now have customers flying 1o us, and they're usually prequalified, because
they've looked at our website and they know we match what they want.”

Consequently, the company is growing — not only in physical space, but also in employees.

"Obviously, we need to expand our workforce,” he said. *Until we moved, we literally couldn't add
another person in the office or in the plant. Our move enabled us to double our capacity and to add

employess.

“We're already starting to add new employees in engineering, CAD, welders, warehouse manager,”
he continued. "We just hired a graduate from a JCC-Olean program, and we do a lot with the Dream
It/Do It program, which Is grooming the next generation of the types of workers we need.”

For all of its progress and changes, Pierce remains a family operation.

*| grew up here, and | still have Uncle Milo's desk to remind me of the family legacy,” he continued.
"My mom still works here, and, to be honest, sometimes | feel like a slacker because when I'm
leaving at night, the only car left in the parking lot is my mom's — and she's still working after | go
home at 5 or € in the evening."

DeRose has three children who work at the business during summers, but he is "not forcing the
business on anybody. I'd like to see them do what | did — | worked for five or six years at Lockheed-
Martin in Owego. While | was there, | always had it in the back of my mind to come back home. And



| did.”

And that's the whole intent of Come Home/Stay Home.



PIERCE STEEL

ANNOUNCEMENT Why the Move?

:.UL—I Fabricators isthrilled 1o announce 3

CAnT mulsstone cur relocation toa new, * Lonuifuous growth 60 0 xpansian

gf&f=-mr-1h T 1 . A v BEar TRCINTY |5 S0UB0ea With mrodenn
ate-or-The-ar facility. Aftsr more than 5O years 5 ¥ I meoe
; CP L TR ey e AEHTES Lo dnhdnge Jperaconal
2 GLTC |rr-.*,r- LT r”—“.rll"L'_ CCATION And &
TRy ard sar WICE A& EveT

MgVING T0 & Spaciows 45,000 sguare foot
gatablisnment, more than Soubls tha size of our

¥ AMMDEE Spae —I""r BORLSLSM kscembly. ara
. . SICTROE

aFE0LL Hile[lgls®

[arey buslding « Loadimg docks sreamiine [oQEstcs &rd

snoure famer fumarsung Tires

OUR COMMITMENTTO
EXCELLENCE

TS FrovE sagiMimes Gl Unyeayersng
Ceop ind ustry TEM ALLTANE 10 Sxtdading U CUTTarmErs
Experience ERpECLATISrS

R BEIRG 0 Dusiness Tor over 100 weare, we « With iPcrersed capecny B imeprowed
provide Cusiomizad SSILUENT and raATER 8 zapaiities, we will te deliver sven bigher-
STRAITATLLAMITTIES 0 crafiErnens n]i= Cualgy prociucts and semicés

= SWneTiher wol rEly 90 w3 fior Cusiom
L ustomer faprecation, pracigham weiding,
Sotisfaction specialzed oroajects, wa will B ormrmocans

T F T T T gt | i
D USTOIEr SALETACTON £ Sul DIOTT. Guf Few AGLF THEES IS SIRECTVEL Fa Sy

AL el #rabile us o provide the hignest

FEFCiards of oJdality and &Moiency

Our Mew Addrass
Investment and

Innovation . -
e wnan e s R L S Pierce Steel Fabricators

Sur GHIlleR wWondoncs 300 I0 CONTNLE T0 BRdviss 3165 Route 16 N

sTuny NEIWE 30| ens A supetrsr

ikl Olean, NY 14760

= el

L F\II-'-II sstesloom




PARTNERSHIP

= Advocacy

#  Economic Development
i Talent

+«  Inclusive Growih

= About

Building the Future: How the Federal Tech Hub
Funding Will Transform Western and Central
New York

Blog Categories
July 18, 2024

The federal funding secured through the Tech Hubs

program presents significant economic opportunities for Western and Central New
York. This is just the start of what will be a transformative journey for the region, and
the Buffalo Niagara Partnership will continue leading the way with its partners in
Rochester and Syracuse.

"The collaboration and dedicated work that brought us here serve as the
catalyst for this transformational opportunity within the SMART |-Corridor, We
have the necessary components to lead the resurgence of advanced
manufacturing and semiconductor production in the U.S." - BNP President &
CED Dottie Gallagher.

Here are a few ways this Tech Hub funding will impact the region.

Libby March/Buffalo News



Strengthening Our Technological Infrastructure

With the creation of the New York Semiconductor Manufacturing and Research
Technology Innovation Corridor (NY SMART |-Corridor), we are set to leverage the
combined assets of Buffalo, Rochester, and Syracuse. This corridor aims to become a
globally recognized hub for semiconductor manufacturing and innovation. The
federal investment of $40 million will support key initiatives including workforce
development, supply chain enhancements, and technological advancements. By
attracting new suppliers and advancing research and development, we will
strengthen our position in the global market.

Creating Job Opportunities and Developing Skills

One of the most significant impacts of the Tech Hubs program will be the creation of
high-paying jobs in our region. The collaboration among industry leaders,
educational institutions, and workforce development organizations will ensure that
we have a skilled workforce ready to meet the demands of the growing tech industry.
Training programs and partnerships with local universities will be crucial in preparing
our warkforce for the opportunities ahead.

Boosting Regional Economic Growth

The federal funding and the designation as a Tech Hub will act as a catalyst for
regional economic growth. By fostering innovation and supporting the development
of critical technologies, we are poised to attract further investments and drive
economic prasperity. The economic ripple effects will be felt across various sectors,
from manufacturing to research and development.

@' \NF =

= Inspirad i mnsérm by success.

Dottie Gallagher with Ben Sio and Robert Simpson of CenterState CEQ and Joseph
Stefko of OneROC



Moving Forward Together

As we move forward, the BNP remains committed to supporting this transformation.
We are dedicated to creating an environment that nurtures innovation, attracts
investment, and ultimately enhances the quality of life for all residents, We commend
our more than 100 collaborators in this effort, with special thanks to Senator Chuck
Schumer for his visionary leadership in advancing the legislation that created the

Tech Hubs program.

Together, we can pave the way for a brighter, more prosperous future for Western
and Central New York.



CHBC

ECONDOMY

Markets are clamoring for the Fed to start cutting soon:
‘What is it they're looking for?’

PUBLISHED THU, AUG 1 20248:67 AM EDTUPODATED 2 HOURS AGD

KEY POINTS

« Markets are pricing in an aggressive path for interest rate cuts starting in
September with a quarter percentage point reduction, which would be the first since
the early days of the Covid crisis,

« “The Fed needs to start that process back gradually to normal, which means
gradually reducing interest rates,” said economist Claudia Sahm, known for
devising a rule that uses unemployment as a yardstick for recessions.

» DoubleLine CEC Jeffrey Gundlach also thinks the Fed is risking recession by
holding a hard line on rates.

Federal Reserve Chairman Jeroma Powell arrves to speakl at 8 news sorference fallewing a Federal Open Marked
Cammittea meating at the William MeChesney Martin v, Federal Resere Board Building on July 34, 2024 in Washington,
o

Amirew Harml | Gery dnames

If the Federal Reserve is starting to set the table for interest rate reductions, some parts
of the market are getting impatient for dinner to be served.

“What is it they're looking for?" Claudia Sahm, chief economist at New Century
Advisors, said on CNBC just after the Fed concluded its meeting Wednesday. “The bar
is gefting set pretty high and that really doesn't make a lot of sense. The Fed needs to
start that process back gradually to normal, which means gradually reducing interest
rates.”

Known for formulating the Sahm Rule that uses changes in the inflation rate to gauge
when recessions occur, Sahm has been clamoring for the central bank to start easing
maonatary policy so it doesn't drag the economy into recession. The rule states that
when the three-month average of the unemployment rate is half a percentage point
above its 12-month low, the economy is in recession.

The 4.1% jobless level is only a short distance from triggering the rule, and Sahm said
the Fed's insistence on holding short-term interest rates at their highest level in 23 years
s endangering the economy.



“We don't need a weak economy to get that last little bit out of inflation,” she said. "We
do not have to be afraid of a good economy. If the inflation job is done, or we're on that
glide path, it's OK, the Fed can start stepping aside."

Asked about the Sahm Rule during his post-meeting news confarence, Fed

Chair Jerome Powell called it a “statistical regularity” that doesn’t necessarily hold true
this time around as the jobs picture remains strong and the pace of wage gains
decslerates,

“What it looks like is a normalizing labor market, job creation and a pretty decent level of
wages going up at a strong level but coming down gradually,” he said. "If it turns out to
... show something more than that, then we're well positioned to respond.”

Cautious approach

Markets, though, are pricing in an aggressive path for rate cuts starting in September
with a quarter percentage paint reduction, which would be the first since the early days
of the Covid crisis.

After that. markets expect cuts in November and December, with an about 11%
probability assigned to the equivalent of a full percantage point lopped off the fed funds
rate by year-end, according to the CME Group's FedWatch gauge of 30-day fed funds
futures contracts.

Instead of starting to take its foot off the brake, the Fed on Wednesday said it is keeping
its overnight borrowing rate in a range between 5.25%-5.50%. The post-meeting
statement did note progress made on inflation, but also reiterated that policymakers on
the rate-setting Federal Open Market Committee need “greater confidence” that inflation
is heading back to 2% before they will be ready to lower rates,

DoubleLine CEO Jeffrey Gundiach also thinks the Fed is risking recession by holding a
hard line on rates.

“That's exactly what | think because I've bean at this game for over 40 years, and it
seems to happen every single time,” Gundlach said, speaking to CNBC's Scott Wapner
on "Closing Bell” on Wednesday. “All the other underlying aspects of employment data
are not improving. They're deteriorating. And so once it starts to get to that upper level,
where they have to start cutting rates, it is going to be mare than they think.”

In fact, he thinks the Fed could end up slashing rates by 1.5 percentage points over the
next year, a pace that's more aggressive than the policymakers charted when they last
updated the "dot plot” of individual projections,

Gundlach figures that the consumer price index will be below 3% =oon, making real
rates, or the difference with the fed funds rate, particularly high.

“If you have a positive real interest rate that's even one and a half percent, that would
suggest you have 150 basis points of room to cut rates without even thinking that you're
being excessive about it," he said. I think they should have cut today, quite frankky."



Camoin Associates

Reading Between the Lines: What State Business Rankings

Really Tell Us
August |, 2024 Dillion Roberts

Let's face it We're obsessed with rankings, From sports teams to restaurants, we love to see who comes out on top,
In the world of economic development, state business rankings have become the Super Bowl of bragging rights,

B s anaial ©Top States Lo Bugliess™ sl hag beeome the big kahuna that kesps policymakers, site selestors,

and eorporate bigwigs on the edge of their seals each vear,

For folks in cconomic development, these rankings can be & double-edged sword. One minute, you're popping
champagre because yvour state moved up a spot; the next, you're pulling your hair out trying to explain why you
dropped thres places,

| saw a LinkedIn post recently from & stale leader talking about how they were only three points behind the first-
place winner this year, which is truly not a big margin at all, but it dogs take away the ability to brag (second placs

dioesn’t have quite the same mpact as first, of course).

I've had other economic development professionals tell me they don’t look at these rankings, and they don't mamer
to them. Still, when yoa ook at the marketing materials across date economic development websites, you find the
oppasite 15 true: These state business rankings are defintizly being used by sconomic development organizations,
corporate executives, and site selection consultants to market and evaluate states.

But here's the thing: While these rankings might make for splashy headlines, they are also like trying o describe a
person using only their SAT score, Sure, it tells vou & |of about one aspect of who they are, but does i caver the
whole pieture™ Not even closs,

So, what's an economic development professional, site selection consultant, or corporste executive 1o do? lgnore the
rankings altogether? Hardly. But it's time we ook a hard Jpok at what these numbers really mean, how they shaps
our sirategies, where they fall shori; and how they can be useful m site selection and economic development
decision=mking.



Decoding CHBCs State Business Ronkings

The CMBC Top States for Business rankings have become a keyv barometer in sconomic development. AL ils'core,
the ranking system is a data-driven attempt to quantify the busineas climate of all 50 states. The 2024 edifion
eviluates stales across ten key calegories, each weighted differently:

[, Infrastrcture {17%)

Work force (| 5%)

3. Economy | [4%:)

4, Quality of Life (3%}

5. Cost of Domg Business {1 1%)

6. Technology and Innovation { 10%)
7. Buziness Friendliness | 10%)

£, Education {3%:)

9. Access to Capital (3%)

10. Costof Living (2%4)

Fd

These weights aren 't arbitrary. They're based on how frequently each factor appears i sinte economit development
marketing rmaterials — a claver way to align the rankings with real-world priorities. This approach offers a unique
perspective on what's fruly dnving business decizions on the groumd.

Each category is scored wsing |28 metrics based on dara from authediative sources, such as the US Census Bureaw,
the 1S Buresw of Labor Statistics, ond individual state economiic development departm enis,

The weights shifted this year, with mfrastructure taking the top spot for the first time since the rankings began in
2007, While work force namains crucial, it's no longer the primary factor used by CHBLC fo rank a state’s econami
climate,

The metrics have also changed over the years to reflect emerging trends. This year, new considerations included
states” arfificial mtelligence readinese and the impact of insurance market chal lenres in cerlain siates

[nteresting by, CNBC ako mcorporated data from the Sie Selectors Guild this year, focusing on infrasiructure

metrics like site rendiness programs, certified site inventory, and overall investment In site development.

For thoss of us in the frenches of economic development, understanding these rankings can provide valuable insights
imte how our statss are peresived and where we might focus our efforts for improvement.
Faor others in site selection or corporate location decision-making, state business rankings will never be the only

metric driving their decisions, SGll, it can still influence their overall first impeession of a sfate as a viable option for

relacation or expansion,



Recent Top-Ronked Stotes and Their Key Strengths

In 2024, Wirginia was ranked as the top state for busmess in the CNBC ranking, attributed to its strong site readiness
program and high infrastructure seore. Virginia s also often praised for its strong workforce, excellent education
syslem, and business-friendhy repulatory environment.

Virginia has consistently performed well on CNBCs state busingas rankings over the past few vears, consistenthy
appearing in the top thres since 202 1. This consiteney suggests a robust, well-rounded approach to economic
development beyand just infrastroctore

Morth Caroling has long been recognized for its strong economy, access to capital, and technology and innovation
ecogystem, [t finished first in the rankmgs m 2022 and 2023 bat dropped 10 42 in 2024, This indicates that the state
may need to bolster its mfrastructure and address any gaps identified by the mew ranking methodology to regain the

o spat.

Texas has moved up three spots into the third position this year, which is no surprise to thosa Familiss with how well
the state kas done attracting new business imvesiment in recent years. Texas i laudad for its robust infrastractore,
strong economy, and relatively bow cost of doing business,

Reflecting that success, Site Sefection Magazime also ranked Texas as the top state in its 2073 business ol
rikings, with Virginia ranked 23, These states have both done excellent work leveraging their strengths 1o atiract

major corpatate investmients and foster economic growth,

CHAL Top 10 States for Business, 2027-2024

[P P Cawiny (g Cormiod (v

£ “l-;-‘ LaaT = gl Eoga Sty ey
- e e Tiss

A [om g N rﬁlﬂ'\tl Slrwe

| 1 r—— T | e— =T

B Jmp Dewiniz  [fwm i
T et | Asarsagp i O
B s Lu= - ds e !
ol e o o ., S — s

1% i e pad, TH Ty [ —_—— I
T

=




Mow_ in comparison to CNBC™s list, dreq Development magazine ranked the following states a3 (lie o e |

= et bt YT
s L P i1

;
LodEs BLISLILESs i i

Crenrgin

South Carolina
Tennessea
Morth Caraling
Ol

Afabama
[ndiana

Texag

2o o o b e e

Virginiz
10 Mssassippi

There are some similarities between the two [ists, a5 well as some big differences, with several states appearing in

one st but not the coher.

Area Development s list has a large eoncentration of states in the South, which makes logical sense due 1o the
amount of eapital mvestment we see moving into the Southem markel, the economic growth of those states and the
region, and the general feeling of business friendliness. But for CNBC's ranking system. it isn’t that simpls or
obvious.

Each ranking system has a differant algorithm and methodology, which is interesting to look at and congider,
capecially when these rankings camy as much weight as they do in today's imarkat,

Scores for CNBC's Top 3 States For Business, 2024

WEGHIS

These scores show infense competition among states to be the most attractive for businesses. Virginia claimed the
top spol with 1,595 points, narowly beating North Carolina with 1,592 points and Texas with 1,577 peints.

Texas excelled in several key categories;

s Workforce



s Economy
s Cost of doing business
s Technology and innovation

»  Access 1o capital

This makes Texas & powerhouse for economic oppormunities and innovation, with a strong workforee and business-
friendly policies. However, Texas scored lower in quality of lifz and education.

Virginia's strengths were in:

»  [Infrastructure
v Cheality of fife
«  Education

= Costof living

This creates a balanced and sustainable environment for businesses and their employees. Virginia's high
infrasiricture soore suggests it is well-prepared to support growth.

Morth Caroling’s key nssets were;

& Business Mendliness

» Waorkforce

This makes it appealing for businesses secking a supportive regulatory environment and a relisble labor paol.
However, Morth Carolma's lower score in access to capital could be a limitation

The razor-thin margin between these top three states emphasizes the importance of miloring economic devebopment
strategiss to leverage each state’s strengths while addressing arcas needing improvement.

What's Missing from CNBC's State Business Rankings?

While the CNBC Top States for Business rankings held significant sway in our field, it's crucial to approach them
with & disceming eye. Let's explore some of the challenges these rankings face:

*  Weighting Worries: While data-informed, the category weights may not capture every business’s nuanced
priorities. YWhat's critical for a tech startup might be less relevant for & manufacturing plant.



* Timing Troubles: Even recent data can quickly become outdated in our fast-paced economy, The rankings
might not alwiys reflect the current economic landscape, particularly in rapidly evolving sectors,

s  The Generalization Game! By attempting to create o one-size-fits-all ranking, CNBC and others may
oversimplify the complex needs of diverse indusiries. A state ranked poorly overall might a1ill ba ideal for

specific sectors.

»  Short-Term Shine: There's a risk that states might prioritize quick wins to boost their rankings, potentially
at the expense of more sustainable, long-term economic strategies,

* Regional Realities: State-level rankings can mask significant internal state varmtions, A thriving metro
area might skew percaptions of a state with strugeling rural regions or vice versa, Also, some siates have
regions that are a great it for certain industries but perfarm poorly m the overall rankings due to their

statewide scoring.

Chverall, CHBC s rankings are the most comprehensive and well-researched on the market, and they do provide
value to econamic development professionals, site consultants, and corporate executives considering expansion or
relocation. They offer a broad snapshot of & state”s business elimate and can spark important conversations.
Howewver, they 're just one piece of a much larger puzzle.

When working with site selectors or corporate decision=makers, it's crucial to emphasize that these state business
rankings aren't the be-all and end-all. They're a starting point, not the finish line. The best locations for expansion or
relocation will always depend on 0 company’s specific needs, goals, and industry,

In essence, while the CWBC rankings offer a useful bird's-eve view, the real msichts often lie in the details — the
local wark foree, specific infrastructure, targeted incentives, and the many other factors that make a location truly
right for a particular business,

Eeyond State Business Rankings: A Holistic View of Business-Friendly States

While state business rankings offer & quick snapshot, perceplive economic developers know there's more to the
story, Let's dive into some key factors that often fly under the radar

*  Industry Ecosystems: It's not just about individual businesses but the entire network. A thriving cluster of
eomplementary firms, suppliers. and research inatitutions can be a game-changer for specific sectors.

* Regulatory Agility: Staves that can adapt their regulatory environment to support business growth and
innovation have a distinet edge. [t"s about being responsive, not just business-friendly on paper,

=  Fiscal Health: Long-term stability marters. Siares thal can maintain consistent tax rates and invest in
infrastructure steadily over time offer a predictable environment for business planning.



= Labor Market Flexibility: Beyond just “warkforce,” the flexibility of the labor market, including
unicaization rates, right-te-work lows, and the ease ofhiring and firing, can significantly impact a state™s
attractiveness 1o businesses.

=  Epvironmental and Sustainability Factors; As more businesses prioritize sustainability, factors such as
envirenmental regulations, awailability of green infrastructure, and incentives for renewable energy can be

unportant.

* Transportation and Logisties: While “infrastructure™ may cover some of this, a deeper ook at
Iransportation networks, supply chain legisties, and market aceessibility can be valuable for certain
industries.

But here’s where it gets interesting - some states are punching above their weight ¢lase, regardless of their overall
renk ing;

* Take Indiana, for example: Often 2 middle-of-the-gack playes on CNBCs list, it's become 2 powerhouse
in advanced manufacturing. lis secret? Leveraging a strong workforee, low cost of doing business, low cost
of living, and a steategic location.

o Orlook 3t Colorado: Despite high business costs, they've cultivated & boomng tech ecosystem by
doubling down on quality of life and innovation,

= And don’t forget Michigan: Once struggling with economic transitions, they've reinvented themselves by
focusing on emerging industries like mobility and clean energy, €ven when their overall rankings were less
than stellor,

= Don’t Coont Utah Out: Utsh dropped to £13 in 2024, but it still has one of the sirongest econamies in the
coumlry, with a rolar infrastructure, and is highly toeted 2z a business-friendly state

These suceess stories underscore a crucial point: Its not aboat playing to the siate business rankings: it’s about
playing to your sirengths.

Different industrics have different needs:

=  Tech startups might prioritize venture capilal acoess over tox rates.
» Manufacturers oflen care more about infrastructure and logistics.

* Life sciences companies typically seek peosimily to research hubs and highly educated talent,
And let’s not forget regional variations within states;

*  Urhan centers offer talent concentration and imnovation scosystems,

#  Rural areas can provide cost advandtages and natiersl resources,



»  Coastal regions might excel in sectors like marine science or intemational trade.

The key takenway? Economic development isn't 4 ome-size-fits-all game. It's about understanding and leveraging
your unique advantages o cultivate industry ¢histers and develop competitive niches,

This nuanced approach moves us beyond the simplistic chase for good rankings. Instead, it focuses on crafting
sustainable, long-term growth sirategies tailored to local strengths and opportunities. That's the kind of sophisticated
economic development that traly moves the needle

Beyond the State Business Rankings: Fresh Perspectives on Business Climate

While traditional state business rankings offer valuable insights. savvy economic developers are expanding their
tonlkit, Let’s explore some alternative approaches 1o sizing up and promating your state's business environment:

Camoin Assoclates® -1 Fromework

Included in a few of the sirdegle sconomic development plans that our Strategic Planning Team has conducted for
statewide crganizations, including the State of Utah and the Siate of Rhode Istand, is a frameweork consisting of six
different categories, referred to as the “6 I's." which ranks states by the key fundamentals of economic prosperity:

I, Innovation

2, Investment

3 International

d.  Infrastructure

5 Intelleciual capital
B. Inierest

Dur stalf ranks these categories using specific, proprictary metrics and compsares them to all other states across the
country to understand where a state stands, its strengths, and its weaknesses. allowing us to analyze the
fundamentals of prosperity comprehernsively,

Use lndustry sad Geography-Specific Analysis

o Industry-Focused Studies: Dive deep into an analysis tailored to specific industries, such as advanced
manufacturing. life sciences, or agriculture, [1°s about understanding vour target industries ot o detniled and

comprehbensive level,

*  Cluster Analysis: Evaluate the strength of your industry ecosystems. Consider factoes like supply chain
integration. specialized workforce, and research capabilities.



* Innovation Metries: Track patent activity, R&D spending, and startup formation rates [t's abou
quantifyimg your innovation success and ecosystem.

* Geographic Competitiveness Assessment: This tool pits yvour stale or region against others for
competitiveness within specific industry closters. 11°5 all sbout knowng where you stand in the competit vie
landscape,

Camgin Associates has conducted countless target industry studies, cluster analyses, and geographic
competitiveness assesaments, allowing our clients 10 gain actionable insights as part of strategic plans,
comprehensive economic development strategies, or through individual studies and assessments.

LA inare gl o |_fl_-|'l='r. Lnglviies gnd Mrilegy hervices

Consider Long-Term Economic Indicators

* Economic RestHence: How well does your state weather economie storms? Adaptability is key in today’s
fast-changing markets, especially considering the impact of natural disasters nationwide.

*  Productivity Growth: Keep an eve on labor productivity trends. It's & solid indicator of sconomic
efficiency and wage growth polential.

* Income Mobility: Assess the opportunities for economic advancement. [t's a powerful draw for skilled
warkers looking to climb the kadder,

=  Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) Trends: Analyze imternational investment patterns. [t's a great gauge of
your glebal competitrreness,

You can paint a more nuanced, actionable picture of a state’s business climate by embracing these allemalive
approaches. This allows for laser-focused strategies that go beyond what traditional rankings can offer. Moreover,
these fresh perspectives can provide compelling naratives for business attraction, They highlight unique strengths
and opportunities that might get lost in broader rankings, They also offer a framework for continuous improvement,
ensuring our economic development initiatives stay in tune with the evolving needs of businesses and workers

Ukimately, il°s about telling a richer, more accurate story of what your state offers. That's how you stand out in a
erowded field and attract the economic growth that truly matters,

Do you want to discover your state or region’s unigue economic development strengths and obtain actionable
recammendations on how to maximize and market those stremgths to attract new business investment?

Camoin Associates can help.



Helic RocketCup Lovars!
We have an eaciting secret {o share with you all,
Arp you reagy??

Deranistains &t the Cattaraugus Cafie, we're thrlled o annaunce that we'll sosn be opening a one al a kind raastery ard
speakeasy barl While s not open just yeb, wa're hard af work getting evangthing ragdy, and we cen'l wait for you fo came
and experience (L wilh us onoe 1's complsbe.

The best pard™? Onca wa apan. youll b2 abie 1owaich us roast our beans wide apjodng your Favadile drink in aur shhhhhhi
speawessy. Whether you're in the mond for @ parfactly brewad coffes or B delicous cockled, wehee gol you cavered)

But that's not all—we've designed thees eeciusiva Coffae Clubs to make your RockalCup experience even befles, whethar
you're bresing af home o esvaring a up in our oory cafes.

£ Online Subscripticns

Expatimnce the comeanience of having your favorite coffes delivered straight to your doar. Choosse Between 1 ar 3 pounds.
and decide how oftén you wanl pour delivery—avary 4, 6, or S weeks. Plus, enjoy & special FREE gt with your fisl onder!
Sign up now at Rocke1Cup Orilne.

B Mug Club

Jon ourMug Chub and malos every vish to RecketCup axira special, For just 5100, wauw'll receive your very own RodeatCup
friug, which you can keep 21 our cafes or take home. Enjoy a Trae drink ewany manth (12 drinks a yearl) and a complimentarny
RochetCup T-ahit. I1' (he parfect way io enjoy your coffes in stk

= Cofiea Club

Prefaf picking up your coffae in parson? The Coffee Club (e for you! Stan with 1 pound far $30, and each addifioral pound ks
just 315 Every month, pck up your fresh coffes at your fevorte RockedCup Cale, receive & fiee T-shirl, a compimertary
&l diirlk with a&ch pickup, and ergay 10% off your dnnks whan vou visit us.

Siay tunad for mons excling updates. .

Fiza! your dreams this weakend with RocketCup!
Tak 16 you 300,

RockeiCup Taam,

Wholesale and Marsting:
mackenziefirgckatcupcoftas com
lemetree ketcuncoifer com

Olaen: (T16) 378-8087
Cattaraugus: (716} 202-0200



ASIIAHI ==

sHivivaan W

0S'ZES 01 07923
062TS
50'52$
09'€2S
0t TZs
00°81%

JIUBUIIUIEIN|

asnoyaien

PRIMS

jana Asjug

‘'] 01oyd pieA aARH

PRACLWEI 3q 1snw Asama| 1y

1Pamioay [a9y pue aol pasojoul

SJEB] 40 S3|0L ou Ym saued Duoj Jeam 1sniy
aney ueld [enualod oy paiedaid auwlod ases|d
‘Ajdde 01 Jap|o 10 siead g1 29 1SN




gAi:

20

 EMPLOYERS ATTENDING.

T

&

Ticket to Work & Benefit Advisement Catt One Stop WIOA Youth
Cuteo Corporation Salamanca Rehab & Nursing Center
Catt County Corrections Great Lakes Cheese
Healthy Community Alliance Cattaraugus County
IBEW Local Union 106 Genests House
7 Mountains Media /The Goat Beacon Light \
Cancer Services Program NomeCare & Nospice
CA BOCES Parallel Group
JCC Workforce Development FCI McKean Bureav of Prisons
Northstar Intandem
Allegheny Bradford Seull i
Goodwill (SCSEP) Laborers Local 621
Presser Utility Solutions Fidelis Care
5t Bonaventure University Core The Learning Center

3 SPONSORED BY-

NTIRGSRIDA SA BHYY

——

Cattaraugus-Allegany

',.-"" L
AmericanJobCenter




From: Kimbery LabMendels <tLimendols@sos hemtieraest.ores

Dates Auguest B, 2024 at4:13.06 P EOT

Ta: ok Forness <piomessifalasnbd.come, Brianea Shay <hrianed shay@ mul sumice #dus, Cory Wikior sCarey. cattco@amail coms, Cowrt ey

Lursne <Cogline L yratploEmail sunyiko ek, Lrystal Abers <cabers@earica grgx, lason kifler <pmiller @camdny coms, “Martel, Kathles

«Eathioanianal@mail sumies. adas, Ker Kerper <kberpencitvafoloan ong, Kimberly LaMendola =Kl amendok@ southemtierwest angs,
mnagsnewEeconomicrecous rvenrpi.ond, Mo Sumbasdu <ko Sumbunde@esd. ny.so, Alckard sk czink® wnherntny il aies, Tam

Callen <tzullen@sbu.edue, Tony Sowers < joperaPoaticn arge

Subgect: Catt Co Fcan Dew Teamr irdtation for US Dent of Commarce imssling

Hi Team -

I've been in recent communlcation with Rosanna Mesucci of the US Dept. of Commerca's
Intarnational Trade Administration and Rural Export Center in regard to her requests ta mest with
us and others in the Southern Tier to talk about thedr program, senvices, and possible opportunities
for new markets for our rursl businagsas.,

She reached out to lat ma know that she and & colleague will be in Salamanca in Septamber and to
see If she could meet with us at STW, as well as any other colleagues who we think might be
intarested.

We've sal tha meeting date for Wednesday, September 18, 9:00 - 10:00 am at Southern Tier
West.

I'll send & calendar invitation to all of vou but wanted to put this out to youl first for context.

Thanks - Kim

From: Rosanng Masuao (Faderal) <Rossnne MesgenlStrde goys
Sgnt: Morday, August 5, 3024 4-38 PH

Ta: Kimbeery LaMandols <ELamedol @ ienlianaeat o
Jubject: FS0OC meeting reguesst

Hi Kirm,

I hope you are enjoying your summer! | am going to be in Salamanca Sept 17-18 with a collsague of mine from
our Rural Expart Center. Would you and the STW team be available for 8 meeting in the afternocon on 3ept 17
o marming on Sept 187

We would love to learn moare about your organization and about companlas that you work with who might be
Interasted in finding new customers in other countries,

At your conveniance, please et me know I you are available and | Look forward to meeting.

Thanks - Rosanna

Ao=anra Masoool, Director
Commencial Seavize Bulfsa Ny

UE Dmportmend af Cammerce | frismataansl Teade Administratian

(asANNg. MasucciEtrade goy | ted: TP6:551=4191



SMALL BUSINESS

Come talk to different s

. . ee
local organizations that . ;

; ; representatives
assist smaill businessesl| -
from the following

The Small Business Development .
Center at JCC provides free and agencies:
confidential business guidance in
Chautauqua, Cattaraugus, and = Small Business Development Center at JCC
Allegany counties. » Small Business Administration

« Jlamestown Community College: Workforce

Devel
.n‘ll- sEP 5 2024 » Eaﬁifﬂi?ﬂ?lll&,gany: Workforce

ﬂ =N ]
ooo Development Board
ooo 530 pm 700 DITI s Pursuit Lending
Randolph Municipal Building, * Southern Tier West
* Pursuit Lending
Cnrnrnuntty Room * Laine Business Accelerator
72 Main St * Cattaraugus County
» C
Ran dolph, NY 14772 attaraugus County 1DA

NO APPOINTMENT NEEDED S ﬁc



